
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2023  

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS

4. NEW BUSINESS

b. AFFF (Firefighting Foam) Litigation Discussion (Garry Whitaker, Attorney)
c. Downtown Social District (Downtown Development)
d. Repair/Restore Paramount Ornamental Façade Elements (Paramount)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Pastor Stanley Kelly, Fellowship Baptist Church)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of June 5, 2023

V. PRESENTATIONS 
VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS

B. Utility System Development Fee Study (City Manager/Stantec)
C. Z-6-23 Goldsboro Masonic Lodge (Residential 16 to General Business) – East side of N William St. off of W

Tommy’s Rd. (Planning) – Continued from 6-5-23 
D. Z-7-23 Ground Zero (General Industry (I-2) to General Business) – Intersection of N William St. and W

Patetown Rd. (Planning) – Continued from 6-5-23 
E. Z-8-23 Performance East (Residential 16&20 A to Highway Business CZ) – East of the Tommys Rd./E

Patetown Rd. Intersection off US Hwy 70 (Planning) – Continued from 6-5-23 
F. Z-9-23 Hawthorne Trail (O&I-1 & Shopping Center to Residential 6 CZ) – Intersection of Cuyler Best Rd.

and W New Hope Rd. (Planning) – Continued from 6-5-23 
G. SU-7-23 Bingo Hall – 1406 W. Grantham St. (Planning)
H. SU-9-23 Deep Space Tattoo Parlor – South side of W Mulberry St. across from St. Stephens Episcopal

Church (Planning) 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
I. Request authorization to purchase a Ford F-250 Crew Cab with Service Body (Public Works)
J. Request authorization to purchase a new Transfer Station Hopper Compactor Combination (Hopper) for

the Solid Waste Division (Public Works) 
K. Resolution - Sale of Radios to Town of Pikeville Police Department and Town of Mount Olive Police

Department (Finance) 
L. Amending the Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Ordinance (G1108) (Finance)
M. Amending a Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Police Other Restricted Revenue Funds (P3104) (Finance)
N. Amending the Parks & Recreation Special Revenue Fund Ordinance (G1107) (Finance)
O. Amending a Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Fire Other Restricted Revenue Funds (F3110) (Finance)
P. Amending the Water Line Replacement & Booster Pump Station (BPS) Project WIF-1938 (W1111) (Finance)

a.   Taj Polack Resignation, MPT Discussion, District 3 Vacancy Discussion



2 

Q. Amending a Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Federal and State Drug Forfeiture Special Revenue Fund 
(P3101) (Finance)  

R. Amending a Grant Project Fund Ordinance – Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 
Investment Partnership Program (HOME) Special Revenue Fund (C2101, C2102, C3101 and C3102) (Finance) 

S. Resolution – Disposition and Destruction of City Owned Ballistic Vests (Finance) 
T. Resolution – Donation of Personal Property to a 501(c)(3) Non-Profit, Global Gear Initiative, LLC (Finance) 
U. Operating Budget Amendment FY22-23 (Finance) 
V. Adoption of a Resolution for Utility Fees and Charges for FY2023-24 (Finance) 
W. Adoption of the Annual Operating Budget Ordinance for Fiscal Year 2023-24 (Finance)  
X. Purchase Order Approval for Telephone System Replacement (Information Technology)  
Y. Departmental Monthly Reports  

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION
Z. Amending Chapter 117: Pushcart and Mobile Food Unit Vendors, of The City of Goldsboro’s Code of

Ordinances (Assistant City Manager) 

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

XI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS
AA. National PTSD Awareness Day Proclamation

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS

XIII. CLOSED SESSION

XIV. ADJOURN

Moved to Ind Action
Moved to Ind Action



ws b



Social Districts in North Carolina 
 

40+ and counting… 

 
 (as of 6/13/2023) 
 

1. Albemarle 

2. Asheboro 

3. Cary (approved) 

4. Charlotte  – Southend & Plaza Midwood 

5. Cornelius – expanded 

6. Davidson 

7. Durham  

8. Elkin (approved) 

9. Elon 

10. Fayetteville 

11. Franklinton 

12. Garner 

13. Gastonia 

14. Greensboro – x2 

15. Greenville 

16. Hickory 

17. High Point 

18. Huntersville 

19. Kannapolis 

20. Lake Norman 

21. Laurinburg 

22. Lenoir 

23. Madison 

24. Manteo 

25. Marion (approved) 

26. Monroe 

27. Newton 

28. Norwood 

29. Oxford 

30. Pilot Mountain 

31. Raleigh – expanded  

32. Rutherfordton (approved) 

33. Salisbury 

34. Selma 

35. Statesville 

36. Sylva 

37. Tarboro 

38. Washington 

39. Wendell 

40. Whiteville 

41. Wilson 

42. Youngsville 



Goldsboro Social District Update

Greg Mills, Business & Property Development

June 20, 2023



• A social district is a defined area in which a person may consume alcoholic 
beverages sold by an approved ABC permittee located within defined social 
district boundaries and defined days and hours of operation

• A social district area may include both indoor and outdoor areas of businesses 
within the social district

• A social district may include privately owned property, permittees and non-
permittee businesses, multi-tenant establishments, public streets 

What is a Social District? 



• In September 2021, Governor Roy Cooper signed into law House Bill 890 (HB 890) 
– ABC Omnibus Legislation – which passed both the House and Senate with bi-
partisan support-

• Included in HB 890 was a provision allowing local governments to create social 
districts in North Carolina-

• In less than a year since the enactment of HB 890, nearly twenty municipalities 
successfully created social districts in towns as small as Norwood to cities as big 
as Greensboro

Brief History of Social District Legislation



Brief History of Social District Legislation

• In June 2022, House Bill 211 (HB 211) – Social District/Common Area Clarifications -
passed both the House and Senate with bi-partisan support and was subsequently 
signed into law by the Governor on July 7, 2022-

• This legislation provides some much-needed clarity to the original social district 
legislation and includes more detail on the inter-workings of social districts-

• The sections of the North Carolina General Statutes regulating social districts contained 
in HB 890 were repealed and replaced with a brand-new section of Chapter 18B to 
regulate social districts-



There are now over 40 Social Districts in NC

Albemarle - Asheboro - Cary (approved) - Charlotte – Southend & Plaza
Midwood - Cornelius – expanded - Davidson - Durham - Elkin
(approved)- Elon- Fayetteville- Franklinton- Garner- Gastonia-
Greensboro x2- Greenville- Hickory- High Point- Huntersville-
Kannapolis- Lake Norman- Laurinburg- Lenoir- Madison- Manteo-
Marion (approved)- Monroe- Newton- Norwood- Oxford- Pilot
Mountain- Raleigh – expanded- Rutherfordton (approved)- Salisbury-
Selma- Statesville- Sylva- Tarboro- Washington- Wendell- Whiteville-
Wilson- Youngsville



Why Social Districts

• The fastest growing downtown development program in the State 
• Proven Economic driver for increased revenue for downtown businesses
• Attracts new events and new visitors 
• Attracts more businesses to downtown
• Incentivizes retail establishments to stay open later
• Increases pedestrian activity and provides a variety of experiences
• Low implementation cost, low maintenance cost



Who Can Sell Alcohol in a Social District? 
Only ABC permitees holding approved on-premises ABC permits may sell alcohol to be consumed in 
a social district such as:

 An on-premises malt beverage, unfortified wine, fortified wine or mixed beverages permit

 A distillery permit  or a wine shop permit

Please Note - Special One-time ABC permits used for non-profit organization events at the HUB or Freedom
Field are not legally approved to sell alcohol into the Social District.

This results in 3 options for events held inside the Social District such as the HUB or Freedom Field.

Only one option may be chosen by the even organizer

1. An event at that chooses to sell alcohol with a Special One-time ABC permit must be closed to the Social District.
Therefore, events serving alcohol will operate as they have in the past – no alcohol comes in and no alcohol goes out of
the defined event space.

2. An event that chooses NOT to sell alcohol at their event may choose to be open to the Social District – people with 
alcohol legally obtained from and acting in accordance with the Social District may attend

3. An event that chooses NOT to sell alcohol at their event may choose to be closed to the Social District, meaning no 
alcohol is allowed inside their event space



Basic Requirements for a City or County to 
Create a Social District? 

• Social districts must be clearly defined, and signage must be posted in conspicuous locations

• Social districts are only allowed to operate during locally defined days and hours
• Local government is required to establish management plans for the social district and post these plans

on the local government’s website, along with a drawing of the boundaries plus the applicable days
and hours of the social district

• Local government is required to distribute signs to non-permittee businesses that are included in the
social district indicating that a business allows, or does not allow alcoholic beverages on its premises
when the social district is active

Goldsboro



Goldsboro Social 
District Boundary

Proposed Area to include 
current ABC Permittees 

Center St from Ash to Spruce
James to John on:

Mulberry, Walnut, Chestnut, 
Spruce



Goldsboro Social 
District Boundary
Example of a contiguous location

con·tig·u·ous

sharing a common border; touching.

"the 48 contiguous states“

In this example The Firehouse 
business highlighted in yellow is 

considered part of the Social District 
because the front is contiguous with 

the defined border.

Other examples are Toreros on John 
Street And Jay’s Place on John 

(currently unoccupied)



Goldsboro 
Proposed Social 

District Hours 
10am–10pm 

Monday through Sunday 
Only on-premise ABC permittees can sell 

alcohol to the Social District
Mostly restaurants open at 10 am 

Sunday 10am to accommodate 
Brunch Bill

Goldsboro City Council approved the sale 
of alcohol at 10 am on Sunday in 2017



Most Common Question 
If my business is in the social district, but I do not want customers coming into the  
business with alcoholic beverages, do I have to allow it?

No - any business located in, or contiguous to, the designated social district has the 
option to participate, or not, in allowing customers with beverages to enter their 
premises- These window/door decals display preferences- Information also posted on 
the city Social District website



Additional Rules for ABC Permittees to Sell Alcohol 
in the Social District
• The ABC permittee is only allowed to sell and serve alcoholic beverages on its 

licensed premises- In other words, the ABC permittee cannot sell alcoholic 
beverages in the street or down the street just because the ABC permittee is 
in a social district.

• Alcoholic beverages that are being sold to be consumed in a social district 
can only be sold in an official container that meets all the following 
requirements: 
 The container clearly displays the ABC permittee from which the alcoholic 

beverage was purchased
 The container clearly displays a logo or some other mark that is unique to the 

social district in which it will be consumed
 The container clearly displays the date the beverage was purchased
 The container displays, in no less than 12-point font, the statement, “Drink 

Responsibly – Be 21” 
 The container is not made of glass
 The container cannot hold more than sixteen fluid ounces



What Requirements Do Customers Have to 
Follow Within a Social District? 

• A person can only possess and consume alcoholic beverages purchased from an approved 
ABC permittee located in the social district- A person cannot bring their own personal 
alcohol  into the social district for consumption

• Any alcoholic beverages consumed in the social district outside of the approved ABC 
permitted business must be consumed from an official container- In other words, a person 
cannot pour their alcoholic beverage into any personal type of container

• A business with an approved ABC permit located in the social district may decide to 
participate or not participate in allowing customers to leave their premises with an open 
container 



City performed research & due diligence 

• Key city departments held several meetings with various stakeholders to discuss 
pros and cons of implementing Social Districts including City management, 
Planning, Downtown Development and Goldsboro Police Department (GPD)-

• GPD reached out to several neighboring communities who already implemented 
Social Districts and found no major concerns resulting from implementation

• The majority of ABC permitted businesses support implementing a Social District



City performed research & due diligence 

• The majority of other merchants inside the Social District support implementing a 
Social District



Any questions??



ws c



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-  3

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO TO REPAIR AND
RESTORE THE PARAMOUNT THEATRE ORNAMENTAL FACADE ELEMENTS

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro authorized the 2008 rebuilding of the
Paramount Theatre after it was destroyed by fire; and

WHEREAS, the Paramount Theatre contributes to the economic vitality and quality
of life for citizens of the City of Goldsboro and surrounding communities; and

WHEREAS, the repairs are essential for public safety in close proximity to the
Paramount Theatre; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends utilizing current FY budgeted funds along with
contributed funds from the Paramount Theatre Foundation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. City staff are authorized to complete the repairs as specified by the original
Paramount Theatre architect and contractor for $39, 776. 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
201" 

day of
June, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Holl Jon s, Deputy City Clerk

avid Ha , Mayor



MN
ON

dI15Nb

Ov 
O

co

V)

o

0

0

coCd

0

to

U

b

ani

W 

UC7
U

vU

U

o

9

O

9

9

o

N

N

x

0

00

ccs

L7

o

UUUUUp,
l

itO

U

w

U

a

oQ

ad ° 

aS

O

xj

fr

s: 

M

to

N0

cd •-+  

O  ,

y   

o0

c0

U

155

OCdo

cdcd : 

w

U

cl

C,

14

C'

s

o -

cz

abi

o

ce

on

H

cd

U , ... 

o

a

p"

0" 

3 

o

a)

o

ao

o

a°
i

0

oio10. 

oF" 

0U

v

a

iU

on

cd

a 

F" 

0

b

4. 

O

O

0 ; 

0

0 ' 

cd

o

wd
H

as

cd "%:

1

o

U

two

C 

Cd

to

Cd

o

p

3° 

t

W

y

0

b '

t7

O

a) 

v 

vi • 

o

b  

F. 

0

o

0

00

o

p - 

ti

U

b

O

ao

3. 

0 -

d

3

sem, ° 

o

0

a

ani

ti

0

O ; ( 

y •.. 

U

4

cd

Cd

0

W

O

A > 

co

CA

O

U .

O ,, 

b

cd

y

a) 

14

0

O

0

V1 .

r

y  

to

0

0

0

a . ... ' 

p, 

O

U

w

O

a 

U

C4

a

w

o

0

as + 

O

a) 

y

p

m

N

O• .! 

0 - 

C: 

O

as

bA

0

p

vi

p

N "

C$ 

d

N

o

ti • '

p • 

I

y

a

O

4-; 

O

y

VI

O

O

x ° 

Z ° 

o

o

ao
0

x

C7

C7

0

1. 

ami

O '

o

Q

bb

on

on

c

W° 

cd

0

O~ 

as

Q

4-
4

U-

0

z
C

aZ¢ 

0

oo; 

w

O

0  

U

0

cd ' -

4

UO° 

00O -
U=' 

guc, 
PIS

o94

w

c 

O

O

oo  a

U

U

O

U

U

a 

3OO

O

O

O. cdb

00

a) 

O0

a
C'

w

OO

a) 

O

o

El  cd

w

C

CdL'i
0

0y Uo0

p; 

o

C;

j

z

W00

wO

N  

O
wct oN

En onN

c 

I0i

U

U  O

r-+ UCts
En

0

o

cdo

co

y

paniO

i-
1Cd

1 

o

too • 
c° 

a I

Item A



Eli¢' -

41

CZ

a

0

0

0

3

a

b  

a) 

o

x -

o

w-

as

Cr

U -

d

rno

03

0

0

b

cz

OV

o

PQ

a

a

o

a

o

p

0o

v

O  

o

cz

O

o

Q

y

Cw

y '

bP.
ey

b —. 

d

U

o

m

3 ° 

3

a 

C7

0 ' 

a°

cz0 -

o

b

N

U

aO• 

N

O

cd '

U

p

WN
0

p, 

w

0

to

0

co

R

9

0

3

u

o

a , 

o ° ° 

oU

3

b 

b

0

33 
ow °' 

O

O

cd

y

0

U

O

p

o

O

p

a 

U ° 

U

0

CIS

cz

w

3° 

do

a 

d

O

N

O

0 >, , , 

a 

to

C4

0

Cd

0

r. 

cz

o

tU

b,
A ° 

O ` 

to

O - 

O

ol

0

OO ' 

oasU
C;

3

C3

z

0'

b

O

O  

o

P, 

w

O

Gi, 

W , 

a 

m

a) 

i

to

o

c4

N

x

Ga

p

U

bo

o

r. 

3 

Q° 

rn ° ' 

o

0

oo
4-
4

W

b

0.1

U

t7

U

U

p"

o

p

3

o ., ,, 

b

0

3

O

p

a

o

A

a

3

0

3

3 °' 

c

N

a

3

a 

b •

5 '

a
a °' 

c ' 

O

o

C7

U

0

an " ' 

m

C,

3C7

o

1-

4

3 .

d

f 

D6•

o ° 

cn

N

O

o

o  — 

o - 

o

m

U 

UUUUUo
F-

404c 
p

O

mi

o

L4

b

M° 

A0

0co
i ` 

p

vy(
Dca

bi

o

a

0

o

W

a

cd

U

0O .

b . 

a., 

p

00

0

cz

IWO

co

d

a3 °° 

O° 

O

o

0o

x

oo

b

U '" 

o

aoi ° 

U

o

C

0

x > 

0

4

U

o

o

o

3

a - 

o

o

Z

o

Q

A4

w

d

0

O

to

O

6'

st
U

O

s9

U ° 

h

w

U

cn0

RT0R



U

O '

C ~ 

ti

bAcd
I

o

A
4-
i

m0y
N

O

C"" 

0

m

Com.. 

vUi
c • 

2

N

bA

O

y 

p  

N

U

cC

id(

Y1

N

m

bA

N

cC • - 

m ° 

Z

M

U

c

j '
C^ 

cn

cyd

N

b

cz

OOWU
cd

O

c 

c 

gb

U , 

Q -

0cO
0

a ° 

04

R

m

Zn

wD

y

N ~ 

CO

C

O

cz

U

o ,;:

1

cis

O

en

0

O

O
N

vi

O

m

O

cC

U

O

CJ

N

N

O^ 

l7

y

U` 

N

U

O

Cy

cC

U .•-, 03

N

O

fi 

r

to - 

O

b  "

C

N

110, 

bOD

U

N + 

tom•.' ~ 

N

U

N

A
S

y

4, 

x " 

d

0o
U

N

cis  

a 

U

o

c ' 

b

co

o ° 

d °' 

u. 

pq

m

d

N

i

O

r. 

O

m

a. 

o -

co

N

O  

m +- 

m

m

0vo

o° 

y

y

O

U

c.

zri° . 
y

cz

i

Qyy

to0

mC0z
c

0

D °° 

N

L"

UW - 

U+ 

3 % 

cm/]
t"', 

o", `•"' 

F. 

cd

m

O

q ° ^ 

m

cd

m -- 

ftf

O

N

O

U

a

O• 

V

b

O

m

U

N

0

rig

O

m

c 

U

N

N

i•• '" 

F'' 

y

p ., ,-- 

M •, -

C

O

V ~ 

iii

i 

vi '

o

N

U

Y ¢ 

3

N

bo

0

Cd

0r. 

o '   

C

m    

0 

r  

Q

Op

U  ( 

a

fy

W

W  

C7 ' 

6. 

y

7

C7

O

U

C7

rl  :

U  

y

vi

m '

G «

i

V

M/ 

vi" '

C

A

O

P , 

f+ 

s" 

N 

i—

i 

j' 

r

y

N  ~ +- 

O

r

i '

O

F, "" 

q :• 

H '

C " °  

N

FSI

p

cd + 

CZ

bA

a) ° 

O

m

y

m

t 

o

y

p, 

U '

n

O

O

o 

s

m

X

0

o

A; 

C7 ~

z

a 

bN

aaQ° ° 

y

Z~ 

to ^''

a, 

0' 

C ` 

bo

cC

O

E" 

N

U

O

N .. 

m '

t7

C7

o

w

a

d 

Cl) 

W

0-

0

N

M



b

N

Cd

0

En

O

y .

d

r1
O

NO
cd

4) 

3

d" 

N

4Yy

p

o

0ODcd
O

O

Zn

ai

ai

U '

co

tiU

N

cd

A

p .- 

p

c 

O

O -• 

N

Y ?

A

a

a _ 

bo ' - 

y

icy

y

N

U -- 

0 % 

U

Y

U

y. ~

O

O

U

t". 

U .

y

bn

U

Cy

o

U

a

VD

0

C14

10

N

rn

cd

O

y 

N

y

rn

N

N

bn

cC

c 

0

b ° 

3 '

d '

gin
Y

y. 

C ° 

a

ti

to

o

on '

b

o. ' 

o

a. 

Q) 

Y

0

o

b

bn

Y

to

0

o

Q

Y

a) 

W

cn

M

i

o

N

o

3

a 

o

Cd

cqj '". •¢ ,

No, 

c •

Fyn 

o" 

s~ 

Q3a 
4] . 

s~ . 

a 

Li

4mO
ro

n°

y

U

C

U

Ct + 

N

a0

U. . •~- 

co

pvN
op

a

U

N

C
v ° 

U > 

y

N 

s

U

c 

04

C4-

4

C .

0

Y'

wmp - 

4' +° 

p

y ° 

fl

o

o

oo
N

U `°'

Oti >
C~ + '

G >, 

rO
b«S

y

o

p

o

U

b

a ~ 

UN
b

Nri

b

v

O

L

C14

U

O

P4

0

O

to

o

c

C14O
O

c 

o

O

N

o

cC °: 

N

Y

N

O

p

U

o° 

NN .

o

Z" 

x.

o

Cod (

Da .. 

o

cd

C14

tD

cnp

y '" 

U

tz

on

GSI ^ -" , 

A

c% ° 

a  

co

0

Q) 

cd

U

3

OD

api

4

o

v° 

c° 

23

N

to

c

F" "

D4. 
o

o

0

c 

on
a 

a 

a

U

O

N ° 

O

C ° , ° 

u? 

o •

O

a 

o

U

rA

as

aon

Yfo
4. '

C

E" 

VU

o

CI

O

C,

3 . 

N

4"

N

j, ° ° 

N  

Cd

U

o ... 

3

b°a+' •..... 

yP`io J' I

o

x° 

m°..'° 

b'YaCC
i3

o

x.p;, 

pY 

qA% 

OpOC

U

Y.' 

yU

OwGJ

3

C 

QO

t ° .

yflN
o

CU7

U.° 

o07~ 

W

COto0
Y

U

o

oZ

o ~

N

O

o

08
04 ; 

Unn
C;

J

r

u

p

g

l

r

bDa" 
W

cd

V 

o'

6

oMgL 

0. =

Qo•

UO
P. [

n

N

f

4" 

cz

U

O+

b

Cd

P. 

N

7

r

4. 

rn

a

CC

O

C. ° 

0U°

vsooas
m

O

O

U = 

pZU:•

vO
U

U

cqjO

45C213. 
Q% 

U

UD

n

OC ° : 
0U

UUUU ° 
US

d' 0
R* 



0

C13CZ '
d

C
FC',•  

o   ' • 

0   

aoi

21

C,

3

F- 

Cd

o

x

o

b
a 

a 

w

El

M

O

0 > 

bD

O

w

O

O

N

r 

N

y

bt

q ` -

4

to  

t 

3 ¢ 

c-,: 

U

ON

No

O

y

ai '

y •.. . 

OP , 

0

0

O

0

y!

Os~ 

cis, 

OFr . 

o

C'

s

y

0

i - 

cz

UO
to

OO
a) 

a

y

o

w

003

coon
O

N

n

0 -

o

sa. 

yUr

n. 

aj> 

o

o

m ' 

ani  _ 

a 

p

o

O

a °' 

o

clc
i

w0

O

0

16

p

N

O

O

y

P4a ^ 
O

pp

rn ' 

4w. +- 

N ' ° 

cl -

0

GY".

l '

C

W ' 

4

p -

d

p °

WDy

O "

3

DA

U  

U

U

M

O .. 

n

m

O

0

4] 

N

s 

v 

a

co

to

a) ^

C

N • ° ` °' '

b ° 

C `

p 

o > ° 

a 

on .

5

a  

a

o

o

o

o

U

toNCwj7a
V

cn

w .+

0

o"

a

0

o"

y3

N

o : 

oto
au 

a' 

o

0

5

oorn

o  

N

0

w

O

to

N ) 

Fi

c

C  

O

O

P. 

o '

r

m ' 

w

N

N  

O 

CI'
D

Oa

xv>, 

ONa4o] 

Oo

N

ai

t.p. •

f  

wOO

OsOy

0

MNN
i

gA 

0

N

0

O

O

03

a)+

oa•- 

C;

3Uy

po

i] 

O`iA

oo

El

0 '

d

O

O

0

1

N

Ki + 

o

U

N

v

0 

p

ati
Q+ 

aVj

O

O

t" 

Q" 

O ' 

a) 

3 , °+. 

M

p

M

bD + 

cz

Q .

O

c (

Z ., / . 

cC

b

0

a) 

0

a) 

a) 

O '

d

0

U

0

N

bn :

o 

a° 

s~

koi; 
o  

o

0.' 

p.  '  

A  

on

a' 

a  . 

a , .  

o

aw , ''  

a ' 

p  °'° • 

0

0

0

0

o

C .  

a, `*-  

3 •. , .

y

N

i

U° 

o

O

y

a) 

a) 

O

N

a) 

ti

L 

p

yNy >' 

6' `" 

co"

o

O

0 •

O :

3

y

N >, '

t8 >, 

N

O

y , 

s '

b

b

0+ , ; ; 

ti

p

O

cCcqj
on

0

O

N

a'' • 

N

O ` 

En

o

O ,-. 

c ° 

U

E " 

o

b .  

0 >, > 

of

U

v' 

C/ 

d ^

d

O ' 

0cl

cz > '

a

N ; ^

C

4

bA

i

6,  

a) >~ 

O

0

O

to

O

N

o ', 

o

p

o °" 

o

A

O

a

3

3

w ` 

o

o

U
s~ 

o

W

w

o

rx

o

d •° ° , ° 

a 

a' 

U ° '

El

w

o

U

a, }' 

o

0

ono
t~ 

ri

b

on

o

a, 

U  , ; " 

6

Z > 

O

c 

pq

1-

10

a °' 

o ' 

Z ^ ^ ' 

N  . 

O

G4

P. >

03

O

U

rn  

Q  

Ey`

M°

O

o ° 

o

a

o

a

b

aNi`.. «~  

cz

cn

on>':° 

on °'> 

o

ons  

0

o ° 

or

y

w

a 

d

o  

p, 

0

C/] 

k

o.. 

L 

aI
i , 

N

U

O '

C

O

y

a) +- 

O -. ., _ 

CO

4. 

s-  •   '  

o

U ' 

w

e

d

a 

c; 

N

u

ti

v ° 

A

3

a

b ¢. ° 

o° -

d

a? 

o ° ¢, -

0

r, 

14

r. , 

O '

o

0

0.01

aoi ° 

ami

a`' >~ 

o

A

U

A

IM4

Q) > (

D

o

o

o

N'

ti

AUOa
oy : -

Cl:; 

o - 

o-

d

c , 

rw 

o

aoi

o '

d

C7

0o

fZ

co

GG °° 

0° 

0

0

N ., 

a 

o - 

o

o , , 

o

O .. 

o

03

a+ 

o

z

W

A

Q

x °

C;

j

v

j

W ° 

o • ° ° 

o

o

o

o  

M

O- 

aoi 

a) 

w' 

o

ami ~ 

dNM >
ci! 

oA
a' 

0 

U

rA

Nco
CIS

N `) `

n

U '

C

ti

0

N

U   . . . . 

In °' ° 

3 '>

a1

3

vi

gU ° 



N 

V .-. 

0 •

014
N

O

p

O

O ' 

O

O

3

N

Pi .

r

CU/) 

a) 

a) 

S4;4 -
i

a) ° 

4'" 

rn

a) 

tn

4_
4" 

bA

O ° 

N

U
4. " ' 

b

to O  

O

nom, ° 

b

b_ 

o

k

y 

UU

N

U

Ri

V

y

t°

as

t+ *, 

0 ' 

O

O~ 

U

oa>

A

b

G)

U , 

ti >

a

CO " 
C;

3

Op

N > 

vOn

N 

pW 

q

acd

p

C

va 

00

b4

b ° .

SC

O

t; 

O

b4

a) '

d

Oyflpa . 

y 

4" 

4 

N

O

U

O ° 

aC
o

C;

3

0

N

10

cs

W

cz

15

9b .

5, 

0

O

w

d

Q) 

00

Q) -

N

O

3

O

p

00, 

y

4] 

r

O

cn '~" -

d

3

O

0

a) 

4 

U

y , 

o

a) 

U

0 

ca

cd

3

Ej

3 

o "; 

0

3

N

O •, 

0' 

U "

Cy

cn .' 

O -' 

c 

U ° 

Q

y . , 

Q, 

a) 

U

3

3

a) 

O

N ,

I

ami

O

0

Cd

O

N

O 

C/ 

O

v

cit

O 

y' 

U) 

U

a) 

j

N

to

Q, 

M

W

N

Na-
1

t" 

b

Q

O

a

bU " 

d

N° 

3

CO

N

0

r

0

P, 

rn

N

b "

Cy + 

a) 

a) 

w

Q) 

rl

u

00

C'

s= 

µi

O

a) ", 

bD

O

C;

3co , 

a1) 

0

a ;

N

o 

aN) 

o

r. -

0z

oR" 

N

0

y

0

03 

o

ia) 

o

Ct

od

w

O

c•) 

o

o

O

O° ) 

0

O

UN
p ¢ 

ce)

d

i, 

U0fcj - 
a) 

Q

V " 

o

a

ZN
O

to > ° 

O

a) > 

Q

cC

cz

3

a) 

Z

N `

n

U  '

i 

T" 

a)  

r." 

0

y

0`

n

P, 

a) 

o

b" 

y •

4: 

a) 

m

X., 

O

yxi

O

b•

a

U ++ 

O

w

a, 

a) (

U

cz

N0a3

H

U) 

on
M

b

r+

b

O

0

I= 

cz

Qti ) 

sC

tm
0

0

w

c

4. 

NaO

b ° 

U

O

o

O

U

cz

o

flp
c 

i

oco
jz

K

0

U

C'

s

o

o

d

Z

yU 
n

U

p

0 . 

7Wo
cd

N 

o

bo 

o

brJ ` 

U

sa , 

o

a

8

O

O

o

O

o

o

b °

a) ° 

o

O

cz  

a

vpctj > 

to)

a) -

0, 

cC,°

U

CG

V

O

Q, 

v'

C;

3

to

a) 

cO
c° 

a)

cd

c -

4

O

O -

b

0

n 

o

w

N

7:
1

OGpU
a, 

aca) 

u
P-
4

O

cn >

o _ '

C

F -

Q

o

X

3

O

r +

6 —;

G

O

4-
r, 

P, 

P, 

00
cd

U

0

a) 

p

co

Cn., 

A -

6 

r° 

O

pq0o
9b

V

O

O

o

4N 
L, 

cn

En

O 

O >

UcU
bc°

b , 

oa

v 

HC7



It. 

vemvcmm

C 

S

avCLO

xm

N

7

u

os

c

L

Q

d  

t, 

aN

4T
e•

I

O

a;= s' 

m

i

o 

s

14

V'. 

gigs

49

E

y
i° 

t

z

00

ELE
fz

C41- 

o

c

N

r

vd

ry

n

i

s

M

a

s

4} 

a

O

F

a

a! 

J

sal
a

s

la

e_

1 •  

e.

t

o

ILL. 

E

x

r

L

el

R

Ile

C

f

A@
16

rigC $ 

5 =

nE

isLL? 

2 

w  OoQf„

M

O - 

ug  

do

to

c=

s;: 

C

t`

o $ 

m

yP

c

5' 

I

sc4

ties
t •' =

saais

11
1, 

m

a

Q

p`; 

iv==.

t

Ip-.

a

tdi
i-•• (

s

i= 

ie

a

3, 

ai

t7

0

yy;;' 

o

o

C

C4„ c
o

K

c

n

o

1

i! til
F} 

to

v

a

d

m

i

s

E

o
c

a

i }

i'

t

i

3

i

CC

O

2 > •

p

c

G

u

Q

COC

s

Q

z

s

E

E

c

o

r!!• 

f

1

OU

to

a

a

I11

at

i

t

till
t

1 "

7

1

i

Inc °
u

a

e

e

T

mm
m

o

m

X

Y

u

cc

Q

Z

I

I

0

5

o

4T
e•

IO

a;= s' 

i

o 

s

14

V'. 

gigs

49

C41- 

ry

n

i

s

M

a

s

4} 

ZN
m

x «

4=

P

dal

a! 

el

R

Ile

rig
C $ 

5 =

nE

isLL? 

2 

w  

f„

M

O - 

ug  

doLU

15

I

4T
e•
IO



14

N

2

O0oCO) ;

3

3

cd

o - 

d

O

U   

O

Da  

U

b

0

O

ctj

NMa 
w  

cn

a '

Q, 

X

0

O

0O '

0

3  

o ° 

3

bU '

C3

i0. 

Q

co

a 

co

cy~ C

xr

U

cl  

o

3

mai

n , N 

C;

3

O

N

M

4

cn

A

w

r , ¢, 

o

p

h

O

N

C,

j78

C9

co

cl

o

0

0

0cl

Cd

c

4-
4o

o

sz

A

o

03

ti

U

a 

I

0

ZdN

cl "

V, 

O

O

s

ti0

lolla

ON 

l

Ua '
o

1, 

O

O

O

y >, 

b °, 

ani  

JO. - 

v

v' 

0> 

O

N 

C". 

cUa

p. 

sp. 

p

p ' 

U

Om
b

U

GamQ) 

on

cqj

a

Q

N

Q) "

d

W

03

O

y

U

N

N

O

co

as

w

10N

d

z

o

N

F." 

40. 

0

41.
13

o ° •

zi

Q

0 ° 

0 .

d

Ed ;

ti

P4

U

W > "

d

on

d ; 

a3i

ami

oma, : •   

4

t. .  

a. 

U  

0

to

CNC11 '

o

a, `° 

Y

V

A

o

o

0

o

r. 

j .  `

n •

O

ate+ QU) 
t > —

cz

O

r

e. 

N

b

O

4. 

s. 

N

0

vi

y

0

U

cd

o

0 •

p

4 

0  

m

v

8  

N °. 

A 

0 " 

0. 

CO

0

co

b

cc

w

U

o

s. 

H

o

o

0

s= 

p

t. 

d ~ 

O

N

N

N

NO

U

N

O

M

ed

A '

b

O

y •". 

M

YS- 

V

b .

fl

Q

64

o

r- ' ". 

M

Q

Q

0 '

b

N

b

p " 

cu   ^- 

O

O

N \ 

p

r- 

N

12. 

t " 

O

N

Q) 

ct

69

to

b

U

tn 

I

O

N

coy

N

ch

p

N

b

N

Lr "

vOi ~ 

O

cz

fY. " 

cd  

r.+ 

O

O

Cq

69

y ^ 

0 ' 

L: 

c} 

O

O

co

r. 

A

u 

ami

O  

3QcMS

o

O

GG

w
E-+ 

i °' > :) 

Cl? 

U .

w

N

r+

0. 

N

N

y

O

N >> 

U > 

N

in

as

v000



G

14

cV

cli

4

s

15

cd

0

CN

J9

Go

0 .

lou
o

Cd

0

cn

a'

v, 

p 

qU .. 

O 

4, ° 

W

a 

4. 

p ' 

COD

N

U " 

O

N

O

Ucz

Ln

0

ray

Ci

i -

Q% -

0 >

1

3Un4. ° 
y  .. ° 

0

U) 

0

bb

U

O '

o

o

Y

o

y

cN

N

Q

UY

9 - 

o

2W

ZC8N

oCcz
W7

6-
4

o

o

w

tz

w `° 

P'

n

cu (

Ui
0Q. 

cd

US

El `"

CI

0 . 

i 

E; 

r  ° 

15

Q)° 

Rl

o 

CZ

mUio
b

Ubb
5

cz

cu

E6

u

cz

0

0

0

oo

o° 

o

i

a'

C14C7
abi

tj .

fl

to

id41. .— .. 
U

2

69

142

y • 

r + 

Cl .

fl

y

N ' ¢. .

U.,

b .

err' 

tom" '

G

N

V' 

V  

y

c 

m

bD  '• 

Cl. 

co

N

0

En

El =' 

0

co

Cd"

Nicz 
p .

d 

O

O

O

cz

a

U

a

r

3

U

U) -

d

CIS ' 

w

3 

1p

o

o

ne

0

X20

U

cz

Vj"

Ucd
O >., •-' 

Y

b0A +

N' 

s4r
N >, 

s

O"r

NrU 
N> 

V

4 ° 

c 

0• 

cz

C> 

p

pp  

OO 
pp

0

Q>

w+" 

to . 

vi4 

U

N

N

cz46. 
U

Q) 

0

1-

4

C;

3

0 "

d

b

O

03

0

cz

6

U

ca , 

i

U

N

N

bA

p

scy 

U .

1 

CI

y

O

O

O 

V1

V '

b

M

4to
0 (:

i

A

p

O

p

v, . 

fs, , 

ycd. 

U

O

c 

0

r

s

p . 

y

co

bA

N

U

0

N

c 

cn +- 

N

A

L 

3-• - 

U '

C . +' 

N >, .. ' 

b

v 

3

G 

Q

O

O

41

p

rs

v 

i

o °' 

3 . 

o ° 

4r 

U

b-

oU

O , °

r

U

co

U

r

un

O > 

oUw  `
d °' 

d

o

0

0

UU 

ao'
io

Pp. 

o . 

1 ." 

O

U

L: 

y +' 

U  .• 

c , 

Q+ 

U ." [/". 

r

b

U . 

O

N

cd + ' 

i". 

y . 

3

o ^ 

U

cd

0

o  

4 '

0

o  

o   

0

U

Q  

N

b

c0 ' "" 

U

O

W

U

F. +. 

y

O

U

O

2

R, 

Q ( '

d

N

vi

0

U

0  

a 

3

cV

cri  

vi  

v

0+ 

a `   • 

a'"

i

3

ani

b

0

4° 

o

u

V-) 

d  

H 

U

U

0. 

1

c 

h

C7

W

3

a "

C7 =

p: 

v
4- 

Oci



b

CA

4- 

M

y

Y

0

cd

rA

cqj

N . 

C '

CO
U

cq

ON !

Oz

cd

CdUOGN
N

N — 

n

6Cd
U`

U 

y

m

Oitocz

Y

U

10

cz

Cd

M

bA • ° 

U

H ^

C

Mo

cri

0 ° " 

oQ0
U5

Nw

V •

FyoI.¢1 

vcO"
i ,

N°U

oO

pO

a

on

Up
U

to

O

03

ycd 

a

U

N '. 

H3[ 

So
U

o

w3stO- 

J04. 

0

iatW
a

o_ 

y>' 

O

O

4. 

o

M

co

OU°
U

O

ta. 

O

cU

p

n

cn °

O

b

p

bN

Y

NvO
G

0

O

cd

O

U

O

0

0

0, 

4

N —

p

dy

O

w  

r. °

CO° 
t ° 

cSdA

rj) 

eg

y

dUCNw

0 ° 

0° -

oy

r. 

O

N0

O

M) 

p

o

4ti

o

El! 

E! 

R

N

a

O

bU

cd -

W

b

o ° 

CO , 

Qy

o, ° ° 

m

w

cd

o

o

O

W

CC

W

o

0

0

cd

0

1, 

O '

C -

0

0

to

U

y _ 

N

42 ' 

5 '- 

Y

O. 

Mkn

N  

O

Fn

Y 

00
r 

O

40. 

o

p

ao , 

a) 

cd

p

a) 

O

W .

0

0

0 ° 

o -

0

a

b4

O

4y ° 

a 

M> ' 

U

tw

p ' 

O

o

U

N

n

O

o

o

El

o

a 

o -

d

a; 

o

o '

0

o

A

o

o

O °  

d

a-

81) 

0

W) 

Ya) 

Uoyi-- 
1

KN, 

OWW

W o+' 

3, 

a -Y a

F• " .

cad)+ 

a) 

UU +

a°'';) 

T.} v.
sy.;

o °'

o

0 • 

YYa) 

a> '

t.. 

d ° 

a 

o

o

b0 

vco
o

aj °

V

OY0

A ,= 

w

Yd

M

Cis .

0O

O;

3O  

cd

00°
Mq

o

cd

v

to ° 

c° 

a 

4 

v

Q¢' 

oC•
0

o

oWU
U

O ) 

p. 

i

teo

a

v

c 

jbb

N -

0

cU ° 

0

o

bo

m

ty
0

0nb° 
Q

YN 

n

Ny
Cd

ccY

O

9)'

0d

U

bA

4~ 

C) 

cdo
d

on

U

0

0 -

0

Uw

0

0

0

cz

O $.

y

0 ' 

0

P, °  

j

cd

ti — -

o

fscd; 

i > 

a

Oo

oy

wo

op.
0 ' +' '

C

O ] 

U

b

3 >

U

0oopy
oU  

COo ° 
R0 - 

Nooo
O+ ,

pvC _.
CU "
i >. 

N

iica

on U

NO
U

ti

C) 

bU

C/

I

9

o

C7

V

S- 

rn4
b

Y0

S
yj

w

U)

o

V

to++ a

bb

ri

N

0

i

o

q

0a) 

v

W

b

j

co

d

o

O

b

A

b

o

u. 

0

ami  

cl

to

Ow °

v 

au to

O-

4° 

bn

N

U

cz

O

p

tiEn

co

U

cd

Y

Y

0U

0, 

i

0

ct3

O

In,;- 

n3

O

CO

0

0 .° 

d

06

C\ 



a) 

y

o

ob "•°^' °' 

C> 

C) 

O '

b

o .

kA '

b

E

cz > 

W ° 

S 

N '

d  

C

W

Q. 

0 ° 

Ci

O

0

0 > 

69

U

d

P

C

a

0

rco
0t'' + 
p

N

o

y

OLD

os

o° 

O

Q° 

o

o. 

o

3

Cla" 
o

U

C13 ., ° 

O ° 

Q) 

uQ) .. 

s~ > 

F 

U

i

b

g

U
s~ °' 

o ° 

a) 

o

o

o

A

p

oox
O ° 

sN~ -

o 

0

U

00 • ) 
U

05

al °

O

o

Z

cl

03

U 

0m;' 
IZ) 

CS  

d

d

0

ao

do
b °

k

8

of
rA ° 

q

0

to

r4

U

cz

cd

0

on

a) >, 

ej

Q9

co

s~  

5

O

O

O

O

o

p

W

d

M

Q) : 

C;

3

0 '

Ocq

rn

Oo
y

O

19

0

C;

3

c 

O
C, 

NO

O

O

It

CO
y  

v

U

3s~ 

y

O

d

oxca
toto
o

o

4

U

o

O

cn

69

r4

Qo -

c1

o  

0

4- 

b

n °co ° 

0

i



C1

co1

Ne " 

y

b

V] 

A

rL', 

t . •.. 

F. 

U 

Oy

i}

yy

3 _ 

cdN-
I

V

Q% 

Ci

Vi

O

y.
l

r-
1

U

FI ••••

y ' 

W

Y

N

O

a

on >, 

q

O

b

a; , 

W

o

cc)) ° -

d

id

o

a ° 

b °¢" 

O

C7

o

i

d

W

o

b

ri ? 

v

711

o

2

a) 

O° 

an

O , ° ° 

cn ° 

U

o

P. >, 

h

U ° — 

Ir

0

c - 

on

ou

C7

h

O

i 

i ° 

w ,°

c -

d

CA

CZ

Q

a 

o

C

o

CA

0

4. 

y

i

pp °
Lt, 

p! °.

L
i

a

W ••' 

cn • 

O "

f

zU
O

aon ° 

O44
0

q

O

o

O

p .

p

0 [ 

p

sy", >, 

U

Q " 

c 

tG" 

N "

G ¢ 

W

O

O

O

cd

y

d

U

N

N

N ¢' 

O

4• ( -

d

u

0

U

N

0

Q

a' ° 

U

y

a

a) 

a

on

O ' 

Q. 

U "

D

U

ti°> 

a? 

y

O

cC

G

V '

C

C

L" • 

O ' 

U

pr' 

4.
4 • ° 

t

l

y

V

U

N 

L' 

y

U +' 

C

U

CLI

p

ec 

Y '

ia-)

I ,

i,-

yy 

a'UU2q T}

yI

U4w 
Fi•.

1 . 

d> 

ybCC

Ua+

W

O

v

a °

wV

CCd

a

U

U

Wo
o

N

A4N

o~  

W

C 

0

O-

0

0

U " '

d > 

O

O,

Oy
O

O

1to

N

v

7

O10

cd ° 

U

U ° ° 

cz

o ° 

to

0

Y ..- • "' 

T•
y"

y

U

b +' 

Q ` 

O

y

y

a+ 

N ^" 

W

q ,

s.," 

a

0

U

N

o

al ° , 

W

ami

a ' 

i °

on

00 ° 

O

v 

0 *• °

O

UO °' 

a'"

i

p (

n °' 

a°
i

w 

U^ ^

o -

fl

0, 

0O
o

o

UW °

Q ` 

c ° ' 

o

to

o

a) 

a) 

a) 

O

0o

O

r °  ° 

abi

U ° 

o

vi

O

W

b

O

o.$p. °

t,

U

o

tiOO >

aU ¢°
U

b

bc  

b

No
O

o °  

U

ca

N

N

vu

Cd >

1

O ° 

p

p' 

O

0

ycu

C05 =

o

O

c 

N

3

JAapCpa • .

Q, 

bCt*
O7, , •„

vtiidrn , 

4a3 •) 
UOwa'

LGa)+ 

UYy 

W

O

dCOa4
a 

O3 `

anrnC 

caa) 

33°+ ^

N

In

N

Nd 

O

U O

p

t— 

0

p +' 

cq3

v

tU0UO
b

O'

C

0 ° 

U

C7 ` 

o

U °

y

N

2

O ' 

b

U

M

1

eQ

4

O

5

d

CP..
N'

2

3

O

MU
U

cQ) 
O

O

O

O

04

cd

10

O 

O

O  •

O

tiO

O

bU
o, 

U

UNO
N

aA ' 

U

U

5 -' = 

U .° 

6

Oo  ° ctU
cO

Oa

c ° 

C

1O

0crOo
zO ° 

cc

o

Wyo

U

U

U

a) 

o° 

u

o

y

O

Cp

o

a

0

o

oo
b

WhUcU
cn

C3

b

yp

p

OnaG

U

0

O

ca

g

o

x

U .° 

O

i

oUo
u

3  

U

h
F- 

o

OU /= 

co

U ° 

N. 

1401

r'
I0N



b

O. >, >' 

m

0

o

Z

y
O

a

4. 

ccs ° 

3

aai

p

c

0 

0

0

0

J5

C70

Q. 

o

o

on

a

o

o °' 

v° 

i

3 -

d > 

a`

zi

v

o

i .

o

y

10

to

a) 

y

a) 

0" ' "

3 ` 

a) 

co • ^ 

cd

a) 

v] ." 

y _

p " 

O

1i

O

4] 

o

as

Ob

C4

O.

0f"  .. 
A

0 ; 

OO0
FS

0

3

M

nN' 

o

o

o

0 °' 

y

Uy

cc

o 

O 

M

U

N

O

O

cz

O -

d

Z

O

rr. : 

d

m>
a) 

to

0

0

O

O>

ocd
y

o

Q. 

U

04

O

O

cz

O

O>  

C'

s •.

0. 

r

C13

0

N ° ; 

rn

O

O

o

cn ' 

Q

O

0

O

O "

Cl — 

OO
M

0

O

u

O -

0

0 ;.. 

n

p>—

to

rn

o°

Cis

yo

In

oo
R

0 -

0

0 U

cn

co

W

ros.
yl

C7bO
bcvOdi

iJy." 
aQi)

G , 

Nby0 +-' •_"' .'-
i'". + 

y 

U

t ' 

cz

w

O

ti

O —

O>

3ou
u,

ona>

O'

0o.-

0. 

Oy> 

0

at .

fl

O . 

b . 

0

N

3

m0
rn

n

u

coO "
Cc'

C

O : 

bA'> 

ocd

j

N

b0

O>• 

3o '

o.
b

ajb / 

rA

O

O

0 C+ 

y

O

4. 

0

4O
p > 

U0
ofl

w

ccoVcaO
3

0 

A ° 

Oi
0

O . -

ca) ) °

b .

rO
U> 

OO

a

IUD

cz

NUN  

a0O

CM
CZ ' 

O -

U

O"

O . 

c . 

N )'

O

Q

O

tiN
0

IR -

0

6 -

1-, 

o . 

0  —

M

rn

U

U

o >, 

u -

o

O

0

a

En > ¢, . 

N

c, °° 

U° 

O

O

M

O

o

b

b `

o

NO
cC

O

0 . + 

cz

c . 

C; 

U . 

H , .  

OCISU
N

0

CO

O .

O , 

On
OO

yC

xa , 
O • >

O

0

O " 

KN '
vOF >
O

c>

Z, 

0Q

Cd

O • 

Z

0

oA

b

U

y

d  

Y'  

b

b

0  

a '  '  ° 

o 

aUU° ° 
o

ai

O

t

C;
3  '' 

N

0

U

O

o

O

Q),

c

O

O + 

Q

a) > 

O

N

b

4] 

iU • 

a

N

o° 

o

o

m

o

cn

on

0

a 

0

to ' 

3

C13a

u

t) 

0

to

co

p

U

0

o

cd > 

y > 

yy

O

y

O '" 

i. 

G 

U

O

O

U

O

U . 

3

bu
y

Cd

a' 

C13oo

C;

3o

o

o ° ° ° 

a

b > ° 

o

OQ -

C

0

SO'.' 

t

b

U

O

to

0-

4  

o

a  -

o

Eo

M *(' ~ 

03 ° 

O

a

3

c.. -

a

ai

O

o

a' 

0

40- 

3    

00to

a  

a

cd . . 

O

O

O , 

O

l

U

m >, - 

U  ; 

Q. 
a 

rn

Wa' 

a 

E,> 

0 -

d

O

l

p

O

U > 

O

c ' ,

i

M

o

a ° 

vii

O

N

cd

Fr

N

O-

d>, 

t °> 
c 

4] ^ 

40, 

O + 

y

N

a) 

COJ

Ir., 

o0

on•  

o

o

y

Oo

un

w

o

a) 

N

0

b

o

U

N

b

0

o

0

3

0

0

y

0

p

O '

A

sN. 

rrn

cd

3 '

o

y

Cy • .

O

0

teO
r-! -- 

Y

Q. 

2

o

4, 

o

cri

a

O

x

a

v

p. 

O

v

0

Ca

W

rnbb
o

to -

C

y

N

y

co

o

0O

0

y

C4

w0

0

y ? 

a4

ani

yC, = 

cl
0

U

V

a) 

0

Q

b

O

sti

at

o

O

co

C,' 0

y

oto

cz

CL

pq

0

O

a) '

d +

Isl- 

rn

O

p

rn

o — 

Cl .

a

o

d = 

a 

o

o

Cd3

ca

00

0

3

0

y

0

0

ai

O

t

C;3  '' N

0

U

O

o

O

Q),

c

O

O + 

Q

a) > 

O

N

b

4] 

iU • 

a

N

o° 

o

o

m

o

cn

on

0

a 

0

to ' 

3

C13a

u

t) 

0

to

co

p

U

0

o

cd > 

y > 

yy

O

y

O '" 

i. 

G 

U

O

O

U

O

U . 

3

buy
Cd

a' 

C13oo

C;

3o

o

o ° ° ° 

a

b > ° 

o

OQ -
C

0

SO'.' 

t

b

U

O

to

0-

4  

o

a  -

o

Eo

M *(' ~ 

03 ° 

O

a

3

c.. -

a

ai

O

o

a' 

0

40- 

3    

00to
a  

a

cd . . 

O

O

O , 

O

l

U

m >, - 

U  ; 

Q. 

a 

rn

Wa' 

a 

E,> 

0 -

d

O

l

p

O

U > 

O

c ' ,

i

M

o

a ° 

vii



rn

bn

O

o0

O + 

c, 

U

0 '

C

F 

O

3 

3

3

O

C.  

i

0

U , 

t

v] 

p

U

Cj

op " 

vii • • - 

O

E." 

a

y

b

44

cd

p

o

a= '

o

N

O

4. ° 

g : 

ani

Q. ; 

o °' •

ti ° 

0 (

1)° °'° 

0

rn

5

0. 

O

cz   +

cz

U

y

p

0O'
O

O

N

N1N
ovU

O

bO

b

O

P

O

U

0

N , 

O

N

W4 •. 

Q% 

in

O

p

y

Y

CO . •

N•I

O

Y

0 ^`+ •  

N  °  (/

i

i -

I >, 

to
Vi"

N1  

N > 

vn

o + 

P+ 

w

N

b

N

cC " 

N

U '

0

0

o ° + 

cC

y

p >, 

J.. -- " 

y° von°V —

i

ao
C

o  

o

cz

U

o

3

Ol

oi

tn

ti

oQ

o

o ° 

1000° 
crj

o

3ai

0

o -

d

o

y..+

y " 

N

cz

O ¢ 

cz +

pU > 
O

N

cz

O +'

cz

o > 

U

N

co

N

p

a.) 

O'

by

to

y -

00 > ^, 
rA

04

on

HN

ti

0

dU
n0>, 

d

o ° 

Q)

t

oo  

on

PM '

ti °' 

y

c 

Qt
a > + 

03

co

on

ce

C13

b
4- 

80

4. 
cn

A " 

y : "" 

c 

o " 

3

O

on

a'  

c ° 

o

c,

3

U °+ 

N

C

i.+' 

c 

on - 

U

o

O

C, 

i '

G

bA `-. 

p

cam, 

o

D

cC

rn

ono °' 

e

a 

o

a ° 

a ° 

a 

o

o

o ° • " 

p

a' 

tj

Ga .

s; 

y

t"•+ 

z

i' 

y

a> 

N - 

0

b 

p

t; '

fl ' 

O

U " `

n ., 

U

ai

ani

o33
0

b

o

O

p >

N

a 

o

o « ' , 

c,

3

U

c;

3

O '

d +

4

r,

C4, 

El

O

N

N

v, 

w

p ° 

U

M

0a ° 

a 

on

OIn

CO

cd

U> 

FO

N

Fi

c 

N

O

c ° 

U . 

U +' 

N

3

W '

C " 

O

b
4. 

0

p

Ri

y + •.. 

0

N> 

U

y

U

Q+ 

U ; +- 

00 .- 

p

b

N

N

p

Vm
p

N

U ' 

U

cC

on

y

C]. 

b

O .. 

O

N

dco

cao >, , .. 
a

o

O

4. 

a

U

ct

o

a' 

C;

j

on  

O

N

CZ

b

ron
o , 

U

o

o

o

o

on

o

O

b

a

0

0 -

d

o

N

oo
En

0

t 

O

0

tot —rn

wNy +

N

s

O

p

0

0• .. 

0

w

y

y  - 

cis . 

W

En

to

0

0

a 

y

cC

t. 

iO •-- [^+—+ 

C 

bn

CU' + +-+ +..+ 

c ` •.

r

U 

w 

pv] + 

F." •.. 

p

O 

0O
U + +

U

N .

0

U

N

N

N



B



C













1TIR

Q. ^

C

in,

5

C40

03

O

Q

m

4-
4

0 '. 

4° 

Oti) 
in, 

d

pUq
N

Q] '

C

O

O °  . 

a)  

O

a) 

U

O° 

vj ° 

U

0.
i

cd

s. 

C3

N

US

U

C3

bA

bA

O  

a) 

40

U

C

U

cl

O

al03

co

U

b

C7

o

o

o

Q

o ° 

t64
E5

anonU
0

o

aoiv
i

o

U .

0

U

U

wI

M

V] 

r- 

F

BOJ 

In

una) 

C/) 

U] 

V) 

d 

cd-

0

d

a

d

d -

a

d

M

d

dam
d° 

W~-

0

O

W
y

U

W

o

W

o

W
C,. 

U

W

W 

x

Q. 

W

U

a

4, 

N

Q) 

O

W

o  

cd'

C

o

W
A.,  

cz

4-
4

U

o

N

V

N

O

bCd

x

UUP, 

4- 

U2OwO

4-

0

o

A

c

r
W)rA

M

O

W

a) 

r 

C

cn

NO

O

O

9z

Cd

cdCIAIA



D













J
MNON

U) 

C8

dao

o

o

Ell

OHO

O

con

o

cd

U

t

rA

O —

Cdcd
O

Ivo
bZ  

i ... 

1—" "

d

O

cd

cd

N

O

O

U

O

y

U

dq

N

p

to

O

cn

0

cdr, 
U

U

Cd

U

o

C

h

o

el

0

elCd
U  

N

cn

U

v ' 

U

te= >, 

OO
U

Nas
b

O

O

O

M

W

O

O

U

h  

U - 

U ° 

Q '

mu

P, ¢ 

N

Cd

Qn

U

t1

O

H ^

d

cd

cd

Q

o , 

an

cn    `  , , 

cd ° 

b
a     

c' • ° 

U  

O

Ln

W

cid " • 

cd

ct

Qn

cql

CA

Q" ,

W/ w

f3

U - 

Q

W , 

Rf .  

W

o

W

y

W 

W

a  

W

W

U

W

O , 

W• ...   

b 

4

cd

4" 

Z

In

x

UZU - ° 

h

W

r4inkn00knNOOM1.; 

GD0Com, bE 
O

N

I



E





















a) 

o

b

p

2

W4-
4cd

b

O

O

W' + 

N +~- ^

C

cC

cF; 

a $. 

bA , 

4. .

O

Osn

b

O

O

U

x ' 

O

cd "' 

O

O

N "

d

p' 

Gip

O

cd

U '. 

O

o ; 

oA
a; 

a 

b

a

o

otn

0 

s

0

tn

u `

d • 

Q.

b

j, 

Cd

m' ° 

o

o

3

O

M

o ° 

ami

Z

x

O

vi

o

1

O  

N  

N  

N

bA

Cd 

0

o  

Cd 

CdO
cd

O

4-
4

H .

o

4. 

O  

b

o

pv

oday
0

C

0 ° 

o -

1

z '° 

W ° 

cq , 

I

QUO

zN ,.   '

G  . '

O

O

s. ^" 

b

b

O

cn
s; 

fir" 

O

0

C) 

0

cd

CIS

cd

eq

d

O ° 

O

O

C4. 

OO

bO .
m

N + 

O , 

o

co

c

rO

cd

cz

N

NN
A

rn

O

N

i °' 

0U.
3. 

O

y

1+°

N'° 

c00 .) 
y  

U

C `. 

oaNb °

W

c

7

a) 

Cd .

5

3

4

b

rA  

Q

omo
0

otoai °

dd' 

b•b" 

a`Ca

Cd

O  

rn

t8

a) 

b0
o

o

oU
oQ - 

al

3

WWo°
o° 

1-

4

En

o

j

4

O

i

10r 
A

ob°

U

o

y'°

a

N " 

O

O

7 '

11-
4 

C

0° '-` 

o

aiQ,° 

n •-
r.

5a =.- 

oo
o

cd °'

o  

4. 

r.

r. '" 

b . 

o

N

O

O

4. 

O

b0 . 

9

O  

o

O

rW~ 

U

O

y

O + .

b

No -+ 

U

O

U

O

cd

pq

p,, • "

o

4. '

b • 

r" 

O

p

O

O

s. 

v 

O

0

10

1-

4

Cd

O°" 

W 

rWi • 

rW 

rW '°

Wte! 

pp

wW 

ai

W! 

Ww 

U

C (

z

O   .

i" 

N

W ?

dWcd

o'" 

UA

u

vi
U) ° 

u

4co
Q

4-
4

z`

d

d

m'

o

N

ao 

amoz
b4  

o,~

oo
o

ob
a 

U° 

W' , 

o

40

7S, 

o

3

PCd

0

tr. 

Oz



00

olet
0

0

U, 

4.

0

0

a

o

3

0

44 

UM

a • 

on

o

Cd

z

sn

W

rA'^ W

cd

Cd

rA

o

A

Cd

A

v ,--• 

c

O

o

y

o

F" 

N

a% 

vaenoo

21

00

r

U

o

FSU
o

f

U

oo

wo

t

lx

Cd

oNM

0z

N

EN



F

























Desirability of Goldsboro for Investment

 Military Community – Needed military housing.

 Central Location – In between other bases (Ft. Bragg, Camp LeJeune  ) 
and job centers (Raleigh, Fayetteville, Greenville, Global Transpark (Kinston).

 Desire for options for those who have had enough of Big City living and looking for the small city community. 

Reasons for Selecting Goldsboro

Seymore Johnson Air Force Base

Marine Corps Base Camp Lejeune

Fort Bragg

Greenville

Fayetteville

Raleigh

Kinston



Help Goldsboro Support the Military Mission Seymour Johnson Air Force Base | Goldsboro, NC

Support the Military Mission
• Provide housing options & variety to military families
• Currently not enough supply of homes
• Potential partnership with Seymour Johnson to 

provide military housing
• Support families wanting to establish roots

4th Fighter Wing

Rank Estimated 
Monthly Pay

Basic Allowance for 
Housing (BAH)

Staff Sgt (E-5) $3,500 $1,278

1st LT (O-2) $5,000 $1,539

Price Points Will Match Target Buyers

The target buyer is likely an E-5 or an O-2. 
The family of an O-5 LTC will not be the only ones able to 

afford homes in this neighborhood.



EXISTING
NEW HOPE

PATH

Provide Amenities & Improvements

Provide amenities and improvements for surrounding neighborhoods

• Pedestrian Trails and Greenway Connection

• Expanding multi-use path along Cuyler Best

• Connects to existing path on West New Hope

• Provides added shade, water fountain, and 
benches along West New Hope

• Trails around ponds – similar to hospital paths 
and Greenway connection. 

• Connection to the Reedy Branch Greenway

POND AREA 
SIMILAR TO 
HOSPITAL

REEDY 
BRANCH

GREENWAY
PEDISTRIAN 
AND DOG 
FRIENDLY



Future Greenway Connection

Proposed Future Connection

Proposed Site



Area Pedestrian Connectivity

FUTURE 
CONNECTION TO 
REEDY BRANCH 

GREENWAY

A
m

en
iti

es
 &

 M
ul

ti-
Us

e 
Pa

th
s



Area Pedestrian Connectivity
G

re
en

w
ay

 C
on

ne
ct

io
n 

& 
N

ew
 Tr

ai
l L

oo
p



Relief for Water Pressure Challenges

Gap in Waterline
Impacts Water 

Pressure

Provide amenities and improvements for 
surrounding neighborhoods

• Can improve water pressure

• Collaboration with City to add new pipes 
to “Close the Gap.”

• Project will add 1,000 L.F. of waterline 
along Cuyler Best Rd and create a loop 
system.

• Corrects current dead-ends in water 
system

Development Project
will bring 1,000 LF of  new

12-inch waterline to 
CLOSE THE GAP



Traffic & Zoning

There are 2 Choices:

CURRENT ZONING:
O&I-1 & SC

PROPOSED ZONING:
R4 Cluster

• Zoned Office, 
Industrial and 
Shopping Center

• Could add 16,000 
more cars per day 
than residential

• NO ZONING 
APPROVALS 
REQUIRED

• R-6 Residential

• Reduced potential 
future traffic by 
86%

There is NOT a “No Build” Option

CURRENT 
ZONING: SC

Shopping
Center

CURRENT 
ZONING: O&I-1

Office & 
Industrial

R-16

R-9

R-9

R-16

R-12

R-12

NB

O&I-1

O&I-1

O&I-1

O&I-1



Supports Traffic Relief from NCDOT

View of  Existing Multi-Use Path on West 
New Hope at Cuyler Best intersection

Road Widening on the way from NCDOT 
(at some point in future)
• NCDOT should not need additional R/W
• No R/W Acquisition will help STIP scoring

Proposed Neighborhood Ensures Critical Future 
NCDOT Needed Right-of-Way is Maintained

Turn lane 
Recommended 

in Draft TIA



TIA Recommendations

New 50’ Left Turn Lane + 
Widening Cuyler Best

Recommendations are 
from a DRAFT TIA. 

Pending City and NCDOT 
review.

Schedule for NCDOT 
intersection improvements 

are to be determined

New 200’ Right Turn Lane + 
Widening West New Hope



No Adverse Impacts to Stormwater Drainage

Stormwater Flow

• The project will 
ensure stormwater 
flows towards the 
creek and away 
from existing 
neighborhoods.

• Could help current 
drainage 
challenges in area 
by pulling stormwater 
to the creek



Rendered Site Plan



Increase Tax Base 

CURRENT 
PROPERY

PROPOSED 
PROPERTY

Property Value $1.24M $61.0M

Annual City
Tax Revenue $9,173 $451,000

Financial Impact

ADDS over $440,000 
Annually in revenue to 
the City of Goldsboro



1

a 

P, 

a

rn

OQ, . 

p

O

cd

rn

bA

s, 

a) 

N

c

UO

cqs

rn

0

cd

75

C6

C40

U

rn

O " '

C3

0 ; ; '

b

U

cd '

L7 } 

d4

v

a) 

to

O

O

H

O

cd

as

O

Cj

cis

4-
4

to

bj) 

o -

oma

3  

to

U

cd

to

CIO

cd

v

O

W

N° 

C) 

o  ° 

o

o

dna

14, 

o

M ° 

cd °

o °, 

V.,  

U

y

v 

M

O

U

r

O

O

Off+ 

a) 

L3

Qn

C7

U

Op
id

s —. 

cd

O

v] '

5

O ., + 

to

Cd

b 

0

00

ej

t

O

NcdO
m

Q

cd

cz

bA

CODcd
Cd

cn

En

rn

rn

Q'   

bA

Cb4     

Q  •   

U

a)   _  

a) -

d    ^' ' •  

bA
O  ' 

OU

O

U
a) 

U

N

v) 

v

a) 

v) 

5 ° 

w

d

5

M

d- 

d

d

d

d

d4. 

dam' 

Q

W  

W 

o

a

W

o

W '" 

W

W

W

o

W -

0

W

W

a

H

d

3

W

U

x

04

rnW
C7

W

W

o

W ' 

o • •• 

W

x41

U 

U

INII . 

3

C, 

Cn

woo° 

U +- 

U

M

V 

v

cd

O

P. 

cd

o

4. 

N

cd0Url0z



ci

U

U

M

O

oM

OO

Il

O

ti

cdU

O

M

V

O

A

z

ti • 

ONO

ed

c

C

o

F" 

oU

0

0

Cd

0

U

c

N

IME

ki



G













H













I



RESOLUTION NO. 2023- "
I y

RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO PURCHASE A NEW FORD F-250

WHEREAS, the Public Works Stormwater Section suffered the total loss of a pickup truck in an
automobile accident in May 2023; and

WHEREAS, the pickup truck was utilized to conduct and oversee daily operations; and

WHEREAS, the total purchase price of a new F- 250 crew cab pickup with a service body costs
approximately $ 63, 300; and

WHEREAS, the majority of the available funds ($ 45, 100) will come from the insurance settlement
for the totaled pickup truck and the sale of a surplus sweeper through GovDeals; and

WHEREAS, the remaining difference between the available funds and the purchase price
18, 200) will be paid out of residual funds in the current FY23 Public Works Stormwater budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 

1. The City of Goldsboro shall approve the purchase of a new Ford F- 250 crew cab pickup in the
amount of $63, 300 with funds from the insurance settlement, sale of a surplus sweeper and residual
FY23 funds from the Public Works Stormwater budget. 

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 20" day of June 2023. 

Attested by: 

qWK* 0-- 
Holly J n , Deputy City Clerk



J



RESOLUTION NO. 2023- q S

RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO PURCHASE A SOLID WASTE HOPPER

WHEREAS, the Solid Waste Division maintains and operates the City' s transfer station; and

WHEREAS, the transfer station is an essential component to ensuring expedient and efficient refuse and
recycle collection throughout the City on a daily basis; and

WHEREAS, transfer station operations require the use of a separate Hopper Compactor Combination
Hopper) for refuse and recycle collections; and

WHEREAS, the refuse Hopper was installed in 1985 and the recycle Hopper in the mid 1990' s; and

WHEREAS, due to the extensive age of the Hoppers, parts are unavailable and repairs typically consist of
costly remanufacturing of existing parts to keep both Hoppers operational; and

WHEREAS, the refuse Hopper is in the worst condition and requires extensive repairs in excess of $150, 000
to manufacture and replace the compactor' s main beam and pusher platen assembly, and to remanufacture the main
hydraulic cylinder; and

WHEREAS, the refuse Hopper' s steel support structure also has extensive corrosion and recently had
several X -type bracing supports replaced, but still needs several other structural repairs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that: 

1. The City of Goldsboro shall approve the purchase of a new Transfer Station Hopper Compactor Combination
in the amount of $350, 000 by utilizing $ 231, 000 in FY23 Solid Waste residual funds and through a fund
balance appropriation from the General Fund in the amount of $119, 000; and

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this the 20th day of June, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Holl on , Deputy City Clerk



K



RESOLUTION NO. 2023- ` V

RESOLUTION DECLARING SURPLUS AND SALE OF POLICE RADIOS AND EQUIPMENT

TO A GOVERNMENTAL UNIT PURSUANT TO NCGS § 160A- 274

WHEREAS, the City Manager or designee from time to time identifies various items or groups of items
to be no longer necessary or functional to the City's needs; and

WHEREAS, sound property management principles and financial consideration indicate the interests of
the City would be served by disposing of the property; and

WHEREAS, G. S. 160A-265 provides, at the discretion of the Council, a city may s e 11 o r dispose of
personal property; and

WHEREAS, G. S. 160A -266( c) provides for the disposal or exchange of personal property for any one
item or group of items by the City upon the adoption of procedures for disposal by the Council; and

WHEREAS, G. S. 160A-274 provides any governmental unit may sell to any other governmental unit
interest in personal property; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Pikeville and Town of Mount Olive Police departments have requested to purchase

the following items: Viking VP900 portable radio kits and Harris XG-75 mobile radios. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of The City of Goldsboro: 

Section 1. Council hereby declares the property surplus. 

Section 2. Pursuant to the authority granted by § 160A- 265, § 160A -266( c) and § 160A- 274, the City
Council of the City of Goldsboro does hereby authorize the disposition and sale of the Police
radios and equipment listed herein to the Town of Pikeville and Town of Mount Olive Police

departments. 

Section 3. Council authorizes City staff to execute the necessary documentation to complete this
transaction. 

Section 4. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

Adopted this the 20' day of June, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Holly on s, Deputy City Clerk

it

avid Ham, ayor



L



Le

O

N

r

0

WN

0

rq

cd

rl

Cd14, 

NV

N

r

O

Irl

O

O

N 

I  

M

O

In

C14

00

M

v' 

O 

L

L

U

U

O

Cds

69

69

69

Q

3••

i

Vi

CdW

p, '

C

F+ ON3•• 

O

U

pq

O

O

j

A` 

O

U, 

OLn00
o

t° 

o

cn

o
N

U

C7

c

U

O

O
N+, 

U

o

Cd

O

ON

4, 

v' 

o

0

0

O

vi > 

Ln

O

Q 

U `

d^

U

d
7:

b

d•

3

x

aUi

a3

ctjo

ocn
ani

o

Le

69

11,

111

69

169

O

O

O

V

O

N

r

0

WN

0

rq

c, 

cV

O

O

NV

N

r

O

M

ll

O

O

N 

I  

M

O

In

C14

00

M

v' 

O 

L

L

V

M

Cds

69

69

69

Q

69

11,

111

69

169

O

O

O

V

O

N

r

0

WN

O

flp

O
l- 

10

Cl

Ol

cV

l— 

l— 

N-- 

O

Q, 

NV

Ci

h

M

ll

O

O

N 

I  

M

V

00

00 — 

00

Cds

69

69

69

19

gSS
o

So00

9

O
l-- 

10

In

O; 

r

00 

O

Ln

ll

mOHO^ 
O

M

rl-

Cli

ci

M = 

C

U6s

69

19

1s

0cu

Y

o 

v

a

U

h

o

m

c

c

N

Co

0

0

w

0 `

0

0

0

0

LnQ

QQ

fQQA

N

NN / 

Nn

V) 

Nn

Nn

Nn

y

w

lu

pow

II



M



O 

O

M

N

01

O

M

N

0

0

8

O

vu

u

O

h

1

1

1

1

1

1

v

M

O

O 

y

d ^

O = 

m

C

M -- 

o -

4

N

i

vNi

N ,

M. .-

I

W .

M.. 

QN

C4-

1

y

M

vI .. 

O

D\ 

00

00 .

moi

O ~' 

S , 

S

S . 

oo

S

M

00

S

h

S

S

OO

S

C4
y

Uj

O •

O

C

t 

n

M-•

i (

V

M

l 

vi

M

N

O

N

U • 

N

O\ 

O

00
l 

M

S

00

M

00

vi

S

00

M

y "

O 

O - 

ci '

t

N .--

I

O, 

h

o0
l . 

O

7

N - 

O

h

oo
l 

N

Vn  

o

vi

C

n

U

W

3Q

i

Q

69

69

69

69

i•

r

i••

Ip
Vl

p

O 

O

O

O

ON

W

A  

O • 

Q

O

h

o6 -

4, 

00

S

S

O

S

S

N

r-, $ 

O

O

O

S

ry

4 

O •

1--

I 

y

U  

S -

ItO
00
t-.

8

S

00

h

M

V1

O

O

00

r- 

8

S

00

Vl

M

In

Cd ••

I ~.-

I

Cli

7

N

O

O

In  

r- 

M

I

1-

tN
O

O

kn  

l- 

m

y

W

w

U

O

N .

d

PO

c

N

v

N

O

v

to

vi

vi

v

to

N

M

1-

4

O

y

U

ds

bn

cACIA
va

b

U0-
4  

U

O. 

O

O

O

O

W
R"

Gn > 
crs

2 -

P

o

W 

Q

A "

b ° 

a >' 

w

ami

Z

W
E~ 

o

4-
4

d

f:

4

o

v

p, ¢,°

b

7• 

C

Z

0

G

v

O

id

A  

O 

O.° 

d

p. 

a

00

7

y

b

b

V

Ra

7

O - 

M  

A

co

O

A . ¢ ! 

r/ 

M

40.

0

aZ00
O

0

o

x

W

O

O

Ln

A

rn

o

O

zx3Ua4ain. 

d

UV1

ZU •

A '

O

S 

d

O

O

m

Cd

onO
01) 

O

O

W

W

3

7

7

7

7

C41

0-
4

vi

W

cd " 

aoi

A `

C

cn

voi

voi

v) (

n

v) 

v 

V) 

voi

voi

V

rpU
al

0

44

H

c9

d

O

W

W

O

O

a

c

G

c

Q

G

c

c

C

y

zx3 

e

s

a

a

e

s

Z

W

O

U

H

O

a

o

W '

W + = 

0

o> 

o

0

0

aCi

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

W

ti

s0. 1'

C , 

ZZ
a° 

A

o

05

V2

Ii

EOGO



N



IMNONzzwUdQO

O

an

oo

c 

v

oo

ri

vi

N

Ol

M

N

QM

O

10

lO

10

LV

V

U

ti

xy

n .

i

O • 

ti

y

69

bA

69

69

A

O

o

U

O

r+-•' Cl3 ,'C3

0 . 

1 

euu

opo

o

N

o

O

o

o

0 ..

I ( ',

C.I

0"'

I

O

r ' 

V
1

O

V

M

M \

O

V

r- 

oo [- 9

loM

Ri

y

cn $.. 

U

N

N

In

oo  ^. 

M

M

w

N

fl

O

0  

cd

to

Ln

O >, 

y

C

Q

69

FA

b9

69

4-
4O

O

u

0

b
i

1

r/ 

O  

i•

0- 1  

iii „ 

O '

b

N

U 

iC

cnO .. 

orom
0

0r-
oo

Up

OF)

U

O

U

b (

w

voryo 

ovory 

N

icer

o

s. 

O

Hc°°
6

S  

r- 

0

y

O , 

p., 

r. 

o  

W

N

N 

O

00

M

O

O

O

N

M 

D

M

M - y

co > 

rx

t

o.°

lc 

U0
3

cd

b

p 

N  

U '•" 

O '—' 

U

o  

U

6T. 

se

8w

NS-'. 

cn

U

cn

N

v'  •'   

F' 

c

cG ... 

oct

3

o

W

U

a

nUL1w

V 

s . . 

c/ 

V] 

u

a

8

W

S

W

W

o

Z

8$ 

8

a

N

W

U

Y

y

a

G

c

C

U °' 

W

r

U

O

O

p

s > 

0

0

0

0

x

Go

O

0`
O. 

Q

Q

Q

Q

F- 

ro

o

v

U

Q

Fo

F" 

M

1



O



I

cd

tO. 

V

O

o

0

0

ca

v

v

oCDod

NCD

O ° 

Cd

O

C7

y

A

O

rACdO
ds

ss

s9

ss

CdUn
cn

p

p4, 

co

800

80o

w

CA
CA

CA

O

4

i . 

O

OOy

bA

y

w

o

ct

o

w

Cc  

0

o 

N

0

a) 

U

0

b

zN
N

y 

p

Vim] 

W

ccd

S.," 

y ,, 0

U

V

y

U

O

o

o

g

O

p

o

0

0

O

0

0

W

U

V

cd

0

4, 

Q

3

o

o

p

Q

c3

N

b

y

d¢ 

c

cd

V1

O

t . 

cn

O

C,

3  

ct

s- 

O

N

n

U

R: 

O

U
o

O

Gr. 

Cua

4°-
i

x

7

0

0

o

W

cZ4

v

v

cd

N

iU- 

U) 

c7i

40

o

cz

w

3

o

W 

0

o

o

w

o

c

o

o

to

a

WcdO
W

a3

W 

U

v

N

o

o

r

Q

Q

w

30'.
5 ° 

n

cd

U

rA

I



P



O

o. 

O = 

ni ^

p

4+ 

N +- 

4. 

00

8

00

r

O

O

il, 

UU . 
ct110

E

A

00

N

n

N

N .. 

Q      

it "

O  

Li •

3  ' '     

M

M  

M

M ,. 

fZQ '
J, + 

w

69

69

b9

69

O

O

rA

cd

E

is

O

C 

Q

O 

O

40  

O " 

O

O "

O

8

8

e

o

H

p5

c 

v7

F. 

4 

0Okn
a+ 

O -

v -

C

C= 

O

y 

Ua
z $., 

M

7

g

t

i

t

i

C.

j

N

i•"

r

W

Tr

ON

d +' '

1: 

C8 "

i "

O

N
v' 

00
v'
i

l 

oO

vj '•

L
i

U

Q. 

A

0

W

V
4-, 

3

w

M

M

N

N

N

O

u, 

O

o

U

cd , 

A

O

c

3 °; 

O

U

O

o, «

cz

sh. 

U

4a

O

bA

z-+ , 

a

6A

s

6Fi

s9

o

Z

C) 

o

3En
72

U

a

00

a 

Q

W

cd

o .

cl ° 

4. 

4. 

fl

a

88
S

X888 _ 

as

U

E

ion `- 

m= - 

O . 

d

U

cz .

8

8

UZ

W

Z

cn

4. 

00 (

liN

C

tz

y '

c

N

En

en

p

Oiii• 

y [ 

O ~= 

O

U

N

ti

o -

o

4, ° 

a

44

o

P. 

L

a

4r

O

cl

r" 

O

V] 

a

Q.

0. 

O ^

C + 

L, 

N

O  

4r  

0

Ri

W

amcpIr
i = 

o

chi

c 

En

0

U

c

Eli] 

cd

v 

v , 

v ' 

v) 

d

v -

o

Z

v °

A

W

Q. : 

8

g

cn

cn

un :

e

z-

coll+ 

L

0xw4°: 

WWW
o

a

Via°' 

3x

Q

E

o

O

uC2
o

wua
o

a

C7

v 

a1

3

x

H

w

H

Q



Q



zzWUQO

U `-

A

CF) 

Cl

a3

cd

U

O + 

41.
1 ,

fl

P , 

O

ccd (' 

0

cd

Cd

O

U

N

cd

c) 

ani

op4-
i

t+-

4

U

C) 

cts

c}

n

U

O

U _ 

W

Q

l

y ' 

4-
1

r, 

O

cUC

W

W

a

O

N; 

N

p

O ~ 

O

O

CCSE

Q " 

Q

p

cd

U

N  

b " 

Cd

no ", 

Ski

U

4r

O

N

w

Po
a 

Cd

W

oq

O

4-• 

s 

W

o

CIS

W

W

CS

W

o

o `

o

ItiEm

J, 

u7

M

0T
0T

O

N

Q\ 

W) 

v' 

i

O

CC

c

00

cc

O

O

00

Q 

CT

o

T

O

O

t 

kn

c

6

00

vi

o 

C

00

Fq

rn

IT

N

r - 

o

d

q

u

M-
i

N

N

M

OM

09

ros

G'

s

ItiEm

J, 

M

O

N

kn

Q\ 

o

W) 

O

CC

c

00

O

N

T

M

CT

o

w

T

O

O

t 

kn

c

6

00

vi

o 

C

00

Fq

rn

o

i

o

d

M-i

N

N

M

OM

z

N

N

N

a
U

cys

ds

c,

9

v

cu

d

Q

C/] 

Z

Z

v

6`

1

y

o

b

ItiEm

J, 

M

O

I

M

CT

O

CT

O

u 0

M

w

C

Ic 

M

T

O

O

i

O

p

d

M-i

N

N

zU

cys

ds

c,

9

v

cu

ItiEm

J, 

o

u

x

w

V
4, 

o

v

cu

d

C/] 

Z

Z

v

0

y

o

b

w

z

w

we

ow

vu

a

u

o

ai

au

U

c 

wcn.

wHH 

ItiEm

J, 



R



O

O

W

ON

N

O

W

O

O

cl

w

Q

00

to

y '

A

cn °' 

moi. 

o

g

o

v

A
C 

U

O

a1

p

U

a) 

tV

a) 

o

c,

3~ 

U
c 

ry
4..' 

a. 

C7

3

0

0

lu

44. 

0 " 

Q

U

x

U

W

o
0
4° 

a¢ 

co '

C

C;

3u

1>
1 — 

O '

b

U

y

2

U

cnop
a) 

sU . 

N

Pr

W

U

a) >, 

bA ... 

5

ON

UA

NCd

N '' 

U

V

x

tp

0> 

WU > 
N

co

0 

pPK  
r- 

2C;

3AAO`
d

W

CO

O

000a) 

O

x

w

w0
A ° 

c20

O 

cd -

S

v .. 

O 

O 

o 

cz ° 

ani ' 

O

cOi

U

p

1

O _ 

NO

Ey ¢ 

to

en

9b' 

C, 

pscn. 
A. 

A . 

b

ioouI
o

W

o

an
a) 

oo ° 

o

0

j"
y

C > 

C,

3N .

b

W >

l

It

Q) 

cu , 

z

o

O

O

3 . 

o

o

o ' 

m

o -

d

o

0

O + 

x

N
C 

W

w

Q.

4ai

z

z

esa

O

S

S

S

O

N

N .

ti

ti

NN .•

i

OC,

O

L) 

p

M

M

M

M

M

w

0

UUUUU

o  - 

U

M

26 `? 

c

A ° ° 

c

U

00o

dcv

O

oZ3

33iN

g

5p

Ol

O

N

Mpg •' .

0 .

0 .

0

O

w « 

0o

71

C5

NN
N

6. ;; ...

Nr•
I

V

N

V

ami

G_ 

A

N

N+ 

N"

N" 

W (]

r .

A -
i

Q. 

P. 

0. 

W 

e

tr

ai

o

Q

N

0

0

0

0A

a "• 

tiQ

a ¢ 

U

N

N

AAAAAx
p ° 

q

q

qU

a

oN

eNUUUUUUp
O

O

HQ

F6O3b

AO 

y' 

iy

CS ,•

1 

y '

a 

AW

pp, 

ryo

C

0

U

W

a

Ck

xa

n

CO '

Upq. 

F

U

m

y

0

Cq  

R1  

v •

o •

o •°

o ° 

GO

W

W

W

W  

0.
1

GO .

o  

d

o '>

o  

y

p  .  •

2  

UCU' 

wwwwv,

AAAUAAUF

WUuW) 

U<¢

a4U¢

E

a

i

O

S

S

N

O

O

pop

r

N

M

N

00

W

S

N

O

i ' 

cli

p

O

7

O

S

yy

pOp

M

N

j. 

w

Vii

v
1

O
1

b .
N... 

R
r

CY,.

v1... 

rl

N.. 

N

fA

69

61

61

69

69

S

S

bNNN

o

r4

b

Nd
ON10

n

C

00

10

O

w

1

f

N -

9p

r

1N

Q] 

b

M

00

O\ 

N

0p1 

1D

9

M

M

M

M

m

N

Ea

69

6 

bC

S

S

S

S

S

S

C
C

N

10

N

M

N

O

M

O+ 

M

O

O

r

N

M

N

O

r

0p

Op

O, 

p

01

NN

S

O

71

4

ro. 

T

O 

h

n

11
W

Ci 

N

N

v1

vii

S

O 

C

M

M

M

o.• 

0U

by

v3

ss

sA

bs

6r, 

esa

O

S

S

S

O

N

N .

ti

ti

NN .•

i

OC,
O

L) 

p

M

M

M

M

M

w

0

UUUUU
o  - 

U

M

26 `? 

c

A ° ° 

c

U

00o

dcv

O

oZ3

33iN

g

5p

Ol

O

N

Mpg •' .

0 .

0 .

0

O

w « 

0o

71

C5

NNN

6. ;; ...

Nr•I

V

N

V

ami

G_ 

A

N

N+ 

N"

N" 

W (]

r .

A -i

Q. 

P. 

0. 

W 

e

tr

ai

o

Q

N

0

0

0

0A

a "• 

tiQ

a ¢ 

U

N

N

AAAAAx
p ° 

q

q

qU

a

oN

eNUUUUUUp
O

O

HQ

F6O3b

AO 

y' 

iy

CS ,•

1 

y '

a 

AW

pp, 

ryo

C

0

U

W

a

Ck

xa

n

CO '

Upq. 

F

U

m

y

0

Cq  

R1  

v •

o •

o •°

o ° 

GO

W

W

W

W  

0.1

GO .

o  

d

o '>

o  

y

p  .  •

2  

UCU' 

wwwwv,

AAAUAAUF

WUuW) 
U<¢

a4U¢

E

a



O
l 

O

M

O

0
0

0

O

O

O

O

o0

oo

O

O

p

p

p

O

M

r ' 

p 

p

O

p

p

r

V 

O ,

tnp

O

O

O

S

O, 

p

O

S

vMi

S

y
j

S

S

a

q

v

o

o

O

OO

p

v

O

n

O

O

o

p

o

O

O

O

o

oc

n

O

O

O

o

O

O

VM

OM

r

r

v

v 

O

M '

7

voo' , 

r ' 

a

pOp

S

v61

M

M , 

r

r

r

S

O

b

O_ 

p

7
l 

O
F,

j

o0

T

M

l, 

F`

i. 

p

o), 

01, 

a

v

v

r, 

o0

25 '

n

a

r

o

i

v_ 

rn

N

e

h

O

r

o

v

o00

d' 

o

0O

O

d

d 

o

a

oo

O

V '

D

v

o

M

a

ri ,+

i

o

b

v, 

FL '

1, 

oo

N

to

o` 

a " 

L

n

oo

r _ 

tn

O

r

N

r

N ^+ 

M

W ^ 

N

N

r

M

N

N '

tea' 

O
t- 

v

N

V

10 .

n

h

N

6Mi

r

N

M

N

N

N

N

N

r

N ^ 

N ^ 

N ^ !

V

GG

69

fin

69

69

I'

s

F/

9

69

Gn

V3

Ki

66

69

69

69
U) 

Vi

H9

69

Fig

69 (

y9

69

UY

oc

SS

So

SS

oSrno

SSSS$ 
opp

vri

oSSSg ,
Mn,

oM,• 

vrivi,  

o0

o8rno
SS

Sen

SSrnm

o

v

g

a

rn '' 

go

ornrnN
MO

VM ` 

op
o '

02Ci'.
0w

r

e

o

o

v 

o

od

r

r

y

o  

OS
v

r,

vo _

roo

25a

go

S

n

rMrMr
rr  

SN

v  

cr-
n

o

N

o

wn

h
0

7

0

C

00

Vt

rl

W

m ,

l1

r

VMi

W

of

S

O

h

N

r

N

er+ t

W

00 ^ 

N

N

r

N

Oi

r

r

M

b

v

M

VI

L ^ "" ^ 

h ^ 

h

O

M

N

N

N

N

N

F

M

M

Y ,

r

Q

69

Vf

69

V3

69

Vf

6H
f/

j

613

69

N9

69

V3

65

fig

V1

69

V3

613

69

Hf

69

69

CD

r- 

O

m

C> 

O

O

O

0

0

0

0

0

0

00

O

O

O

O

C

l

O

C

v1

O 

n

O

O

O

O

O

CO

10

m_ 

O

O

O

C2

M

V

00

T

N

CO

S

SCD

Ooc

C

o

a, 

ry

00

r

rn

N

a

o

0

0

0

g
m

O

O 

N

H

O

N

b

N

O

O

O

O

M

O

D

N

00 \

O

7

10

M

h

N

S

M

C

V1

V! 

C

M

tV. 

M

F7

L
aV

Vi

03

tfi

69

69

V3

EA

503

69

V3

69

V3

6S

bn

V3

Q

4

a

pQpppp 

U

O

O

C

O

a

O ` 

ON

N

N

N

N

N

O

O

O

O

O

O

f4

eq

mooWd^
FSoo14
oNo^ 

0

N

O

N ^ 

U".. 

N _ 

p

O

N

p

N

v

w

N

w

W

W

O

Fey

O

N

eq

o^
o

Wv

V

O

O ^ 

N

N

N

N

O

O

O

O

Nr

N

t+ 

N

N

ON

G

G

y 

U

A

t- 

0

U

U

A

o

U

N

C7

p

C7

N

d

e

U' 

c

o

oo

d

d

N

N

x

x

x

x

w

y

N

ai

y

a

u

eq

AUWNorW

QFaacc° .
vQS> 

5

aisdwva, .
LO

Qt7

Noo

AN

i

ca ,

gE> 

cO

1 •$

EF3wk
o^ 

y

Nv, 
a° 

oaE° 

oa

xdoqN ,
U." 

yp _

aEoFaE
E

EFxC

ox~ W

xyo

rna

xr

UOxy

mro

x~ 

Ux

xn' 

x•¢

xLtc' 

NN
or- 

0

OO
o

9

U

0UUUUb ~ 
b

r

a = 

c

3

tiG

w

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

W

yO 

ppP, 

W

O

aU
90

N

U

U .

oN

NoNWx0y

U0xLOyctEEa :

xQynoy

FOQxynoy

ON

a

Fw
O .

p

i

O

O

O

O

O

OaO • •
g

t

U

C

F

x -

zq

O  

N

aa

U

m

O

O

o

v

go

v000
0

O

O

O

OUUQUodw4xQQn
Uuo

0

wxxF

Wa
QUn .

a¢EoF yhaL?i

NW0x.ar., 

x

QUx
n' 



S

O

O

O

O

O

r

O

p

S

O

O

p

p

OC

C 

O

M

O

O

OO

O

h

0

b

W

O

h

0

N

O

r

Q

00

O

M

h

7

S

M

M

M

M

M

M

fV

M
l- _

M (

V

M [ 

M

l 

N

O

M

O

N

M

O

N

Lp

m

w

N .^ 

oo

e+

n -, 

o0

o

M

M ° 

a `" '^ 

a

o' "

l "

1. °° 

o, 

N

vi. "

S, 

oo

rn

O

N

a

S

M
t 

kn

00

V

N

o0 

o

00

N

N

S

O

0
0

O

O

c

1

7

O 

7

c•

1

NV

S

7

N

7

O. 

T

Ch

A .. 

00

y

N

N

69

Gn

H9

69

69

59

65

6-
9

69

59

69

ffi

H9

59

F/

9

59

69

CD

g

u

S

S . 

O

S

p

r

S

p

S

O

O

p

O

O

O 

O

M

OO

p

000

S

n

S

O

M

S

n

S

O

O .

h-•

C

pO

O

o0

M

M [ 

p} 

pp

M

M

M

h

M

M

O

M
l 

M

O

M

h

M

O

O

S[ 

7

M

W

O

O

O .. 

M .. 

F

v, 

h

OM

CNA

O 

M

00

N

O [- 

N .. 

h

vl

O

en

M [ 

V'
1

N [ 

l 

r

l 

1 

oc

O

N

7

O

M
l- 

N

N

00 

D

07

r [ [ '

It

b
t- 

I- 

M

N^ 

O

C

M

N^ 

O

7

CN ,•"^ 
7

7

e} 

O 

ON

O .-. 

CTS .. 

IL ..., 

00

m

M

M

Q

69

N9

f/

9

s9

fA

69

69

fA :

A

d9

69

69

H3

69

N9

69

H3

o

0

9o  

oho  

a

P

p 

69

69

FA

Ef

6H

EA

b9

d9

69

Vi

H3

b9

V3

Q

69

65

69

d9

xCU

a

tj

N  

o  

A

o

M

U

a

o

e4

o

z

N

a + 

O [

yJ

Ne

e

o

o

4

V

r 

Nrr

N  

N

N

x

A

A

U

rj" 

o

U

N

x '

y

O

a' 

U

M

o

S

W

H

O

OQU
U

FU

o .: .

4" >

W

C

rnO0, 

rnOa
o

y

U

Q" 

u/ 

Len
N

W

a 

y ' 

N

U

ClC

N

A

N

m

o

O

N

odd
ao •

o

o

Z

d

y> 

d 

aG? 

d

0.'.

g

cx

a

t ;°

a7

S

n

C7 > 

U

b

M

ti > > 

W

O

x

U

U

u

o

C5 . 

u, 

oe

d

d

u

W

g

a, 

U ¢ 

U ¢ 

o

66

d

v

o

W

W

W' 

P: 

o

o

W

o

C7

C7

C4

C7

C7

W

O

x

o

a'

ai ° 

pa > 

pa

a°

i .`

0

aA
A  

a

o  >  

O  

aO  

0   

6 > 

A

A

O

O  °' 

A

Pa

y

x¢

Uxa
dv, 

F

0 >

wu

U

daa
n

F

0

w0

xF

wx ¢

xv, 

0

n

0uu
x

F

w

OUAUxx
F

MNONCr. 
4i

C bC> NyOy
Li

Uba 40. 
s

yN0y

UA2i



S



RESOLUTION NO. 2023- ` / 

RESOLUTION DECLARING SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZATION FOR

DESTRUCTION OF CITY OWNED BALLISTIC VESTS

WHEREAS, the City Manager from time to time identifies various items or groups of items to
be no longer necessary or functional to the City' s needs; and

WHEREAS, sound property management principles and financial consideration indicate the
interests of the City would be served by disposing of the property; and

WHEREAS, G. S. 160A- 265 provides, at the discretion of the Council, a city may s e 11 o r dispose
of personal property; and

WHEREAS, G.S. 160A -266( d) provides a City may discard any personal property that is
determined to have no value; and

WHEREAS, the Fire department has submitted for surplus seventeen ballistic vests that have

expired and are no longer warrantied, and the disposal of these vests should be done securely to prevent the
possible use against law enforcement; and

WHEREAS, Fiber Brokers International, LLC has been in business for 15 years and serve both law

enforcement and the military by providing secure destruction and recycling of aged ballistic vests and other
ballistic materials. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

GOLDSBORO: 

Section 1. The City hereby declares the property surplus. 

Section 2. Pursuant to the authority granted by G. S. § 160A- 265, G. S. § 160A - 266( d), the City of
Goldsboro Council hereby authorizes the disposition and transfer of City owned ballistic
vests to Fiber Brokers International, LLC for destruction. 

Section 3. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

Adopted this the
201h

day of June, 2023. 

Attested By: 

Holly-Konek, Deputy City Clerk

avid am, Mayor











T



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-% 

RESOLUTION DECLARING SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZATION FOR DONATION OF FIRE
EQUIPMENT TO GLOBAL GEAR INIAITIVE, LLC

WHEREAS, the City Manager from time to time identifies various items or groups of items

to be no longer necessary or functional to the City' s needs; and

WHEREAS, sound property management principles and financial consideration indicate the

interests of the City would be served by disposing of the property; and

WHEREAS, G. S. § 160A-265 provides, at the discretion of the Council, a city may s e 11 o r
dispose of personal property; and

WHEREAS, G. S. § 160A -266( c) provides for the disposal or exchange of personal property
for any one item or group of items by the City upon the adoption of procedures for disposal by
the Council; and

WHEREAS, G. S. § 160A-280 provides the Council authority to donate personal property
to a non- profit organization, and public notice has been given at least five days prior to the adoption of

this resolution; and

WHEREAS, the 501( c)( 3) non-profit, Global Gear Initiative, LLC, is a national humanitarian

relief group that specializes in collecting firefighting gear and distributing to countries throughout

Central America to firefighters that do not possess safety equipment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO COUNCIL: 

Section 1. Pursuant to the authority granted by § 160A- 265, § 160A -266( c) and § 160A- 280, 

the City of Goldsboro Council does hereby declare surplus, and donate the fire- 
fighting equipment listed herein to the 501( C) non-profit, Global Gear Initiative, 
LLC; 

Section 2. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

Adopted this the
20th

day of June, 2023. 

Attested By: 

Holly one , Deputy City Clerk











U





O

s: 

O

UU

O

O

Co

U

U

N '

C

U

p

m

0

0

cd

7:
1

th^- 

w'

bob
0° 

t° 

a

o

o

w°

b

5-

d

o

O

a 

m

V

cd

w

p .

b

cC „ 

12

O

y •   

0
o

a

o

0

C", 

I

w

4

s:)' 

O

y

3 .

d

cd

0-

0

0

co

CG

4-

1

0 •  

N

y0

U

0

ami ° 

cl

Q

a 

N

W

o° 

0-

0

on

vi

pq

o '

fl

crsb

e04rA

bb

rn

4-
4

o

m

ami ! 

0  

x-,>, . 

3  

o

s~ 

U

N ,

0.  

y ° !>~ 

10

oo

0-

0wCo
co

4-
4

cfj

U •+ 

C: 

N +' "

C

F. 

0

co

v, 

O

to

CO) 

a 

O

N

cc04
a 

cqjd.
dOo
d

do

d, . 

Qw <(

1) 

dYa
w

tNy

xwx

G '

d

C) 

C) 

g

0

U '

d '

o, dz
N — 

7:

1U
cUn

o

w ' 
i~ 

vUi

Q, =

dos

o

0

ti

CJ

914

Mm

Q

4

Q).  

N

C7 "   

b

b

5
c" 

Q. •   

wwA

O

O

O

O

0

o

O

o

0

C

0

C

O

O

O

O

0

0

0

0

Lm

M
t— 

O

GPIM

0

0

0

0

W

10

O

O

0

00

114

O

eM

O

4

O

0V - 

O

o

C`

o4e
M

M

zwwzWCS

00bA
bpq

Cd

eq

Cd
a

c

v

44

w

as

SII

G& 

MIS
SII

ull

0
4

a) q
Lot

M

0

0

0

0

M

Lo000
UO
C4
NS] 

sa

000

CZ
O

k

eq

0V

M

UzwwzWCS

00bA
bpq

Cd

eq

Cda

c

v

44

w

as

SII

G& MIS

SII

ull

04
a) 

qLot



0

00

0000
o

O

o

O

O

O

O

O

o

0

0
0

0

0

0

o

O

O

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

p

o

0

0

O

O

O

0O

0O

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

p

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

o

0

0

0

0

o0

0
0

o
o

O
O

O
O

o

0

o

q

0

0

000

0

p

O

O

o

c0i0

m

ciC
4

06

cieq
N

oo

co

o

ua

w

00

Lo

cq

0o

ai

4
o

m . 

A

q

0000
0000
O
0

0000
O
0

o0
LO

OLo

cm4o

0

00

0

0000000 -+ 
1-
4

000
0

0

0

0000
0

cq

eq

cq

000
0

00

0000
0

cioo

O 

NOo
cc4

mo0
m0

000
00

CY66
CD

CA

CYS
0o

L6
t--: 

L6c6m
L--

4ccm
N

o

cioo
ci

c+

S

0666u6
CIS

m 

o

o

uo

o

o

co

t- 

m

m

00

ONotiNOom
j

cq

M

C) 

C  - 

0

00

oo
4

moo

p

cc

m

to

00
O

cq

o0a 
cq

c 

cc

ci

c6

L

00

L

tf 

C

oS

ci

ci  

o - 

00 - 

C6

06' 

r

C

cy 

L

406

Lo

Cq (= 

M

ri

ci

o

4

00

Q) - 

eq

O

0

N

cq

00
N

m
t- 

0

o

m

oo

o
L- 

oo

C

o

Cq

0

o

00

cq

0

ti

ti

o " 

cq

00

rt

C6

C

o

o

N

cc

m

d

m - 

N

m

N

c. 

c

co -  

N0

y

r

N

clci

O

m

cV

r- 

cqci

0

0

o000
O

OLO0
O

o

0

0

OLO

0

m

00

4o
0

0

0

0

0

0 

00

0

0000
0

1

cq

C11o000000c 
cq

00

r

ci

o

r

N

O

cc

CIS
O

cY6
O

N

c

t-: 

c+

S

o

o6

L6
t- 

L--: 

L6
c

L-.: 
4

16

cvs

N

ci

o

ci

co

00

0

0

L6

c+

S

i7

ao

co " 

0

Lo

u0

00

0

1

o

00

0

cq

0

N

00
m

cn

00q

m
t- 

0

N

N

o

a 

0

00

o

00

N

cq

O

O (

MN

p

N

o

o

N

M

o

N

oo

1-
4

q -

1

00

w

O

O

u0 -

4

O

co

O

cc

ci

m
r-

4

LO

cc0

0

o

ci

o

cc

s

ci

06

C15

ci

L

co

cr

ci

ci

cc

00

4

ce

06

ci

N

L6

C

ci

L

4

C

i

d' 

CO

d' 

GV

c'

rJ

0

O

O

O
09

O
L

00

O

N

011

m

o

cq

0

d' 

O

kSa

M

O

co -- 

O

aV
C'

rJ --

i

c0] 

COO
C+

7

CSV

c0] 

m

O

O

L 

CO

t -

CO
c

C6- 

Cfl

ti

ej

r

ej

r

U

E03

Ef3

w

Goo

Ef3

ff3

EH

EA

w

b4

6R

fA

EA

Ef3

H} 

cl

c

N

cq

NCV \ 
cq

O

O

O

aV

cq

sem' 

cd

u

1

by > 

w '

C

O

s

a; 

P 

d

Q' 

p

u

O

M

s. 

v

ami

N

v

G. 

s

M

U

o

o

o

O

o

o

m

o

q

O

cz

m

y

o

GO

q

e* '

C

O -

o ^

C

s, 

TS

m .

0 , 

v

O

Lj

p

m

u > 

41 O

C

cd

4' 

Pi  

M

C)

O  

C) 

api  

ma"  

m

W

A

O

a

y 

w

m

W

y

zs

o -

d

04

o -

d

r+ -

ri

o

O

O

O

o

o

Ey

w

o

O  

O

O

O

O

s 

Z

o

O

s. 

F

m 

w

g

o

C) 

aa) i

W

C) 

m

w

o • ` 

a0i

eC

eo

o

o

v

c+ 

s 

O

eo

s

O. 

eo
c 

U

o

s. 

o

p> 

m

o

m

eo

Q

p

p

m " 

c 

k

Q

cq

Ccp

x

N °

o

a

o

O

o

0

o

U

x

a 

se

o

a

o

W

c 

c. 

m

W

P' 

N

a 

W

m

cu

W

a 

cV ° 

W

W

i7

P4

O ° 

o

o

p~ 

O

W

W

q °

D

a 

o

9

W

O

C3

U1

O  

o

ca

m

41 > 

1GL
Q

F

o

o

WO

FO
p"-_

oF

C4Uf
UU

E

UEF
F

P, 

P- 

E<

E-

Pi

E

E

P4



O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

y
U

as

O

O

Lo

O

of

LO

ALO

LO

O

O

L

L

4

L

W

CSV

C 

W

A

q

Ef3

EH

H3

EL} 

fH

Ef3

Ef3

ffJ

EH

O

O

O

O

O

O

N

m

m

O

O

O

00

CV

co

O

O (

0

O

O

O

r

O

ti

o0

O

O

O

O

N

CD

O

O

O

N

0

ZS

N

6i

r

O

N

LO

tC

0

00

0a7
r- 

LO

O -

0

0

10

O

a) 

CD

O

Lo
cD

m

m

o0

N

091-

400N
Cfl
CO

crJ

O

CV

O

00 - 

O

cel

CV

LO

N

cM

CO
O

L7

O

N

O

y

O

69

O

C

6i

L6

m
t- 

m

m

00

O

N

1

L

O

C

O

66

O

y

LO

1-

4CD

N

N

CD

LoCD

Cfl

O
69

0V

Lo

0V

N

d

m .-+ 

LO = 

ALJ

Oa 

J

d

yy" 

Cm

EA

y} 

E03

Ef} 

Ef3

Pia

EH

EA

O

O

O

O

co

t- 

cq

m

O

O

O

00

N

m

O

O

O

O

O

N

O

N

00

CD

d" 

O

O

O

d" 

N

O

O

O

O

C9

06

a

LOO

cD

O

609

CSD

COO
N

O

000

Lj
O

O

O

S-

4

O

00

N

m (-

i

OCO

00C6

O

O

C11

CV

O

CV

d

00

O

CV

O

O

O

O

erJ

O

O

L

O

a7

a7

N

N

d" 

t

CV -

4

d' 

O

N ,--

i

N

is

a•
D

Lo

O

w

Ln

ifJ

Co

O

CD

00

14

m

r-, 

Lo

m

Lo

00

4

m

U

C

cli

4GOD- 
U

Gq

GOD - 

0

O

C

C

O

O

O

O

O06

CrJ '

t

000

O

m

L- 

00 -

4

O

O

C

C

O

Cfl

O .
1

1-
4

EA

O

O

O

o6
00

O

O

m

d

O

r -
i

69

O

O

O

X0O
m

00

O

r -
i

c 

c 

C

u

s

bi) o

Cl) 

H

4

4' 

0 : 

A (

1) 

o

C) 

o

m

w . 

41

4

44

cd

C~ 

v

L1

4 

m

a) 

Cl) 

cD

p

o

a) 

cu

Z'

cl

v

A

O

s. 

m

F -

o

m° 

U

O> 

R' 

w

fr, 

O

C

o

a

y

k

o

La ) 

o

y

1' 

w

m +' 

d ' 

m

W° 

m

w` 

w
a (

3) '

Cd

C~ 

crJ

C. 

crJ

m

p. 

s

R

m

m

m

s' 

cz

m

m

O. 

m " + > 

F

x

cV

a 

k

mw
P 

m

Ar

cv

P, 

sc

a>  

m — " ° oA °

N

m

y , 

o

fy

P4

41

F

fs

E- 

O

U

w

Wu
E-  

E- 

Pi

0.' 

U

U  

E°- 

Lo



X



RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 11

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE PURCHASE ORDER FOR

TELEPHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT

WHEREAS, in accordance with our Capital Improvement Plan, the current telephone

system is due to be upgraded, having not been upgraded in five years; and

WHEREAS, any updates performed on our current phone system will not be compatible
with the existing phones; and

WHEREAS, purchasing new phones with the existing system is less cost effective than
purchasing new phones with the system upgrade; and

WHEREAS, an updated phone system will be easier to manage by IT staff and the
phones will have more modern features for the users; and

WHEREAS, the funds for phone system upgrades were approved in the 2022- 2023
fiscal year budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City
of Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 

1. The City of Goldsboro shall approve purchase order number P2301202 to ATCOM
Business Technology in the amount of $266, 515. 42. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro and
shall be in full force and effect from and after this

201h

day of June, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Holl on s, Deputy City Clerk

i



City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

May 2023 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater

10. Parks and Recreation-GEC
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

Item Y



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 
May 2023 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Development & Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  June 7, 2023 
 
• Goldsboro Youth Council (GYC) met for a regular monthly meeting on May 3rd.    
• The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for a regular monthly meeting on May 9th. 

The MLK Subcommittee met on May 9th & May 31st.   
• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) held their 26th Annual Hal K. Plonk Disability Awareness 

Walk on May 4th.  The MCPD did not have a quorum for their regular monthly meeting on May 18th.    
 

• Community Relations Activities:  
1. Staff attended the Executive Board meeting of CALM on May 16th and regular monthly meeting on May 30th.  
2. Staff facilitated a Juneteenth planning meeting on May 23rd. 
3.    Department meetings were held on May 2nd, 12th, and 22nd.  
 

• Community Development Activities:  
1. Staff facilitated the FY23-24 AAP Public Hearing on May 1st.  
2. Staff completed HOME Rentals Monitoring at GEO Property on May 4th.  
3. Staff attended Choice Neighborhood Planning meetings on May 10th & 24th.  
4. Staff attended Region 10 Continuum of Care (CoC) monthly meeting on May 10thand Region 10 Coordinated 

Entry weekly meeting on May 17th & 31st.    
5. Staff facilitated a pre-bid conference for Community Development Software on May 11th.  
6. Staff presented the FY23-24 AAP for final approval and submitted it to HUD on May 15th.  
7. Staff attended a Choice Neighborhood Community Engagement event planning meeting on May 16th.    
8. Staff attended HUD-offered HOME-ARP Non-Congregate Shelter webinar on May 23rd.     
9. Staff attended a Technical Assistance Update meeting with HUD, Finance, Managers, Abt. Associates on May 30th.   
10. Staff attended a One-on-One with Reese Fayde (HUD Provided) for Choice Neighborhood support on May 31st.   
11. Staff engaged in 5 virtual consultations with HUD Representative for the month of May. 

     
 
• The Department received four (4) housing complaints and nineteen (19) requests for assistance for the month of  

May. *Please refer to Community Relations Addendum for a detailed summary.   
2023 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 1 1 1 1 4        3 
Consumer/Other 
Requests 

27 36 14 15 19        22 

 
2022 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 3 0 0 0 3 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 3 
Consumer & Other 
Requests 

24 36 25 141 69 43 27 32 27 19 20 20 40 

 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT Addendum 
May 2023 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  June 7, 2023 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
Nature of Complaint               Resolution 

Mold Outside of City ETJ, 
Referred to County 

Mold In Fremont, Referred to 
County 

Ceiling Caving In Scheduled Intake; No 
Show 

Shots Fired Into Apt. Caller said she would 
call back to schedule 
intake 

 
Assistance with Resources 
 Resource Requested            Number of Requests  Resolution 

Home Repair 6 Application /Application follow-up provided 
First-Time Homebuyer 
 

4 Provided program information and/or update on submitted 
application  

Handicap ramp & steps 1 Referred to Habitat for Humanity / Out of city limits 
Domestic Violence 
Resources 

1 Consulted with Wayne Uplift/4Day Movement/United Way/Provided 
additional resources 

Legal Issues 1 Referred to Legal Aid 
Taxes 1 Referred to Wayne County Tax Office 
Litter Clean Up 
Volunteer Opportunity 

1 Referred to Planning Dept. 

Unity Fest Tickets 1 Shared link for ticket purchase 
Homeless 1 Referred & Assisted by 4Day Movement 
Goldsboro Youth Council 
Application 

2 Provided application available date 

Total Requests: 19  
 



1 

Downtown Development Department 
May 2023 Monthly Report 
Prepared By: Erin Fonseca 
Date Prepared: June 13, 2023 
 Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

• Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 14 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or 
business interest regarding downtown. Met with 10 existing business owners.  

• South Center Street Development discussions with ACM and three potential property developers.   
• Union Station discussions regarding stabilization, fair market value and potential reuse. Appraisal was delivered 

in March. Hired a consultant to prepare a Dept. of Commerce Transformation Grant application for stabilization. 
Results will be shared mid-June. 

• COG budget completion and year-end project planning/execution.   
• NC Main Street conference prep and inventory of downtown maintenance needs.  
• Parking Commission discussions.  
• Merchant/Property Information Mgmt – Integrating to new website. Working with IT Department to move over 

to the new site.   
• Staff continuing to work with Choice Neighborhoods Team, attending bi-weekly calls.  

Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:           
• Social district planning and preparation for Council presentation in June.  

• Mural wall primed with ARPA arts grant. Preparing to apply for a grassroots grant to complete the mural wall in 
the fall.   

• Staff is meeting with NC Main Street staff monthly re: 2024 NC Main Street Conference, March 12-14. 

• Staff attended the NC Downtown Development Association Downtown Day on May 17 in Raleigh, NC. 

• Erin completed the Leadership Wayne program and was selected to serve on the Board of Regents for 2023-
2027. 

• Staff attended the Chamber’s Small Business & Entrepreneurship event on May 2nd.  

• Other Meetings: Chamber of Commerce Board Meeting, Social District Discussions, NCFF Board and Planning 
Mtgs, Transformation Grant Discussion, TRC with Planning 

DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  
• DGDC Merchants on May 2nd, Design, Economic Vitality and Promotions Committees on May 10th , Executive 

Committee on May 11th and DGDC Board of Directors on May 18th.   
• Center Street Jam – every other Thursday, May 4th - August 10th 
• Sprinkler Fun Days – June 8 – August 10th  
• Staff is assisting with Juneteenth celebration planning. 
• Staff is supporting the Arts Council’s Benefit Concert scheduled for June 3rd. 

Upcoming Events/Activities:  
• HUB Events: Center Street Jam, 3 Eagles Rotary Beer Fest, May 13, Alumni Weekend events May 27 and 28, Arts 

Council Benefit Concert, June 3, COG Wellness Event June 14th, Choice Neighborhoods Community Event July 8th 
Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased & Other Updates 

• New Businesses: Social South - 144 N Center; McLamb Wellness - 102 E Walnut; Simply Photo Studio - 131 E 
Walnut 

• Coming Soon, The Firm at 156 S. Center; Spice Bouquet - 112 E Mulberry; 120 E Mulberry St 
• Arts Council will relocate to 139 W Walnut St.  
• Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers: 15K; 67.8K reach  



 

 
 

1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
May 2023 
Prepared by:  Bobby Croom, P. E.                     
Date Prepared:  06-07-23 
                
Stoney Creek Greenway   

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 
linear feet; 

• This project is 98% complete. 
 
Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 

• Staff is working with DWI to close out this project. 
 
Little/Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation and Improvement 

• WithersRavenel engineering agreement provides services for project management, engineering 
report and environmental information documentation for Little/Big Cherry Pump Station; 

• PER/EID Report submitted  to DWI for review and approval; 
• Project is a candidate to be included in the Mount Olive Pickle (MOP) Plant Expansion Project and 

staff is working with MOP, WithersRavenel, and TA Loving through the design process. 
 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections are underway for May/June 2023. 

 
Wayne County Utility Merger/Regionalization Feasibility 

• Final scope of engineering services has been approved by DWI;  
• CDM Smith has commenced preliminary work on the MRF Study.  

 
Stormwater Inventory Project 

• Projected completion July/August. 
 

2” Galvanized Water Line Project 
• NCDWI awarded the City a grant for the project in the amount of $5,999,395; 
• Offer and acceptance documentation was submitted by staff in September 2022; 
• Staff is working on the design phase of this project. 

 
Lead and Copper Inventory 

• Staff is coordinating the information required by EPA for lead and copper inventories; 
• Project is scheduled to advertise August 1, 2023. 

 
Pavement Condition Survey 

• Project has been suspended. 
 



2 

Turning Movement Count Inventory 
• Project has been suspended. 

 
SJAFB MAG Meter 

• This project is in the design phase. 
 
NCSU Floodprint Project 

• Staff is working with NCSU on potential project applications. 
 
2023 Resurfacing Project 

• Staff is preparing bid documents. 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
MAY 2023 
Prepared By: Andrea Lovelace 
Date Prepared: June 12, 2023 

 
 

FY 21-22
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues April-22 Adjusted Budget April-23 Collected
General Fund 39,036,415$    46,706,187$        37,574,002$    80.45%
Utility Fund 16,845,678      24,870,166          19,700,307      79.21%
Downtown District Fund 93,699             117,019               102,804           87.85%
Occupancy Tax Fund 895,581           1,196,488            936,287           78.25%
Stormwater Fund 1,638,596        2,203,023            1,723,778        78.25%
     Total 58,509,969$    75,092,882$        60,037,177$    79.95%

Expenditures
General Fund 33,795,660$    46,706,187$        35,395,657$    75.78%
Utility Fund 13,012,828      24,870,166 15,528,792 62.44%
Downtown District Fund 68,357             117,019 51,834             44.30%
Occupancy Tax Fund 950,285           1,196,488 1,002,088 83.75%
Stormwater Fund 1,713,969        2,203,023 1,740,553 79.01%
     Total 49,541,099$    75,092,882$        53,718,923$    71.54%

FY 21-22
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

April-22 Adjusted Budget April-23 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 18,474,755$    19,271,704$        18,654,408$    96.80%
Charges for Services 21,449,485      30,037,807          23,591,782      78.54%
Revenue Other Agencies 10,043,821      16,800,402          10,380,093      61.78%
Other Revenues 5,334,068        3,639,671            4,081,898        112.15%
Fund Balance -                   2,014,301            -                   0.00%
Shared Services 3,207,840        3,328,996            3,328,996        100.00%
     Total 58,509,969$    75,092,882$        60,037,177$    79.95%

Expenditures
Labor 24,078,640$    29,714,622$        25,361,192$    85.35%
Non-Labor 25,462,459      45,378,260          28,357,731      62.49%
     Total 49,541,099$    75,092,882$        53,718,923$    71.54%

FY 21-22 Actual Total 
Collections Actual April-23 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 27,778$           8,317$                  36,604$           
Surplus 154,548$         -$                      3,876$             

FY 22-23

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 22-23

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2022 through June, 2023

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out
City Council Timothy Salmon Insurance Deductible Claims 2,700$               -$                       
City Council Timothy Salmon Title Search & Legal Fees -$                   (2,700)$                 

Transfers - May 2023 - City Council 2,700$               (2,700)$                 

Paramount Adam Twis Uniforms -$                   (300)$                     
Paramount Adam Twis Advertising 300$                   -$                       

Transfers - May 2023 - Paramount 300$                   (300)$                     

Downtown Development Erin Fonseca Operational Supplies -$                   (250)$                     
Downtown Development Erin Fonseca Communications and Marketing 250$                   -$                       

Transfers - May 2023 - Downtown Development 250$                   (250)$                     

Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular -$                   (27,700)$               
Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Medical Exams 200$                   -$                       
Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies 3,500$               -$                       
Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Natural Gas 7,500$               -$                       
Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Security System 16,500$             -$                       

Transfers - May 2023 - Public Works Admin 27,700$             (27,700)$               

PW Garage Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular -$                   (29,809)$               
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Machine/Equipment Maintenance 4,500$               -$                       
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Uniforms 4,200$               -$                       
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Bonus 206$                   -$                       
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Vacation Pay Out 7,303$               -$                       
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Batteries 2,000$               -$                       
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Oil & Lubricants 6,600$               -$                       
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Automotive Parts 5,000$               -$                       

Transfers - May 2023 - PW Garage 29,809$             (29,809)$               

PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Medical Exams 139$                   -$                       
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies -$                   (4,200)$                 
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Contract Services 726$                   -$                       
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Telephone 36$                     -$                       
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Tools 3,000$               -$                       
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Vehicle Maintenance-Fleet Charges 299$                   -$                       

Transfers - May 2023 - PW Buildings & Grounds 4,200$               (4,200)$                 

PW Cemetery Rick Fletcher Tree Service -$                   (1,800)$                 
PW Cemetery Rick Fletcher Building Maintenance 1,800$               -$                       

Transfers - May 2023 - PW Cemetery 1,800$               (1,800)$                 

Finance Catherine Gwynn Medical Exams 130$                   -$                       
Finance Catherine Gwynn Operational Supplies 2,590$               -$                       
Finance Catherine Gwynn Travel 564$                   -$                       
Finance Catherine Gwynn Postage 35$                     -$                       
Finance Catherine Gwynn Software License Fees 1,860$               -$                       
Finance Catherine Gwynn Education Reimbursement 81$                     -$                       
Finance Catherine Gwynn Worker's Compensation Insurance 207$                   -$                       

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      
                                      
The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Budget Transfers Summary FY23_5 - Copy.xlsx Transfer Summary May 6/11/2023 1:23 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2022 through June, 2023

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      
                                      
The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Finance Catherine Gwynn Vacation Pay Out 2,632$               -$                       
Finance Catherine Gwynn Hospital Insurance -$                   (13,962)$               
Finance Catherine Gwynn Postage-Internal Charges only! 4,223$               -$                       
Finance Catherine Gwynn Worker's Compensation -$                   (2,100)$                 
Finance Catherine Gwynn Security Bonds 3,740$               -$                       

Transfers - May 2023 - Finance 16,062$             (16,062)$               

PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular -$                   (50,215)$               
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Bonus 415$                   -$                       
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Shoes-Steel Toe 2,000$               -$                       
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Vacation Pay Out 1,425$               -$                       
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Overtime 450$                   -$                       
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Tools 375$                   -$                       
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Vehicle Maintenance-Fleet Charges 45,000$             -$                       
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Electricity 550$                   -$                       

Transfers - May 2023 - PW Solid Waste 50,215$             (50,215)$               

Engineering Bobby Croom Operational Supplies 500$                   -$                       
Engineering Bobby Croom Office Machine Maintenance -$                   (500)$                     

Transfers - May 2023 - Engineering 500$                   (500)$                     

Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                   (1,000)$                 
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Fees & Dues 835$                   -$                       
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Protective Clothing 200$                   -$                       
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Tree Service -$                   (2,000)$                 
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Shoes-Steel Toe 465$                   -$                       
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Cleaning Supplies -$                   (5,500)$                 
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Tools -$                   (1,000)$                 
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Equipment Expense -$                   (1,200)$                 
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Operational Supplies - Maint. 14,200$             -$                       
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Merchandise for Resale-PARKS & REC 1,500$               -$                       
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Equipment Rent -$                   (6,500)$                 

Transfers - May 2023 - Parks & Recreation 17,200$             (17,200)$               

Golf Felicia Brown Salaries & Wages Regular -$                   -$                       
Golf Felicia Brown Travel -$                   (1,100)$                 
Golf Felicia Brown Fuel For Equipment 2,950$               -$                       
Golf Felicia Brown Protective Clothing -$                   (125)$                     
Golf Felicia Brown Other Training -$                   (600)$                     
Golf Felicia Brown Employee Christmas Party -$                   (50)$                       
Golf Felicia Brown Shoes-Steel Toe -$                   (450)$                     
Golf Felicia Brown Advertising -$                   (250)$                     
Golf Felicia Brown First Aid -$                   (375)$                     

Transfers - May 2023 - Golf 2,950$               (2,950)$                 

Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Fees & Dues 195$                   -$                       
Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Other Training 805$                   -$                       
Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Tools -$                   (1,000)$                 

Budget Transfers Summary FY23_5 - Copy.xlsx Transfer Summary May 6/11/2023 1:23 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2022 through June, 2023

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      
                                      
The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Transfers - May 2023 - Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory 1,000$               (1,000)$                 

Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies -$                   (31,848)$               
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Utility Valve Truck 31,848$             -$                       
Water Treatment Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                   (2,450)$                 
Water Treatment Bert Sherman Protective Clothing 2,200$               -$                       
Water Treatment Bert Sherman Other Training 250$                   -$                       

Transfers - May 2023 - Distribution & Collections 34,298$             (34,298)$               

Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Medical Exams 300$                   -$                       
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Postage 2,500$               -$                       
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                   (9,950)$                 
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Protective Clothing 200$                   -$                       
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Other Training 450$                   -$                       
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Vacation Pay Out 1,000$               -$                       
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Salaries & Wages Overtime 4,000$               -$                       
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Telephone 1,500$               -$                       

Transfers - May 2023 - Water Reclamation 9,950$               (9,950)$                 

Compost Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                   (4,400)$                 
Compost Bert Sherman Fees & Dues 1,200$               -$                       
Compost Bert Sherman Consultant Fees 3,200$               -$                       

Transfers - May 2023 - Compost 4,400$               (4,400)$                 

Stormwater Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular -$                   -$                       
Transfers - May 2023 - Compost -$                   -$                       

Downtown MSD Erin Fonseca Operational Supplies -$                   (11,100)$               
Downtown MSD Erin Fonseca Contract Services 3,600$               -$                       
Downtown MSD Erin Fonseca Advertising 7,500$               -$                       

Transfers - May 2023 - Downtown MSD 11,100$             (11,100)$               
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - May 2023 214,434$           (214,434)$             
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jul 2022-May 2023 819,582$           (819,582)$             

Budget Transfers Summary FY23_5 - Copy.xlsx Transfer Summary May 6/11/2023 1:23 PM



Prepared Date: 6/8/23 7:44 AM
Prepared By: Terrie Webber
Reviewed Date: 6/11/23 12:51 PM
Reviewed By: Catherine F. Gwynn

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Financial Institution 5/31/2023 4/30/2023 5/31/2022 Rate of Return

PNC - General Operating 3,777,263.82$               3,966,680.26$               2,167,135.43$               0.00%
PNC - Money Market 5,068,521.69$               5,055,571.12$               8,425,511.76$               3.06%
PNC - Debit Account 2,000.00$                       1,932.83$                       881.84$                          0.00%
Southern Bank - CD 624,170.82$                  623,446.01$                  15,088,272.43$            1.52%
NCCMT - MM - 2010 Sewer Bond D#001 258,438.44$                  257,354.49$                  249,910.54$                  n/a
NCCMT - MM - American Rescue Plan 2021 9,106,314.71$               9,068,120.67$               4,410,264.42$               n/a
NCCMT - MM - Regular 4,520,738.69$               4,501,776.64$               4,371,552.67$               n/a
NCCMT - MM - Street Bonds 2018 -$                                 48,112.59$                    n/a
Truist MMA 24,872,906.05$            24,809,220.32$            -$                                 3.10%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY21 & FY22 Rolling Stock -$                                 414,242.21$                  0.01%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY23 Rolling Stock 2,380,264.54$               2,380,244.32$               0.01%
Webster (Sterling National Bank) - Escrow 1,872,619.90$               1,872,232.98$               1,868,396.13$               0.24%
Totals 52,483,238.66$           52,536,579.64$           37,044,280.02$           

Monthly Cash & Investment Report
May 31, 2023

Cash & Investment FY2023.xlsx 5-31-23 6/11/2023 12:51 PM



Grant Project Budgets Monthly Report - May 2023
Prepared: tlw :6/8/202310:31 AM
Red Font-Not formally accepted by Council at this time.
Reviewed: cfg 6/11/2023 1:41 PM

Granting 
Agency Granting Agency (Full) Grant Description

Source 
(Full) S Date Received

 Grant Portion 
Budget Amount  Budget Total 

 Current 
Amount Rec'd  

 Amount Rec'd  
Project to Date 

 Current 
Amount Spent  

 Amount Spent 
to Project to 

Date 

 Positive 
(Negative) Cash 

Flow Fund
HUD HOME FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F -$                   22,201$             -$                   22,201$             -$                   C3101
HUD HOME FY17-18 Entitlement Federal F -$                   43,202$             -$                   73,557$             (30,355)$           C3101
HUD CDBG FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F -$                   19,523$             -$                   19,523$             -$                   C2101
HUD HOME FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F -$                   22,910$             -$                   22,910$             -$                   C3101
HUD CDBG FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 328,479$                   328,479$                -$                   216,456$          -$                   216,456$          -$                   C2101
HUD HOME FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 214,732$                   214,732$                -$                   49,554$             -$                   49,554$             -$                   C3101
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 351,137$                   351,137$                -$                   170,649$          -$                   170,649$          -$                   C2101
HUD HOME FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 237,076$                   237,076$                -$                   28,472$             -$                   28,472$             -$                   C3101
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 2 & 3) Federal F 10/7/2020 427,303$                   427,303$                -$                   132,380$          93$                    133,792$          (1,412)$             C2102
HUD CDBG FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 354,122$                   354,122$                -$                   87,559$             -$                   87,987$             (428)$                 C2101
HUD HOME FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 250,738$                   250,738$                -$                   24,002$             -$                   32,592$             (8,590)$             C3101
HUD CDBG FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F -$                   -$                   1,771$               20,878$             (20,878)$           C2101
HUD HOME FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F -$                   -$                   3,527$               19,751$             (19,751)$           C3101
HUD CDBG ARP Funding (M21-MP370209) Federal F 907,913$                   907,913$                -$                   -$                   461$                  35,927$             (35,927)$           C3102

NCHFA NCHFA URP-19 Urgent Repair State S 4/18/2019 100,000$                   100,000$                -$                   96,570$             -$                   96,570$             -$                   C2101
NCHFA NCHFA ESFRLP ESFRLP Rehabilitation Loan Pool State S 1/24/2017 150,000$                   150,000$                -$                   117,975$          -$                   117,975$          -$                   22
FEMA FEMA Hurricane Florence Federal F 6/1/2019 2,340,773$               4,604,077$             -$                   4,982,838$       -$                   4,179,246$       803,592$          R1102
DOJ Dept. of Justice Federal Forfeiture Federal F Ongoing 188,813$                   200,946$                346$                  274,138$          -$                   106,537$          167,601$          P3101
DOJ NC Dept of Justice/US DOJ 2017 GPD Gang Equipment Grant Federal S 1/3/2019 21,366$                     21,366$                  -$                   18,408$             -$                   18,408$             0$                      P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2019 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/25/2019 47,003$                     47,003$                  -$                   42,435$             -$                   42,435$             -$                   P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2020 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/19/2020 34,766$                     34,766$                  -$                   30,381$             -$                   30,381$             -$                   P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice FY20 CRF Equipment Grant Federal F 6/8/2020 108,628$                   108,628$                -$                   87,179$             -$                   87,179$             (0)$                     P3106
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2022 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 12/19/2022 23,574$                     23,574$                  -$                   -$                   10,688$             10,688$             (10,688)$           P3102
FTA Federal Transportation Admin. FY2016 TIGER VIII Center Street & Streetscape Federal F 10/1/2018 6,751,751$               7,189,383$             -$                   7,385,809$       -$                   6,527,315$       858,494$          R1103

FEMA FEMA GO FEMA GO-Source Capture Exhaust Systems FS 1, 2, 3, Federal F 7/24/2020 202,083$                   202,083$                -$                   202,083$          -$                   202,083$          -$                   R1104
UST/Wayne Co US Treasury-Wayne Co. CARES Act Funding Federal F 9/9/2020 966,688$                   966,688$                -$                   966,688$          -$                   966,688$          (0)$                     R1105

NC Tourism NC Tourism Recovery Grant CARES Act Funding - Marketing Travel & Tourism Federal F 10/6/2020 25,750$                     25,750$                  -$                   25,750$             -$                   25,750$             -$                   R1106
Triangle YMCA Triangle YMCA Remote Learning Grant Parks & Recreation Federal F 11/18/2020 94,616$                     94,616$                  -$                   19,681$             -$                   19,681$             -$                   R1106

UST US Treasury ARP Funding Federal F 3/11/2021 8,813,514$               8,813,514$             38,194$             9,106,315$       -$                   -$                   9,106,315$       R1107
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Phase IV Sewer Rehab Federal F 11/26/2019 8,905,676$               9,083,790$             -$                   4,851,571$       -$                   8,519,172$       (3,667,601)$      S1102
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Sewer Rehab (Big Ditch & Carolina) Federal F 3/24/2021 1,235,100$               1,259,802$             -$                   639,892$          -$                   730,989$          (91,097)$           S1103

Debt Debt Funded 2010 Sewer GO Bonds D#001-E Debt D 2010 8,605,000$               8,684,163$             1,084$               487,487$          -$                   466,382$          21,105$             S1104
Goldenleaf Goldenleaf Foundation Hurr. Matthew Recovery Stormwater Drain. & Swr. RePrivate P 10/11/2017 598,574$                   598,574$                -$                   598,574$          -$                   598,574$          (0)$                     S1105
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR Little Cherry Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation Federal F Not Accepted Yet 3,058,000$               30,000$                  -$                   30,000$             -$                   30,000$             -$                   S1106

DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR (AIA) Project AIA-D-VUR-0004 & AIA-W-VUR-000State S 1/24/2022 300,000$                   304,500$                -$                   4,500$               -$                   302,300$          (297,800)$         S1107
DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR MRF Project MRF-M-VUR-0001 State S 1/24/2022 100,000$                   101,500$                -$                   1,500$               12,638$             31,198$             (29,698)$           S1108

SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Waterline Repl. & Booster Pump Station Insta Federal F 6/6/2019 3,610,000$               3,717,200$             -$                   35,000$             -$                   265,513$          (230,513)$         W1111
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Plate Settlers Project Federal F 3/7/2021 1,484,909$               1,484,909$             -$                   1,519,536$       -$                   1,517,550$       1,986$               W1112
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement Federal F Not Accepted Yet 5,999,395$               6,029,395$             -$                   30,000$             -$                   25,000$             5,000$               W1113

Debt Debt Funded Herman Park Center Debt D Not Issued yet 11,150,000$             11,150,000$           -$                   -$                   -$                   376,000$          (376,000)$         G1102
Donation Private Donations 1919 LaFrance Fire Truck Restoration Private P Ongoing 80,000$                     80,000$                  -$                   32,691$             -$                   -$                   32,691$             G1103

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Capital Project Fund FY19-FY24 Private P Ongoing 632,943$                   632,943$                10,000$             557,943$          -$                   251,072$          306,871$          G1104
Debt Debt Funded 2018 Street Bonds (Debt #026-G) Debt D Ongoing 5,048,522$               5,048,522$             -$                   5,046,649$       -$                   4,980,164$       66,485$             G1105
Debt Debt Funded Police/Fire Renovation (Debt #025-G) Debt D Ongoing 6,417,326$               6,417,323$             -$                   6,417,323$       -$                   6,256,862$       160,461$          G1106

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 39,201$                     39,201$                  -$                   45,636$             5,949$               41,941$             3,695$               G1107
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 15,728$                     15,728$                  -$                   16,531$             -$                   14,294$             2,237$               G1108

NC OSBM NC Office State Mgmt & Budget State Grants Misc-OSBM FY23 St Approp State S 2/2/2023 50,000$                     50,000$                  -$                   50,254$             491$                  491$                  49,763$             G1109
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Police Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 56,351$                     56,351$                  50$                    62,183$             -$                   19,487$             42,696$             P3104

City Fees Stormwater Fees Stormwater Drainage Projects City Fees C Ongoing 1,372,871$               1,372,871$             -$                   1,594,144$       -$                   1,037,023$       557,121$          T2201
Debt Debt Funded Smeal Aerial Fire Truck Debt D 9/2022 1,151,600$               1,151,600$             -$                   1,136,500$       -$                   8,537$               1,127,963$       F3111

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Fire Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 2,000$                       2,000$                     250$                  3,381$               -$                   -$                   3,381$               F3110

Total 82,854,021$             82,964,265$           49,924$             47,334,450$     35,618$             38,837,732$     8,496,718$       

INFLOWS OUTFLOWS

Grant Source Legend:
F = Federal S= State D = Debt P = Private C = City Fees

Grants listed above represent awards that have been officially awarded by the Grantor, and officially accepted by the Grantee (City), unless 
noted in red font.  Those items in red, the Finance Department has received some formal award letter from the Grantor but the City has not formally
accepted the award.  The list above does not take into account grants that may have been applied for and the City may have received tentative award.  If I did
not have an official award, I did not place it on this list.

Notes:
* DWI still reviewing 30+ Change Orders on Ph IV SRF.  Will authorize reimbursements after DWI has concluded the review process.

Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2023-05 May_1.xlsx Grants 2023-05 May 6/11/2023 1:42 PM



FIRE DEPARTMENT  
May 2023 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien  
Date Prepared: June 9, 2023  
 

    

  The cause of fire incidents was determined 67% of the time. 33% of fire incidents were classified as 
undetermined or still under investigation.   
  

  The average response time of the first arriving unit was 4:31.   
  

  A full response within 8 minutes occurred 98% of all calls.   
  

  There were 0 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries, and 0 Fire Service deaths.   
  

  The American Red Cross assisted 0 families due to displacement because of fire damage.   
 

   Fire prevention and community service activities included: Car Seat Safety Checks with Safe Kids of Wayne 
County, Station Tours, Special Olympics Run, Cop on Top, Pig in the Park, The Super Safety Event at Old 
Navy, Goldsboro Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities, Truck Displays, and Center Street Jam. 
We reached 225 Adults and 150 Children with fire prevention materials.  

 
 

 
 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, Haz-Mat Calls, Grass 
Fires and Unauthorized Burning.  

    
1  

2023 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 277 222 229 262 263        251 1253 

Structure Fires: 2 3 7 4 4        4 20 

EMS Calls: 117 94 93 86 103        99 493 

Vehicle Accidents: 31 26 28 36 42        33 163 

Fire Alarms: 42 38 33 55 45        43 213 

Other: 85 61 68 81 69        73 364 

Training Hours: 3118 2873 3074 2218 2063        2669 13346 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 7 4 0 1 0        3 12 

Inspections: 115 116 155 149 110        129 645 

2022 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 216 195 226 231 236 264 246 264 280 231 255 296 245 2490 
Structure Fires: 5 6 8 5 4 1 3 3 1  1 5 1 4 43 

EMS Calls: 79 78 80 92 83 86 99 124 103 73 79 82 88 1058 
Vehicle Accidents: 22 23 22 26 32 38 27 24 33 31 30 35 29 343 

Fire Alarms: 44 35 48 53 63 56 57 53 73 59 67 78 57 686 
Other: 66 53 68 54 54 83 60 60 70 68 74 100 67 811 

Training Hours: 2757 2806 2884 2260 1704 1715 1452 1700 1647 1835 1742 1214 1976 23716 
Safety Car Seat Checks: 0 0 4 3 5 2 5 3 2 5 1 2 3 32 

Inspections: 132 123 153 136 143 187 112 142 145 135 134 80 135 1622 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES   
May 2023 
Date Prepared:  June 5, 2023 
 
 
Human Resources  

• Served on various Interview Committees – Parks and Recreation Coordinator and Planner 
• Canceled LGFCU/Civic Sumit event due to LGFCU extending independence date. 
• Canceled Health & Benefits Fair due to budget limitations.  
• Canceled Employee Appreciation Day due to budget limitations.  
• Annual Hearing screens for Police Dept D shift 
• Completed American Red Cross Blood Drive May 17th 
• Completed NC Rural Water Association Agreement for Apprenticeship Program for Wastewater 

Operators 
• Completing Mental Health Awareness Inservice presentations for city employees. 
• Attended WCHRA Meeting 
• Completed meeting with Hope Center Ministries regarding employment opportunities partnership 
• Preparing to complete Safety Cross Training 
• Continuation of Laserfiche scanning project. 
• Coordinated & Held Special Events Committee Meeting 
• Preparing for New Hire Orientation 
• Preparing for Summer Grill Break – Presented by Wellness Committee 
• Coordinating Hike to the Mountains – Presented by Wellness Committee 
• Preparing for Supervisors Training scheduled for August 1-3 
• Preparing for Customer Service training. 
• Preparing a Heat Related Illnesses presentation 

Safety   
• May City Hall Fire and Defibrillator Inspections. 
• Completed all forklift training for the city. 
• Inspected the city stage for the Goldsboro High School graduation. 
• Investigated 5 accidents involving city vehicles. 
• Met with TA Loving and Adam Twiss concerning the Paramount Theater. 
• NCFF committee meeting at DGDC 
• Forklift Practical at Public Works completed. 
• Visited Park sites and looked over general safety problems. 
• Assisting Building and Grounds team on the elevator project in Historic City Hall. 
• TC Coley Center safety inspection. 
• Safety and Accident Review Committee Meeting. Heard 5 cases. 
• Field Safety for private contractors 
• Field Safety with crews 

Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  There were 245 clinic visits this month.  



2 

 

Health Training Sessions: 
• Mental Health Awareness: Stop the Stigma presentations - 14 presentations given (155 

employees attended) 
• Fire Department TB skin tests May 22nd, 23rd, and 24th  
• Fit Testing at WRF May 23rd  

 

Other health-related information pertinent to employees include:  
• American Red Cross Blood drive- May 17th - 22 units donated 
• 0 employees tested positive  
• 4 employees assisted with FMLA paperwork 
• 5 Workplace injury events. 3 of the 5 were OSHA recordable 
• 14 routine Blood pressure checks 
• 3 documented positive drug screens  
• 4 hepatitis B vaccines given 
• 46 TB skin test completed 

 
MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

428 430 428 426 427        428 

Employees –            
Part Time 

92 89 91 94 110        95 

Total Employees 520 519 519 520 538        523 
Male  402 402 400 399 412        403 
Female 118 117 119 121 126        120 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

317 318 318 318 325        319 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

179 173 172 175 183        176 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

15 16 16 16 19        16 

Ethnicity – Asian 4 4 4 3 3        4 
Ethnicity – Other 7 7 8 8 8        8 
Vacancies  39 45 41 41 37        42 
Applications 137 389 354 320 185        300 

Applicant Notices 43 90 218 173 63        131 
New Hires  10 4 8 1 12        6 
Promotions 0 0 0 0 10        0 

DRUG SCREENS = 44 TOTAL 
New Hire CDL:  9 
New Hire non- CDL:  2 
Promotion CDL:  0 
Promotion non-CDL: 14 

Post-Accident DOT:  0 
 
Post-Accident Non- DOT:  0 

Instant Drug Screens:  19  
Random Safety Sensitive Drug Screen: 0 
Random Safety Sensitive Breath Alcohol Test: 0 

Random DOT Drug Screens:  0 
Random DOT Breath Alcohol Test: 0 



3 

Resignations 3 8 4 4 5        5 
Retirements  1 1 1 1 0        1 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

1 0 0 0 0        0 

Turnover Rate  1.2% 2.1% 1.2% 1.2% 1.2%        1.4% 
Vehicle Accidents 3 3 2 2 4        3 

Workers’ Comp 0 2 3 2 5        2 
FFCRA Leave/ 
Covid Related 

13 3 3 0 0        4 

Telework 13 14 14 14 14        14 
 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

423 427 418 417 420 427 424 422 427 427 423 431 424 

Employees –            
Part Time 

116 111 113 117 137 143 143 144 137 125 106 100 124 

Total Employees 539 536 531 534 557 570 567 566 564 552 529 531 548 
Male  411 412 409 411 420 428 426 425 429 417 404 408 417 
Female 128 124 122 123 137 142 141 141 135 135 125 123 131 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

321 324 321 325 332 
 

340 339 338 334 324 316 321 328 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

195 190 188 187 200 204 203 202 206 207 189 188 197 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

18 17 17 17 19 19 18 18 16 16 15 16 17 

Ethnicity – Asian 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Ethnicity – Other 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 7 7 5 
Vacancies  24 25 30 31 31 33 26 36 34 35 35 27 31 
Applications 308 179 386 215 251 392 121 317 146 309 123 94 237 

Applicant Notices 141 147 90 90 230 173 92 97 476 126 69 43 148 
New Hires  6 4 9 9 7 9 7 7 7 4 4 6 7 
Promotions 3 0 4 4 3 3 0 2 6 8 6 2 3 
Resignations 6 10 9 9 3 8 8 6 7 5 3 3 6 
Retirements  2 2 2 2 1 2 2 1 1 0 2 5 2 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

2 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Turnover Rate  2.4% 3.0% 2.6% 2.1% 1.0% 2.6% 2.4% 1.9% 2.1% 1.4% 1.4% 2.1% 2.1% 
Vehicle Accidents 5 1 4 1 4 2 3 4 0 0 2 3 3 

Workers’ Comp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 
FFCRA Leave/ 
Covid Related 

76 7 1 1 9 14 23 3 9 7 1 8 13 

Telework 11 11 11 11 11 12 13 13 13 13 13 13 12 
 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
May 2023 
Prepared By: Angela Price 
Date Prepared: June 5, 2023 
 

• Installed cameras at GWTA and Fire Station 3. 
• Installed access point for DGDC & John Street Parking Lot. 
• Replaced monitors for GPD Vice Unit. 
• Replaced several PCs with potential malware. No lost data or compromised systems. 
• Setup camera monitor for Water Treatment Plant. 
• Setup paging for GMGC and GEC. 
• Decommissioned out of date phone system at Public Works. 
• Upgraded Energov. 
• Migrated three Getac servers to Nutanix. 
• Replaced gate camera at Public Works. 
• Upgraded backend servers for City Website. 
• Migrated Security Camera storage to new storage unit. 
• Installed new Internet connection at DR Site. 

 
 

 
2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

825 719 842 692 730        762 3808 

Tickets 
Closed 

776 840 805 694 694        762 3811 

Open  
Tickets 

433 312 349 347 383        365  

 
 
 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

379 353 430 362 451 503 562 523 624 749 663 656 521 6,255 

Tickets 
Closed 

310 304 
 

466 398 392 540 464 548 590 686 689 795 515 6,182 

Open  
Tickets 

474 523 487 451 510 473 571 546 580 643 617 
 

478 529  

 
 
 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
May 2023 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 06/05/23. 
 
The valuation of all permits issued for May totaled $10,378,168.  While Covid-19 is still a major concern for our 
local economy, development has taken an upward trend compared to the past several years. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $50,018.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $4,230 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $3,545. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $1,040. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 717 inspections for the month.  During the month of May, eight (8) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 333 permits were issued for the month.    Eighty-three (83) plan reviews 
were completed for May. 
 
 
 
 

 

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.7 $43.8 $23.8 $9.2 $10.4 $19.0
All Bldgs $ (M) $3.5 $42.1 $6.3 $5.0 $6.7 $12.7
Residential $ (K) $1.5M $652 $2.8M $2.6 $4.1M $2.3M
Misc $ (M) $4.2 $1.7 $17.5 $4.2 $3.7 $6.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $31 $40 $65 $39 $50 $45
Inspections 511 517 626 542 717 583
Permits Issued 287 413 347 414 333 359
Plan Reviews 49 35 49 53 83 54

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $3.9 $11.1 $5.4 $6.7 $5.1 $9.6 $17.8 $6.5 $9.7 $10.7 $8.6 $5.6 $8.4
All Bldgs $ (M) $2.1 $9.1 $3.9 $5.0 $2.4 $7.6 $15.4 $3.3 $6.5 $9.4 $6.4 $2.3 $6.1
Residential $ (K) $813 $3M $472 $4.4M $341 $1.3M $0 $300 $3.1M $1.1M $1.1M $1.1M $1.4M
Misc $ (M) $1.8 $2 $1.4 $1.7 $2.7 $2.0 $2.4 $3.2 $3.1 $1.3 $2.3 $3.3 $2.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $39 $43 $43 $35 $43 $41 $36 $48 $43 $42 $33 $29 $40
Inspections 460 551 654 614 584 730 531 661 621 587 836 512 612
Permits Issued 258 281 288 281 336 344 253 306 488 306 288 208 303
Plan Reviews 38 66 79 39 45 48 58 56 74 57 33 23 51



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT 
May 2023 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 5/11/2023 

 
--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 

• May activity included 18 rental/use days, including 19 public performances. 
o Notable Activity: 

 Shreemati; Indian language performance 
 AIM Dance Recital 
 3 Dancing Sisters Recital 
 Tippy Toes Dance Recital 
 WEMCHS Awards Ceremony 
 Arts Company Dance Recital 
 Goldsboro Ballet Dance Recital 
 A Step of Class Dance Recital 
 Wayne Country Day Graduation 
 Artistic Dance Recital 

• May cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 1 day, 1 public performance 
• Repairs and Maintenance:  

 Façade Ornamental Elements removed to be treated and reattached by TA Loving 
 HVAC Mini Split repairs and Controls upgrade coordinated with Piedmont. 
 Wheelchair lift – finalizing PO rollover. 
 Sound System repair and upgrade – Foundation to fund 

 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

 

Expenses: $100,423:   Labor: $27,834 / Operations: $6,245 /Artist and Renter box office Payout: $66,344 
Revenues: $77,666:   Tickets: -$44,963 / Rentals: -$25,001 / Concession: $7,702  
  

  
 

 

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 FY 23 Total Average

Exp $47,039 $34,677 $52,943 $64,232 $38,325 $149,481 $63,274 $46,490 $66,591 $75,399 $100,423 $738,874 $67,170

Rev -$867 $9,685 $27,448 $27,531 $54,098 $99,030 $49,176 $12,457 $67,200 $47,572 $77,666 $470,996 $42,818

21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-Mar 22-Apr 22-May 22-Jun FY 22 Total Average

Exp $53,123 $32,009 $38,135 $55,769 $47,860 $110,177 $69,919 $27,119 $73,052 $65,217 $56,198 $72,730 $701,308 $58,442

Rev $2,881 $11,843 $11,014 $14,718 $46,585 $85,238 $67,668 $10,947 $35,192 $57,493 $56,429 $55,513 $455,521 $37,960



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation/Golf Course/Goldsboro Event Center 
May 2023 
Prepared By: Stephanie Martin/Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 6/12/23 

 
• Our Bryan Multi-Sports Complex (MSCX) hosted a Kepner Cup (soccer tournament) May 6th & 7th –   

6,125 participants 
 

• Both Mina Weil Pool and Peacock Pool passed their annual seasonal inspections done by the Wayne 
County Environmental Health Department 
 

• Senior Card Group Play at TC Coley Community Center – 120 participants 
 
• Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) hosted fifteen (15) events during May – 1,805 guests and four (4) City of 

Goldsboro events – 260 guests 
 

• Staff at the GEC had to turn away 34 patrons due to dates already being booked 
 

• Berkeley Park hosted at USSSA tournament – 385 participants   
 

• Our Annual Mother Son Dance returned this year to the GEC – 152 registered participants 
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted several tournaments this month including Pikeville Church, Sandtrappers 
Ladies, and Dillard Alumni – 80 golfers 
 

• Youth Karate Program at WA Foster Center for May – 146 participants  
 

• Attendance in our Youth and Adult Game Rooms at WA Foster Center – 600 visitors for the month of 
May 

 
• Senior Pickleball Open Play – 80 participants   

 
• Games for Youth Spring Sports of Soccer, T-Ball, Baseball and Softball continued into this month 

 
• Gym Open Play at WA Foster Center for Adults and Youth during May – 1,197 participants  

 
• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean the park restrooms and the restrooms at the HUB daily 

 
• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 

 
• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 

with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff, and Seasonal staff 
  



 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY 
J
U
N 

JU
L 

AU
G 

SE
P 

OC
T 

NO
V 

DE
C AVG 

Goldsboro Event Center                          
Rental Revenue $21,154 $17,487 $22,241 $18,705 $11,441               $18,206 
Facility Usage 1250 1975 1802 3225 2065                2063 
Expenditures $6,742 $8,122 $7,537 $6,475 $13,627               $8,501 
                            
WA Foster Recreation Center                         
Program Revenue $2,860 $2,977 $2,195 $1,170 $1,165               $2,073 
Rental Revenue $948 $1,827 $2,918 $1,088  $625               $1,481 
Facility Usage 2633 1632 2022 2651  2983               2384 
Expenditures $6,989 $12,076 $12,603 $11,993  $8,585               $10,449 
                            
T.C. Coley Community Center                         
Program Revenue $497 $1,130 $539 $280  $250               $539 
Rental Revenue $1,890 $720 $450 $450  $450               $792 
Facility Usage 197 73 170 193  210               169 
Expenditures  $1,874 $1,379 $2,203 $3,934  $6,644               $3,207 
                            
Specialized Recreation                         
Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0               $0 
Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0               $0 
Facility Usage 190 182 98 98  45               123 
Expenditures $7,618 $8,447 $6,350 $6,729  $7,462               $7,321 
                            
Senior Programs & Pools                         
Program Revenue $0 $185 $0 $140  $11               $67 
Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0               $0 
Facility Usage 166 251 295 210  212               227 
Expenditures $3,749 $5,489 $4,688 $3,818  $5,927               $4,734 
                            
Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX                      
Program Revenue $65 $32,120 $23,050 $1,142 $5,780                $12,431 
Rental Revenue $6,136 $0 $85 $0  $900               $1,424 
Facility Usage 17550 19750 21900 22350  36285               23567 
Expenditures $4,917 $9,557 $10,461 $10,886 $10,456               $9,255 
                            
Golf Course                         

Revenues $37,930 $32,709 $55,850 $48,454 $56,560                $46,301 

Expenditures $63,976 $35,563 $52,218 $36,482 $53,315               $48,311 
Rounds of Golf 1200 1592 2788 1941  2309               1966 
Net -$26,046 -$2,854 $3,632 $11,972 $3,245                -$2,010 
                            
Special Events                         
Revenues / Sponsorships $0 $2,000 $0 $0  $1,600               $720 
Participation 0 200 70 152  160               116 
Expenditures $18 $911 $511 $94  $3,170               $941 
                            
TOTAL REVENUE $71,480 $91,155 $107,328 $71,429 $78,782                $84,035 
TOTAL EXPENSES $95,051 $80,793 $96,571 $80,411 $109,186               $92,403 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $420,174          



 

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $462,012           

 
 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Herman Park Recreation Center 
Program 
Revenue $1,910 $520 $720 $978 $2,050 $27,880 $3,200 $1,190 $720 $1,710 $1,505 $990 $3,614 

Rental Revenue  $735 $1,475 $1,530 $2,350 $520 $1,366 $1,013 $1,895 $0 $0 $450 $450 $982 
Facility Usage 250 189 243 188 159 1475 470 224 286 468 390 292 386 
Expenditures $7,135 $5,287 $6,294 $6,126 $5,142 $8,344 $17,670 $8,333 $4,855 $5,048 $4,652 $4,485 $6,948 
               

WA Foster Recreation Center 
Program 
Revenue $895 $295 $505 $430 $2,453 $3,750 $1,475 $1,185 $1,108 $1,258 $563 $1,952 $1,322 

Rental Revenue $900 $2,820 $1,800 $3,058 $2,163 $1,653 $2,950 $1,025 998 $1,238 $513 $1,377 $1,625 
Facility Usage 1595 1565 1565 2051 1814 2495 2268 2814 1825 1719 1579 2325 1779 
Expenditures $18,218 $18,684 $16,911 $16,186 $12,952 $13,819 $29,738 $15,471 $8,798 $11,022 $9,556 $10,764 $15,177 
               

T.C. Coley Community Center 
Rental Revenue $518 $450 $518 $518 $880 $948 $525 $698 $855 $585 $585 $585 $639 
Expenses $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $80 $0 $100 $0 $0 $42 $0 $357 $202 
               

Specialized Recreation 
Program 
Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $39 $0 $3 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 95 119 152 58 360 220 203 211 222 230 160 123 179 
Expenditures $5,865 $5,592 $5,921 $5,620 $4,039 $4,761 $6,253 $2,946 $2,064 $10,867 $11,985 $6,856 $6,064 
               

Senior Programs & Pools 
Program 
Revenue $105 $105 $105 $105 $1,807 $8,484 $4,936 $2,594 $190 $190 $462 $190 $1,606 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 232 376 375 1013 1243 3492 3287 1870 268 256 194 271 1073 
Expenditures $1,027 $2,257 $1,874 $1,722 $2,437 $11,092 $37,817 $30,044 $13,284 $5,555 $3,114 $5,234 $9,621 
               

Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX 
Program 
Revenue $5,555 $16,145 $10,338 $3,319 $19,384 $2,790 $3,155 $27,200 $27,200 $2,990 $7,460 $1,362 $10,575 

Field / Shelter 
Rental $ $0 $0 $0 $150 $75 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $44 

Facility Usage 10673 14935 23858 29346 44914 36785 11450 13125 13125 23100 23000 13425 21478 
Expenditures $22,418 $15,209 $16,761 $19,436 $34,794 $10,597 $16,635 $11,609 $9,099 $8,745 $13,479 $5,587 $15,364 

               

Golf Course 
Revenues $15,988 $33,437 $50,876 $63,756 $68,934 $61,883 $51,301 $56,058 $50,749 $58,366 $34,376 $26,979 $47,725 
Expenditures $31,667 $37,653 $43,486 $35,649 $38,279 $49,110 $57,300 $80,153 $43,513 $41,316 $34,791 $43,762 $44,723 
Rounds of Golf 433 1296 1724 2502 1936 1976 1816 1401 1291 1699 1120 541 1478 
Net -$15,680 -$4,216 $7,390 $28,107 $30,655 $12,773 -$5,999 -$24,100 $7,236 $17,051 -$415 -$16,782 $3,002 
               

Special Events 
Revenues / 
Sponsorships $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,975 $0 $0 $300 $370 $0 $0 $220 

Participation 0 0 0 1600 0 110 0 0 75 766 0 5000 629 
Expenditures $2,013 $110 $110 $285 $0 $1,599 $0 $0 $472 $472 $0 $1,861 $577 
               

TOTAL 
REVENUE $26,606 $55,247 $66,392 $74,664 $98,266 $110,729 $68,555 $91,845 $81,122 $66,707 $45,952 $34,185 $820,269 

TOTAL 
EXPENSES $90,191 $84,792 $91,357 $85,024 $97,723 $99,322 $165,513 $148,556 $82,085 $83,067 $77,577 $78,905 $1,184,112 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $820,269        

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $1,184,112         

 
 



 

**Expenditures include part-time labor cost, facility operational cost, and full-time labor cost.  Not included in 
expenditures is loan/bond payments and electricity for the areas except for our Golf Course.  All these costs are 
included in our Golf Course Expenditures. 
 



 

 
 

1 

 
PLANNING 
May 2023 
Prepared By: Rachael Smith 
Date Prepared:  June 12, 2023 

Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial and residential building and sign permits.   
Staff continues to prepare for upcoming meetings and has overseen contracted projects for the ADA 
Transition Plan, a marketing contract for GWTA and landscaping maintenance for Welcome to 
Goldsboro signs and enhancement areas. Staff continues compliance with the NCGS Legislative 160D 
updates. On-going projects include tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation-related 
documents and preparation of case reports. 

 
2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 4 0 1 3 5
Subdivison 3 2 1 3 0

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 3 2 1 2 3

Special Use 1 3 1 0 2
Annexation 1 0 0 0 0

Home Occupation 1 0 0 0 0
Historic District Commission

Commission Review 0 3 2 2 3
Staff Review 0 0 2 2 1

UDO Violations
Notice of Violations 4 10

Violations with Payments 1 0

Notice of Violations 
(Require Lot Cut) 0 0 0 0 38

Notice of Violations
(Total NOV's Issued) 119 125

Grass Cutting 
Payments to Contractor $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,600 

Unsightly Lot
Payments to Contractor $490.00 $4,600 

Tagged Vehicles 0 1 0 3 4

Illegal Signs Removed
56 102 222 156 333

Bags of Litter Picked Up
128 303 189 271 189

Code Enforcement 

Planning Dept.



 

 
 
 
 
2022 
 

 

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 0 0 3 4 0 6 2 3 1 5 3 0 27 2
Subdivison 0 0 2 2 0 4 0 1 1 0 1 0 11 1

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 0 2 4 3 5 2 1 3 2 2 3 1 28 2

Special Use 3 1 0 1 2 1 3 3 2 2 3 0 21 2
Annexation - - - - - - - - - - 1 1 2 0

Historic District Commission
Commission Review 1 1 1 0 2 0 3 1 0 1 1 2 13 1

Staff Review 1 2 1 2 1 1 2 1 0 0 2 0 13 1

Grass Cutting 
# Lots 0 0 0 0 0 85 79 47 64 55 28 4 362 45

Grass Cutting 
Payments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0 $0 $4,565 $2,755 $3,675 $2,924 $1,435 784.00$  $16,138 $2,017

Tagged Vehicles 48 25 18 13 3 7 9 6 15 18 3 12 177 15

Illegal Signs Removed
56 92 102 202 88 127 266 79 96 45 29 36 1218 102

Bags of Litter Picked 
Up 202 165 222 286 198 400 326 422 332 247 114 208 3122 260

Code Enforcement 

Planning Dept.



 

 
  

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
May 2023 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  June 5, 2023  
 
Total Part I Crimes (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle 
Theft, and Arson) for May 2023 was 226, compared to 162 for May 2022. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $296,223 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $64,338 was recovered and property damaged was $56,427. 
 
Officers arrested 98 people and issued 219 citations during the month. There were 15 drug-related 
charges.  
 
There was 1 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  

OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 0 1 2 2        5  
Rape 0       2  1  2 0                    5  
Robbery 2 1     4  1 5         13  
Aggravated Assault 15 17 26 16 20        94  
Breaking & Entering 22 16  12  18 29                97  
Larceny 112 88     110    114 160              584  
Motor Vehicle Theft 10  10 16  12 9               57  
Arson 0 0 0  0  1            1  
TOTALS 161 134 170  165  226             856  

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  
OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 1 2 0 0 2 0 0 1  0  0  1 7  
Rape 1 2 1 3 1 1 1 1 2 0 3 3 19  
Robbery 1 2 6 3 5 3 8 2 2 2 5 2 41  
Aggravated Assault     11 12 20 31 27 20 20 19 25 16 13 13 227  
Breaking & Entering 25 19 18 26 19 28 24 16 24 17 10 10 236  
Larceny 92 86     95 118 94 117 106 127 103 162 102 112 1314  
Motor Vehicle Theft 6 6 7 5 15 21 9 7 9 14 15 6 120  
Arson 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2  

TOTALS 136 129 149 187 161 192 168 172 166 211 148 147 1966  

 

 
Revenue collected for May 2023 included:    

 Police Reports   $ 

 
 

  420.00  
 Fingerprints   $      30.00  
 Special Events                                                                                 $ 100.00  
             Total     $   550.00   
        



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
May 2023 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: June 8, 2023 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
o  Currently implementing Capital Projects for the replacements of the ATSs at the WTP and 

at the NRPS. 
Water Reclamation Facility 

• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing well. The average daily 
flow for May is 8.64-MGD. The yearly average flow for the WRF is 8.71-MGD. This puts the WRF at 
61% capacity. 

o All the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well. No major issues to report. 
o Working on implementation of several Capital Improvements projects: Bar screen at New 

Hope L/S, Generator at Westbrook L/S, replacement of the underdrain system for Sand 
filter #2 and Upgrade of the Public Utilities Telemetry System Replace Transfer Switches at 
the Neuse Rive Pump Station and WTP, Replace Bulk Storage Tank at the WRF, Construct 
Bay 8 enclosure at the Compost Facility and Replace flow meters at the WTP.  

o  4 uncertified operators and 1 Lab Tech will be sitting for exams on June 8 for their 
certifications. 

Compost Facility 
• Eight hundred and eighty-eight cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in May 2023. 

 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average 
daily flows for each month. 

2023 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.82 5.80 6.32 5.346 5.58        5.77 

Sewer** 7.23 9.94 7.81 9.94 8.64        8.71 
Compost 163 358 835 1509 888        751 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
2022 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.608 5.487 5.60 5.53 5.91 6.15 6.304 6.330 6.254 5.97 5.80 6.086 5.92 
Sewer** 9.15 9.32 8.63 7.86 7.57 6.56 7.85 7.34 7.05 6.99 6.48 6.67 7.62 
Compost 165 972 663 1,287 995 278 419 204 491 619 830 262 599 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
10.7 17.6 11.3 9.8 19.0 13.7

1.6 5.2 3 3.3 4.6 3.5

30 22 23 24 31 26.0

12 12 18 16 24 16.4

12 3 5 3 2 5.0

3 5 8 5 4 5.0

49 61 63 33 44 50.0

0 0 0 61 91 30.4

0 15 69 75 276 87.0

249 207 265 245 279 249.0

79$       74$       76$       75$       86$       77.9

1.08 0.91 1.10 0.98 1.08 1.030

0 38 0 37 71 29.4

0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.659

5 4 5 5 4 4.6

9 8 23 17 32 17.8

70 65 105 145 113 99.6

49.7 102 170.8 130.2 190 128.5

4.05 2.07 2.16 2.43 0.00 2.1

0.00 2.85 0.00 0.00 50.48 10.7

1 3 1 7 4 3.2

9.1 4.7 9.0 14.8 12.9 15.3 37.1 31.0 4.5 5 11.9 6.4 13.5
2.3 1.9 2.2 1.9 3.5 7.1 3.0 4.1 4.1 3.5 4 2.4 3.3
33 37 25 26 19 27 25 24 14 25 26 21 25.2
20 19 20 14 25 17 28 11 12 6 18 6 16.3
2 2 2 1 8 3 2 32 3 5 10 6 6.3
12 27 16 6 12 15 4 8 5 5 8 6 10.3

41 53 42 35 38 48 46 41 29 29 38 34 39.5

32 15 55.5 74.2 92.8 65.6 90.6 53.3 96.8 38.5 0 0 51.2

0 10 39.2 84 195.9 226.7 147.5 165.7 86.8 11 0 0 80.6

295 200 257 212 224 244 227 253 219 232 204 165 227.7
49$       48$       57$       52$       117$     141$     112$     111$     98$       93$       89$       70$       86.4

1.07 0.91 1.11 0.98 1.04 1.09 0.96 1.16 0.97 0.81 0.91 1.05 1.0
20 38 0 0 0 0 0 41 68 87 51 55 30.0
0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.9 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.8 0.6

4 5 4 2 2 5 4 3 2 3 8 5 3.9

0 36 23 16 13 9 17 16 9 15 14 0 14.0
65 51 116 14 56 15 33 57 23 16 16 39 41.8
78.2 156.1 177.2 127.8 166.28 191 133.9 209.2 152.3 138.4 69.2 63.4 138.6
0.14 0.00 3.00 0.00 0.20 0.31 0.13 0.02 0.44 0 0.2 0.2 0.4
0.00 0.40 0.00 0.00 19.28 44.50 9..43 31.60 17.38 20.04 3.08 0.00 12.4
6 2 2 2 3 3 1 7 3 1 4 1 2.9

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)

Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs

Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed

Meter Install/Changed

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

ROW Mowing (ac)

B
ld

g 
 &

 

G
ro

u
n

d
s

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage
Total Work Orders

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 

Waste
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 

St
o

rm

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

2023

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)B
ld

g 
 &

 

G
ro

u
n

d
s

Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 

Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Public Works Department

May 2023
Prepared by:  Rick Fletcher

Date Prepared: 12 June 2023

2022

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage

Buildings & Grounds: Set up and supported several key events and functions, including Air Show, Goldsboro High School 
graduation, Center Street Jams, Beer and Wine Fest, Unity Music Fest, etc.   

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 16 after hour calls--total of 25 hours. Completed 159 work orders. 

Streets & Stormwater: Poured a combined 187 Sq Yds of concrete on three jobs--Fuel Island at PW Complex, Multi-Sports Complex 
and 204 W. Chestnut St; Repaired 3 stormwater catch basins and raised 4 stormwater manholes; Jet rodded and cleaned 700 LF of 
stormwater pipe;  Cleared seven downed trees in Roadways @ 400 Redwood Tr, 1013 E Pine Circle ,Dixie Tr, 1502 E Walnut, 400 N 
John, 118 S Berkeley and the Transfer Station; Sprayed 2.21 miles of roadway for vegetation control along Wayne Memorial Dr, 
Berkeley Blvd, Ash St, Cement ditch at Wayne Ave/Hwy 117, Ditch at TJ Max, Rose St and Willowdale Cemetery



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
May 2023 
Prepared by: Amanda Justice, Candace Clarkson and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared: 6/07/23 
 

● Inquiries were fulfilled for the month of May by the TTO—250 e-inquiries. 

● Total hotel revenue generated in April was $2,258,307 which is down 2.2% YOY. May revenue not yet 

released. 

● April sessions increased 2.85% compared to March. The bounce rate decreased 55%, and the keyword 

“restaurants in Goldsboro nc” moved up 4 spots to number 2. 

● Our ½ page ad can now be viewed in the summer issue of The Local Palate. 

● Prepared 150 bags for WOW performers. 

● Hosted Travel Writers and Tourism Partners at the Wings Over Wayne Air Show 

● Zoom call with Visit NC to discuss branding research for Visit Goldsboro – Amanda/Candace 

● Zoom Call with Phenom Sports – possible Thanksgiving weekend football tournament. 

● Zoom Call with M-4 Digital – Amanda/Candace 

● Budget retreat with City Council – 5/26 

  

             City Occupancy Tax Collections 

 
 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2022-23 $77,698 $88,942 $92,884 $105,264 $98,050 $90,136 $70,276 $64,615 $81,123 88,849   $857,837 $85,783 

2021-22 $77, 369 $89,826 $83,501 $62,587 $81,019 $99,449 $62,630 $52,059 $71,272 $83,367 $84,805 $91,505 $939,388 $78,282 

               

               

               
 
 



Z



MNON

NO0zLU
F - 

z0OOLLW
JFaO0ZaHaU2NawHaaU0Z0zwawVzazDOZa

NLUUzaZ0ccOLLOLU0OVNOO: OmNDJODLLOVWLLO

Q 

C

W

m

CCW

Cm
C

NO

to

v

mLn

aJ

L

4-; 

CO

O

C

O

O

N

cr

u

i" 

E

Oa) 

p

mCL

a)

o

pE

mu

u

L

O

LOL°L. 

O
4

N

N

Q

p

oC

O

0

O

Q

O

O

tU
L=•Vf

o

m

Ln

00N

m

CL

a

aj

pN

0

O

4

0

O

C

E

N

O

O
a- 

Q

E

O

O

O

a; 

u

O

te_ 

L4'
o

pa
o

m

v

E

O

a

c

Q

m

O

v

u

E

o -

o

C

u

L

E

c

m

C

tio

u

Y

0ua, 

p

o

0

3

v

c

u

O_- 

Co° 
0

L

O

Ln

CL

c

E

o

a) 

U

o

o

Q

o

N

O

a) 

m

41

A

cefa

3

L

cp

z0

O

cm

0

C

m

0=,n

aC) 

bo

L

E

Ct

aJ

4--

0

Lu

a

U

o

L

m

O

O

OO
O

p

3

ia, A

OD

C

O

O0

a, 

OA

j

CQ

m

np

n

LL

OQ
O

L

L- 

C

Y0NL
O

O

LU

in

CU

Ln

E

OU
vi

a) 

O

L

V• 

Y

N

a) 

a) 

CU QE
aj

Q)- 

v

OZ

o = 

u

cu

m

C

p

Ln

a

tL

4- 

uQ

m

V

p

O

C

m

a

Q>> 

O

On

4w
p

L

4J

4- 

L

E

m

C

ap

O

CLa

0N
O

O

O

n

O

Qm

N

0

MC3

V

a) 

a- 

a

0

OE
00

Oa) 

O0
L

0

a) 

O

O

4-+ 

C

O3

Cw

C

a) 

Q

OL

O

O

U

O

O

L

C

O

a) 

O

m

O

7

7

CL

7

H

O

O

Lr)> 

Q

p

O

O

C

E

v

N

O 

O

c

0

1

CL
4

J

O

o° 

c

a, 

a) 

E

c

s

c

a) 

o° 

E

Y

v

V> 

W

GpD

L

C

L

m

iu-? 

m

U

a) 

L

fa

vO

m

p

C

O

n

z_ 

c

a

a) 

a, 

cv

p

z

E

Oac

o

o

c

3

0

s

v

Q

o

c

m

v

L6

L

L

3

p

fl- 

u

Q. 

E

V1

ate+ 

D

mE} 

O

a) 7

b4

O

O

Q

OAm

L

raO. 

N

a) 

a) 

O

a) 

c

U

Cp

cd

a

L

U

a

U

aJ

CT

E

L

0

Qi

a) 

3

J

a) 

u

N

O

o

c

0

V

v

Q

L

v

3

o

o

o

v= 

a

a

O

p

W

m

C

O

OL

E

O

U

O

Q

N

C

O

6

O

C

V

Z

CUJ
C

A

E

Q

o

U

L

m

L

m

C

m

O

Q

L

C

L

N

Q) 

3

pY

L ° 

a) v

CO

U

OJ

N

7

7

pCL

N

VI

0

V1Ln°

f4° 

CY.) a'^' 

fl

o0C

a

c

OO

v

a) 

O

a

3

t

c

3

v

N

O

L

i

L

4+ 

U

L

L

E- 

L

L

a) 

O

u

4O

a) 

Q

a) 

N

0

pp

a

O

O

O

C

a

W

O

0

W

a) 

O

0+ CL

a

E

a) 

a) 

C

O

a) 

O

c

m

E

to

a) Q

vi

OA

LO

m

U

co

a

4- 

0

M

f0

a) 

aJ

C

t

L

aJ

O

0

0

O

in

C

L

c

C

C

M

O

v

t

c

c

L

Q

3

fl

3

u

O> 

a) 

v

i

o

v

d

m

3

0

LLi

w

V

W

a) 

E

o

n

E

i

t

cLv

c

a) 

cro

a

c

o

O

n' 

CC

4- 

0

0

O

LCL

0 

N

N

O

v

O

toa) 

a) 

j

n

O

41Q

Z

E

N

raE

O

N

L

p

LL

O

LL, 

W

n

O

L

i

6

Z

tJ

ca

L

0

m

Ca

O

O

O

L

O

L

in

a) 

0

LL,

LU ' 

0

L

E

O

N

C

O

F- 

N

y,., 

z

0

L

CU
L- 

0

L

E

a) 

41

C

a) 

O

O

CC

4- 
O

a) 
OA

m

L

f

O

tvo

z > 

C

C

Li) 

C

OL

CL

0

Q

L

Q

cp

ODO

Q

a) 

Q

Q

O- 

O

x

LLIx

N

v

c

ro

Y

N
ti

Q

E

E

a

a

o

c

u

a, 

a

u

a, 

WOE
u

u

L

Z

o

E

o

t

o

C

E

7

t

a' 

E

L

E

Q

W

Q

m
v

O

m

O

O

z

a

m

F. 

m

a

io

o>- 

s

C: 

3

3

a

o

o

f

o

o

J

a

Y

C

O

a

s

p

O

2

O

L

a) 

a

d

Q

LL

cu

LL

L

J

ro

Q

O

cu

O

Z

Z

ri

m

N

D

D

OrF

a

v

MLn

e

a

a) 

vi

Q

Q) 

a) 

U

m

Cca

v

t

a) 

a 

t

J

Z

w

U

L

C

o

Oa

H

O

F

a) 

n

O

Q

n

a) 

4! 

L

m

m

Y

N

2

a) 

n

m

L

r- 

m

i

t> 

o

i

L

a

O

O

M

O

w

0

W

N= 

a

ei

C

C

Q

ar

t

m

v

z

a

a

L

a° 

oa

0
D

ei

a

m

O

um

0

Lm

2

2

in

o

0



m

N  

Y

C

C

C

4! 

a) 

4-

O

c

C

C

L

4! 

m

4- 

a) 

Q

o

O

a-+ 

N

i

U

m

E

m

CSA

L

i

L

41

CO

t

O

N

N

o +

Q+ 

C

Y

p

YO

v ° 

a) 

C

v

C

E

O

L

O '

O

i

C_ 

t

C ` -°

a

L

m

C

L

C ° 

N

bo > 

Z '

O

O ,

V

a) 

m

a) 

O

CLO

C

3

4- > 

m

a

m >- 

N

a) 

0

0

v

v ° 

c '" 

0) 

Eo

v

E

o

c

E

a) 

o " 

0

c

o , 

c

0

O

Q° 

L

m

t

a) 

m -

o

U

N

CLO

N

a 

C_ 

o

C

N

m' 

U ( 

m

U ++ 

c '

a

C

vi

N ° () 

C

a

m

o

3

y

N

E

E° > 

ao

o _

E + 

E

L

a) 

a; 

E " 

o

ecA ° 

U° 

m

O

m

N >, 

N

O

O

C

C +, 

4+ 

c

m

c

i

a

a) 

c

Y +

L

m

N "

O

c

m

m

N

U

4.

1

a) 

w

CCS

i

a) .

p -

a

4- 

a) 

a) +., 

7 -

C

O

i

L -

0 '° 

3

O ° 

O

L

a) 

L

a) 

O

U -

p '

O

a) 

U

to ++ +, 

a) 

O

a

tlA

C. 

Cyn .

0 ,

N > 

m

O

C

a) 

U

to

U

L

110 ++ 

N

L

U

a) — 

Y

C

m +, 

a) 

t3' 

L

C_ 

m

L

w

E

w

d "

O

C ,

C

U

C

a) 

N

L

L

C

m

OU _

U ' 

OA ° 

N

U

C

Q) }' 

O

L ++ 

N +•- 

Ln

c

a) 

v

v

o + 

c

i

E

i

c °° 

3

cu

v = 

on

W

o

U

N

i

N

m

4- 

C

C

E

U

E

O

p

O

m

o

N :

Ll'

p

O

U

E

E >- 

a) 

m

e 

O

E

C

3

a) 

C

a •

ti = 

i

O

i

i

w

N +-' 

aJ

Cyn

N

i

a

E — ` 

L

Y

O

m

C

U

O

L = 

a

a) 

Q

pOA

m

a) 

v

u

N

Ln

c

a) 

O += 

O

m

N

C +' 

a) 

p> 

a) 

a) 

m

p — 

0

a)

N

C_ 

L >, 

m

U

a) 

a) .

C. 

N

3

L1

C_ 

N

N

C- 

O

C

U

hA

N ° 

hA

L

v +' 

C

C

N > 

C

Q

a1 ++ > 

N

L + 

L

O

L + 

C

a) 

L

m

a) 

ai

3

L

v ° 

t)

A

0

m

m ° 

a, 

m

m + 

v

r_ '

a ° 

Q. 

cu

o

v

o -

a

v

o

o

N

O

O ., 

O

W

m

Y

G

C. 

C_ (

u

E

aJ

4- — '

m

w

N +•+ 

O

O

N

E

i

v

ai

3

C

E ° 

p> 

m> 

o

L

a) 

E +

i

a) 

c ° 

L

c

b

v >- 

c

O +,  

L

a) ++ 

i

p

N

U

a

7a

0

CSA

aJ

U

i

dA

p

m

E

O

N = 

C

m — 

U

a) 

O

N

O

U ` 

C .^ 

C

C

O

C ,

aC_

6+ >• 

U

O

L >- 

m '

C7

m

L

m

m ++ 

p

N

O

m

U

W> 

L

a _ 

Ln

t ° 

a `_' 

a .__ 

v — 

v

v

a °; . 

o

o° 

c

c

a) 

L

E

3

L

4 

a) 

N

C

m

a) 

m _

7

C > 

a) 

Y

a1

L

N

a) 

O

a) +%

7 +' 

CU

L

y

N

Q

C

U

p

OL

L} 

L

L

C 

O > >, 

a) 

N

U

O ,

C

N

O

a) +' 

C

O

C

Q

C

Q

m

C '

N

C_ 

N

m

C

3

mM ++ 

m  

N

M > 

U

w

C

N

v

o > 

w -

C

E

u

C_ >- > 

c

E •

o > 

m

u

c

E

v

C_ 

W 

a) 

o

a) 

m

3

u + _ + 

E

a+ 

p

o

o

p , 

a) 

m

4- 

c

a) 

Q

c

a) 

L

U

c

o -

a

E

m

N

ai -

p

N ° +

1

O— 

L `~ 

i=+ + > 

C

C

L

O

U

C ° 

E

4— 

L

a) 

O

7

m

ci > 

m

t

N

a) 

C

O

tin +

N

O +

L_., 

U

C

O

m

C

a) 

O

t- 

a

n

C_ 

7

C

N

O +

J = 

O

N

c

O

N

6

p ` 

m

3„ 

c° 

c

o

c

c

3

u `° 

c

o

CU `—° 

O

a

o" 

o

C -

a

3

a) 

3

a)  

v

a ° 

m

c

v; 

oA

p

a

v + = 

o

4- 

m

O

no

N

o — 

C

a) 

c

p

N +

L- 

O

E

c

M

m ++ 

O

c-+ '

U

Q

O

N

a

Q

L

U

m "

O

c

L +, 

m

3

N

m

Y + 

m

m > 

U

Q

a) 

o

L

L

U  

u

N

U

C

N

L "- 

N

m

N +

O•+ `

tea) — ? 

L -

O

N =  

m

3

L

O

p

C

V

i+ 

7

a) _ 

a) 

C ++ +' 

a) '^ 

C_ 

m

m

L

m +' ++ 

O

a) +, 

a) 

o

v

3

L

c

a) 

c

a) 

c -

p

c

V) 

aUi `^ 

O

o

m> 

E

v

3

a

aci

c

a +

L

qA

aci

o

U ' 

UO

C +_+ __

j

C

C

E

vCi

i `^ 

L

y += 

aL.., -

O ° 

L

a) 

cu

0

N

m

UO

m ++ 

N •

E

v

L

C

U

3

E

c

h0

U ° 

m > '

O

a

c

a) 

O

A >- 

p > 

C

E

m

U

L > 

Q(

u

a) 

p

OU

al

N

O

a) -

a

O

L

C

C

U > 

N

U

O

N

L

C +- 

L

t10

L

U

i

0 + 

O

C

L

E

a) 

m

al

a) 

L

N

N

p -

p

a) ++ 

CU '

O - 

C

L

C .

E

C

a) . = 

v "

C3

O

p +, 

0

O

i

m

qA

O

L '

U

a

Q- 

a) 

m

C

N

m

4- 

m

O

C

C_ 

p .

0

N ++ -

O

a) 

a) 

a) 

u

L

m > 

a) ° 

N

i + 

N >, 

C

C. 

C

i

O

U — 

a) 

L

O

L

C

O

fl

N

Q

U

U

C

j

a) +

L+ 

L

p

3

a) > 

Y `- `- 

U

a) +

N+ 

O

m

m

m

e

a) +' 

m

L

m

L

N > 

p

m

c ° °= 

E

m

N ` 

L

u

C

N +

L

o

N

v

C

a

L

E

c

c

3

L

L +, 

O

L

N > 

m

U

Laj O

L

4a

C

m

C- 

tQif

L

a

a) '- . 

C_ 

O

U

C `-• 

c

CL

N

CS

N

a

C

C

C

N

N >, 

N

C

N

a.. +

J

N

C

hA

Y_ 

m' 

m +? 

a) 

CU

c

a) 

L

C

C

A

E ° 

a) 

O

a +

L+ 

C. 

N

0

a) 

C

m "

O

a) 

m

aN+ 

m

m

m  

C

a) 

C +

C

m "

O

C

c

c

L

Q

Q) 

o

L

C. 

U

Q> 

a, 

E

m

N + 

C- 

o° 

3

U

C

C +. 

3

c

m

O

4- 

U

L

Q

m

U_ 

a) '

L

N

a) 

3 +

J

L

E

m +

m+ 

m

4- 

O

N

L

a) ° 

C. 

C ++ 

Q

LU0
a) 

m+ 

y

Q

O = 

O

E

N

a) 

O

C

C

C

L

C

m

L

N

N `~ 

a) 

a) 

7

O

O

U

m "

a ° +

r

C

C

O

E

L- 

Lnr
O

7

O.. •

C '

E  

N +-' 

N +' .

ca

L

N  .

a `~ 

N -

O  • 

L ~ 

C — 

O

N

O

O

a) • 

a) 

O  

O

Q

y   ` 

O  

O

N

m

a) +, 

c> 

U

w= 

O> 

O

a) 

c

E

m

m

O

p

E

O

O

O

4- —" 

Q

a) 

c

O

Q

m

O

E

O > 

C

a) 

L

c

O

m

c

m

L

O

a) 

O

U

v

Q ++ 

L

O

O

V' ` -- 

O

p

0

C

a

s

O

m

m

U

m > 

7

O

C +, *' 

L

E

3

W

N

O

a) 

a) 

C3

Z

a) 

L

v

E

i

C `•+= 

C

L

U — 

a

p •

U - ? 

O

o

C

C_ +

m+ -

p

N

N

f1

7

E

Y

C

V

O

L

a) 

L

a

Q

N
m

C

O

L

t. 

Pn ++ 

y

N

p

0

m

O

cr

i

L

C

al

a) 

L

N

L

L

U

O > 

C

O

N

a)  

C

a) .

E ` 

O "

M -- 

m

m

Y

C

C

c -

p

LL

C

a) 

O +, 

m

O

O

N

m

p

E

m

a) 

a, 

N

c

N

c- 

L

m

E

C+ 

p ; 

C

N

m - 

p

O

Q

m

3

a) 

Q

C

L

o

3

0

m ,,, 

C

0

E3
a

v

o

c

m

o = 

c

Z' 

t

m

m

u 

aV  

E

E

a ° 

u °'

n

Q

aN) 

E

v° 

o '° 

m° ,- °

c_° "°° 

v= 

m

E

c

4- 

o

L, 

Z

m

L

N

o

0

o

a- ° 

L +_ 

p

LM

a) 

aa)) — •- 

o

f

p

O

C

Q

i

C. 

C + }' .

3

C

O > 

U

N

a1

O +-' + 

Q

O° 

N

L

a

i

L

C

N

C

C

t

a) 

m

0

L

3

O

C

c

N , 

L

a

O

E

m

0

c

c

m  

a) 

L

m

m

0

L

m

N

C

C + 

N

C. ` 

O

O

a) 

c

c - '

o

c

p

O

c .. 

m

m

Q

O

Y

aU

C. 

O

N

E > 

L ° .

0

O

U

Q

m

C

C

O

O

C (

A +_ 

w

Q

U

U

1+ +

J

U

3

O

U

of

Q ° 

CU

O

Q ++ 

O . 

C

C. 

QJ

L

N

N

C

L •- 

Z

Q

dA

V) 

C

C .

0 +, .

0

i

L

C_ 

O

L

7

a) 

Ln

U

a) 

O

OU

OM

U

N

m

Q

a) 

Gm -
A

a) 

p

m

7A " +

L-' 

L

E

O

7

M

C

Q

O

p

C

O

O

7

L

X

p "

c

vi ~_ ° 

Q

4- 

a) _ 

a

U_ _ 

Q_ ._ 

v 

a) 

c ._ 

p

u

N

C + 

L

Q

m

C

a

a

O> 

a

Z

a

oCA

w ' 

F- 

C

Q

L

C +' 

O

U

O

m

C

L '- 

L

C

a) ° 

v ~ 

l"

I

O

L

m

m

i

N

C +-' • 

al = 

L — 

C

p

v

Y

L

a1

m• 

N

U

L

cu > 

rl

Z

Q

U

E

m

N

U '

y — 

m

O

W

O

CL . 

l7

a) _+ _

cr

3

u ° " 

3

a) ` 

m

C_ 

L

O

v

p

w - 

W

L -- 

c

z  

cu _. 

a) 

L " 

X

m

a) 

N

U

0 +, 

C "

O

N

0

m +

r

c0'
1

N

i

L +, 

7

0

E

a) 

m

C_ 

mLNNcO0O



a

r

L

L

C

L

Y

i

a

O ° +' .

v

N

O

aiai

L '° `. 

a

O

C

YO

L

O

aLc

C ° 

NULC

L

a

Cp)

cj

O

m

m

3Cm1

4- 

sYCmCa ,

y

a

O

iQ +>

N

i

m

E

OO
7

O

vCLa

CL

NU
a

m -

C

a .

2 -

0

c

m

OCOLNaOsA-° 

L

1

c

O

CO >
M- 

p

Y

a

C

t

m

m

vi

a

mY

m

a

O+

1

m

a

2

a

i

O

4- 

O

p

U

LO
0°

4-- 

E° 

Op > 
yv
v

On

o ° 

O

EL

cu

m

a

E

Ocu  >- .,, ° 

c

OE
aa

O

3

U

X

O

C

C

C

C

a, 

CC

mAO
p

O

d ,

0

3OH
O

O

t

mCN3

p

O > 

o

CUo
v° 

o

o

v

O

U

m

O

L

ob

p

U

N -

0

i

2

C

O °

i ' > 

00

CL

o

O

U

a

m

aaa
s .

0

o

CD +

4a'

N

a

m

a

p= > 

Cl)) 

U- 

t

h

W

CU

YL

o

o

Y _ ° 

L 

O

m

m

0

C

C7

a

L

m

O

N

a Ln

4.

1

a

O

E

O

1

a

O

OD

p  

Q- 

C

Y  

O

N

LJ

Y  

Y

m

a

E

a  

m

c

L

LO

U

E 

Cl) 

a

s

a

Y

U

a

C

a

m

p

C

Q ;-

1

C

U

LJ

O '= + 

t

o

O

L

L

Y +, 

a

L

c > 

m

c>

o

aai

o

a

t

c

m

C. 

C

a

m

m

o

o° 

a - 

c

a

o

N

3 > 

c

a }? 

O + 

L

m

o

O

a

N +' — 

N

L

C

C

a

3

Q

3

a ° 

C

a

a - 

a° 

L +, 

N

N ,

R

c

N

v

o

Y

L

a

a) 

C

a

04

M

C- 

C

a

E

Y •- 

L '

Ci-, (

0

7

a

N

m

a

a

a

a +, 

a

o

a

O '- 

C

O

Q

a

C

m > 

a

m °

U

a +

1

O

N

O

N

a

L

N

L

c

U

m

L

O

Y

a

CL

0

C

i

Y

n

O

a > 

C

m

m

L > 

O

MO

a

C

C

0_ 

C -

a

L `~ 

a

Z. 

a) 

U . 

i

C

a

L

m

Y

L

C

m , 

4

O

a

O

C

Q

C

O

a

C

3

O ° +' 

L

O

a

L

L- 

E

O

O

C

a

m

U + 

r' 

C ,+ 

a

m

V

4- 

C

a

a

C

a

N

Y

a)  

fl. 

m

t

C> 

m

C ;, 

Oa

m

7

a

L

H

m

Y +, 

C

O-

X — 

m

C

a

x

4- 

w +' 

O

N

a

t

p

U

V

OD

O

a

U

p

L +, 

O

a

O

a

p

p

C

m + 

a

O

C

U

a — 

4f ' 

L

m

OD

m

L

m > -

O

m

a

m

C) 

O

O

a

c

p

3

a

a

Q

Y  

a

Y

L

L

p

a

C

s

Q
c) 

i

c

N `° 

v

o

m

c

a

o

a

1Y/ f

U

a

a

O

C

C

a

m

C_ 

C

a

m

L

a -

0

U

ra

O

m > 

00 +' '^ 

O

a

s

a `- 

m  

i

t

7

a

a

L ' 

m

N

O

m

a

a

YO ('% 

m

a

m •'-' 

Y

O

4-

1

IL

Q

Y

O

fY0

a)  !'' 

Y

L

C

O

a

p

N

C" +_' 

OD

C

U +

t., 

L +' 

a

C

N

a

C

Y

L

Y

U, 

V

m

a

p

m

U  

E

E

0

m

a

O

a

Q

m

m — 

m (

U

a

p

a

C

a

00

C

O

L

u > 

7 > 

a

a

N

Y

a

Ccr

0

0

m

VV) 

a

a

L

a !_' 

a

L +, +, 

r

CD

a

N° 

a

C

a

C

N

Y

a

a

C

N

a

a

s •

U

a •

L

L

O

a

a = 

U

a

cu

viC
N ° 

a ' 

m

a

m

Y

a

0

O

L

a

L • 

C- 

O

p

C

C

L

L  

a , 

0

C

N — 

3 > 

O

a) . 

C

U

7

a

vi

Lp

a

0

a

U

L

m

0

Ln

0

0

a) 

L

CL > 

N > 

O

a

C

O

m

vi

C

Y

i) + 

a

C

a

m

N 

O

a ° 

a

N

N

4- 

E
E - 

m

m

m

Y

C

C

a

O

v

C

C

j _ 

m

O , 

a

a

Y +, 

a> +' *' 

a

a

s

a

m

Y

to

E

2, 

O

a

m

U

E

O

A

p

O

C

a

v"
i

0

a

C

m ` 

C

y

O

C

a

C- 

C

Ln

p +., 

3

L

YO

a °

c :

L' '

v

t, 

U ? 

a

o

m

L

c'

Co

E -

a

n

o

a

3

t

fu

v ° 

c

C

m

C

N

O_ 

N

L

C

a

C ° 

C

L

O

L

L

L

N

L

a

L

U

Y

c!) •

D

x

cu

W

L •• 

L

C

a

C

m

O

a

7

N

N

L

t' 

w

a) 

C

a .° 

O

a

0

O ° 

O

a -

0

O

a

O

N

O

z

a

s

C

L- 

3

L

7

C

m

7

a

N

a

U ai

a

C

7

L

m +-' 

C

C

a }, 

a ° 

O

C' 

C

O

a) 

a

a

O

O

N

O

L

a

N

O

p

a

U

N

C

m

O

O

U

m

OD

41

a

v

O— +> *—' 

C

O

C

L

L

a

L

N

Q

a

0

N

In

p

N

O

O

0

0

C >, .

O

D

N ` 

N

E

a) '

N ,

r- 

O

L +, 

O

Cn

a

m

a

C ^ 

C

N

O

t

W- 

z

N

m

N

O

L

U

Z

O

a

a

Y

L '- 

N

OD

a

a

Y -

p

O

L

O

a

Vf

C

p

m

a

0

a

O

m + 

m

t

L

m

w

a > 

m

L

C

a

t

3 = 

E

a

a

p

O

a

s

V) 

a

a

N

C

Y

N +• > 

C

a

u'
1

O

v- 

O

a

W

C

a

L

E

C

7

p >• 

L

m

O

U

a

i

m

O ++ 

L1

C  (

n

a

a

L

O

U

m

N

L

L

O

on

U

U

a

C

C

a

C

O

00 >, 

d

O

C

3

C

a

a

p

E °

c> 

O— 

C

a

m

a

U

O .

c

a° 

u

o

N

v

L +- 

L

m

p° 

O

a

v

2

C

E

a

s

t

C

L

C

p

L

C

N

N

Cr - 

t

O +, 

Y

L > 

O

N

m

w

C

a

a

N

On

L

m

m

O

C > 

U

a

a

Q

E

a

L

E

F

4_ 

0 > 

m

a

s +

1

C

O

L 

N

o

3

N  

a

0

is ° 

r- 

N

m

a  

L

C - 

a

p° 

t

Y

CL

Y 

O

L

a

O

E `- 

C

Y

a

N

N +, 

a. 

V > 

p

U

L

m

a

a

t

a

Y

O

L

C

t— 

O

N

V) > 

O = 

O> 

C

O

L

a

s

W

a

ti4 `+- 

d

O

a ? 

m

m

C

a

Y

O

m

O

U

a +, 

3

U

N

L

t

a

U

a

C

m

c m +, 

m

N

z ° +; 

L

a

C

a

L

a

O

O

O

Q

a > 

N . 

a

N >, > > 

t

4L- 

m

a

Y

C

On

C

a

Y

N

w

a

L ° .

0

ocn . 

m

a

O° 

a

O

p

t

v

O

c0

H °° 

Q

a

cco

a

Y

0
4= ° 

a) > 

c

w

LL "- 

c

O

te

a" 

c

O

Q
Y

o

a

c

U

o0

0

c

O

Y

U

m

Y > 

a

C -

a +, 

3 , - 

o

o

L

C

O

o

C

C

L

L

N •- 

Cr

C

p' 

G

C

a

m

a

a

a

a

C' 

C

O ° -

O _ 

N

m

C

Y

C

C

Ln '(

a

C

N

a

a

O

i

vi

d •- •

O

m

cm

L

L

a

a

Y

a  

Y

o .

i

m

z .

Q

LLJ

o

p

C

m

L

4- 

a = 

N

U

7

Y

a

7

E

C

m

O

L

O ° 

d

N

C

C

W

G

a"' 

a

a"' +' 

m

a

a

L

L

a

OD

U

Q

C

L

V

O

N

4-- 

U

O

a

Q

a

p

Q

a

s -

0

a

U

m

U

Q

c

m- 

a

Y+ 

O

a

p

N +_ 

a

p

0

X ` ° 

C

C

C

O

O = 

a) 

A

m _ 

Y

L

a

Y

W

L

a

m

to

o

Y ° 

o

Y

Z> 

O

L +

3

O

i

N

O

U

A

L

L

v

a

00 ,

t

41

O

O

N

a

0

0

m

a

C° 

G1

C

O

a

s

oA

C + 

ar + 

E

Z

t

Z

O

c

U ° 

Z

c

a

o> 

O

U +' > > 

m

O° 

a ' 

m

e

v

ac'
o

p

U — 

m .

Q > 

L

u ,

N, 

0

U

m

a

Q

o

a

Q

CL

a

w

m  

a

s _ _ 

X _ 

L

v

a. 

N

a

m

o

a

E

O

m

Q +' 

Q

v

Y

Z. 

a' 

Q . 

t

C

m

C

L

L

t ^ 

L ^

CL

rA

E >- 

L

C

O

O

m? 

O

C

d. 

ri

Q

a .'_^ 

rl

C

Q

CO

U
4- 

m ° 

W

7

0) 

a

a

s

r•
i `^ 

a .

1 — 

O

a

a

N

a

a - 

LA

a

3

a

cLv

v
OU

v

U

W 

a

s 

D 

0 . 

v
t

v

a

a

r

a

0

Wi ++

1

m

w 

Q

2

y

v
0

v

a

0

m



o

f° 

0

0

Co

0v, 

c

m

a) +

j

a

O

Vf

t

L } 

U

D

U

a) 

C

a) 

t

o

E

N

41

L

v

04-
1

u

w

0C

of •

f6

O

E
4- 

a) 

m

E

O

0

Q

CL

m

CL

O

CO

m

in

C12
O

U

4! 

O

C

M

a1O

w

O

ate-+ 

U

0-

0

Fa

4- 

O

u

C

uLO

L

C

of

N

a) 

CL

N

a

ai

C

u

O

la

N

U

t+ 

ro

E

C -

0

tf 

Q

t

a-+ 

i - 

u

D

O

a) 

O

H

L

CC

C

ut

f6

0

C ++ 

v1

Q

L

M

v

m

Q

i

E

O_ 

0

o

m

O

O

a) 

Q - 

O

L

0

U

O

R

o

N

CL

U

L

N

Q

a) 

a) 

7

m

t

to

N

OCU
0

u

u

fD

va1

C

O >-

cu

0

y

a) 

u

Cu
u

E

C

fa

On

m

C

ate-+ 

O

C

u

cu

4-

a) 

ca

t

3

c

o

a 

V) 

c

v+ 

mC

yu

L

c

0

O +

C

o

M

E

c

c

v

C

of

j

O

L

U

i

i

GO

N

3

n. 

c

CU

d

C

M

O

I- 

41

vii

C

Q

Q

O

C

v

J

W

a) 

a) 

QaJ
C

Q

L> 

0 +

r

O

7

a—

I

a

m

O

N

a0

U

L4

0H

U

a > 

CU04- Q



Item  _________ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

JUNE 20, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Adoption of the Annual Operating Budget Ordinance for Fiscal Year 2023-24 

BACKGROUND: G.S. §159-13 requires that the governing board adopt a budget ordinance prior to July 
1 to make appropriations and levy the taxes for the budget year.  Specifically, the 
Budget Ordinance establishes the property tax rate and any special taxes which may 
be levied during a fiscal year, such as the Special Downtown Municipal District Tax. 
Other fees and charges levied by the City are also described within the contents of 
this document. 

The major emphasis of a Budget Ordinance is to identify by fund the estimated 
revenues a municipality anticipates collecting during a fiscal year and to delineate by 
fund, department, and activity how these monies shall be appropriated.  The Budget 
Ordinance may also describe any special authorizations granted to the Budget Officer. 

DISCUSSION: Passage of the Budget Ordinance is an annual occurrence.  No budget for the fiscal 
year can be implemented without the formal adoption of the provisions of this 
document.  The Budget Ordinance reflects the decisions made by the City Council 
during its budget reviews and discussion.  The Budget Ordinance assures compliance 
with all pertinent State Fiscal laws.  It must show an exact balance between revenues 
and expenditures.  If circumstances do not warrant the adoption of this document by 
the prescribed date, an interim budget must be approved by the governing body.  The 
specific authorizations granted to the Budget Officer are the same as were delegated 
in Fiscal Year 2022-23 that relate to the reallocation of departmental appropriations, 
interdepartmental transfers, and interfund loans and transfers.  Also, the Finance 
Director and Assistant Finance Director are authorized to sign all pre-audit 
certifications for budgetary appropriations as required by G.S. 159-28.  

Council met with staff on several occasions to discuss the FY2023-24 recommended 
budget.  During those sessions, Council discussed increases to water and sewer rates 
by 4%, and a property tax increase of $0.05 from $.68 cents to $.73 cents per $100 of 
valuation.  Increases in fees are also presented in the ordinance in Planning, 
Inspections, Engineering, Parks and Recreation, Goldsboro Event Center, Golf, Fire, 
and Public Works to address cost of service.  

REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS 
The proposed adopted budget presented here reflects the following revenue changes: 

• General Fund - The property tax rate will increase from $0.68 cents per
$100 valuation to $0.73 cents per $100 valuation.  The property tax was 
increased in FY2021-22 by 3 cents to help build fund balance and was the 
first property tax increase since FY2008-09.  The property tax for the 
Downtown Municipal Service District remains the same at $0.235 per $100 
valuation. 

• Fund balance appropriation – There is an appropriation of fund balance of
$1,500,000.00 presented in the proposed adopted budget. 

W



EXPENDITURE HIGHLIGHTS 
The proposed adopted budget presented here reflects the following expenditure 
highlights: 
 
General Fund-Agency Support 
An allocation of $100,000.00 has been established in Agency Support.  Council 
authorized the use of the United Way to coordinate and recommend the allocation of 
the agency support at a cost of 10% of the allocation amount.  When the United Way 
has completed its process and forwarded a recommended list of agency funding, staff 
will bring a budget amendment back to Council to approve the line item appropriation 
by agency.  Agency support in the amount of $20,000.00 has been set aside as 
unallocated to comply with Senate Bill 473, Enhance Local Government 
Transparency Act, signed into law December 9, 2021.  Separate budget amendments 
will be presented for each agency as needed so Council serving on the board or 
commission will be able to recuse themselves from voting on the funding. 
 

 Position Allocation 
 FTE 

Count 
FY22-23 Adopted 482 
Elected Officials 7 
Added During FY23 0 
FY22-23 Adjusted Adopted 489 
  
FY23-24 Manager Recommended 486 
Elected Officials 7 
FY23-24 Proposed Adopted 493 

 
 A total of four full time positions were recommended.   

Human Resources Nurse 
Paramount Theater Technical Director 
Engineering  Administrative Assistant III 
Golf   Golf Course Maintenance Technician 
 
Permanent part-time employees will be reduced from 15 to 11. 

 
 
 Salaries & Benefits 
 Included in the FY2023-24 proposed adopted budget is a 2% cost of living adjustment 

for all full-time and permanent part-time employees that are employed on June 28, 
2023. The raise will be effective on July 12, 2023 which begins the first full payroll 
in FY24 in biweekly payroll 15 which will be paid on July 28th.   

 
A net bonus of $400 (full-time) and $200 (permanent part-time) for eligible 
employees is budgeted and will be paid the week of Thanksgiving between biweekly 
24 and 25. Employees who are on probation will receive half the amount.  
 
A merit raise of 1% has been budgeted for all full-time and permanent part-time 
employees to be effective on January 10, 2024 to be paid with the first full paid 
payroll on January 26, 2024.  Eligibility will be in accordance with the personnel 
policy. 
 
The deferred compensation plan 401(k) remains at 5% for sworn officers and 4% for 
all other employees.  LGERS retirement contribution for employees remains at 6%, 
and employer contributions are set at 12.91% non-LEO and 14.24% LEO. 

  
 
 
 





 



Laio

03

N

N

7C

iC

I = 

b >> >> 

C '

cn

U =  ; 

N

U '

C

0

r

U) 

0_  .

ct

Q, 

4 [+ 

tom, 

d '" 

N > 

y" '

Ell

cn

cz

AJ

i1, 

w . 

v

7 

p

0

cd

cqj

O

59

ct

b

bA >, ` ¢ 

c

O

cn

N

M

O

O 

p

O

W , 

4

s, - ,

fl

s 

N¢ 

N

O

a1

M

7C
4. >, 

N

U

U  = 

b

O

O

H

Fi4

o

cd , 

O

O

O

pp

4 + 

O

oo

b4

b ^

C > 

D

O

V) 

O

O

M , %, 

W

vi

N

N

N

U

O
s 

N •., 

N

a\ 

N

W) -- 

O ^ 

c

N " 

y

N

C/ 

4.

1O
U

O

y

U

U

N

M

O

O

110O

p

O

Ey

cC

4. >

v

f, 

O

N

to > 

N '

C

N

to

D

O\  .--

i   

M

N

O  > 

O  

O

H

NL,"  

O

cn .-

i 

U -..  

U

y

U ¢' ,

s: ' • 

s, 

cl

Q .

A

N .

d

4 

O

bA

cd9.
1

O

4, 

cl

4U 

o

4° -

G

O

69

F/

9

O

O

O

6A

O

0

N

a '

C7

X

N

is, 

U

U

O

O '

G

b

C7

bA

U

sU", 

W

S-, 

U

Q) 

m

U

N

T3

O

N

T1

NN

U

c 

H 

v •

p ', 

s , 

cC ° 

O

d

U

cd

cd

N

4° 

i

0

U ¢ , 

Cd

U

d

O

N

c

C

N

G

cc

F+

1

cd

U

r.

Q, `' 

X > , > 

M ^

z", 

O

U

CE

U

m 

U, 

4

F 

0O " 

v 

O

y

N

U

U

c 

c 

V- 

cd

M

U

cd

U

N

M   

Q, 

cC '

y '>' 

f-' 

4•" 

y

U

N

N

5q
9.
1

N

O '

C

b >, 

N

O  

N

H

4 

F

14. 

d

co

a •., 

o

M

9z

C) 

Q " -" 

CZ

qa 
O ) 

b

p 

Q ` • 

4?

H 

w

4° 

w

3

w

N

c 

ri

m

v; 

U

r

O

o 

o

N

o °

O

3 . 

cn

C7

v 

Q

O

C7

H

v 

o

C/)

o

V)

o

o

u

U)  

v) 

54 

a «

s

o

a ° " 

i

o

i

a°

i

a 

o

P4

3

U

p, 



O  

Y

y

Pi

O

os

oO

o

0

U

X '

fl

tb

U

O

U  

iD

Y

m

cri

Ow

c

A _ 

C13U

U

30
300

o

c

O

0

O

cd' .., rA

C) 

W

U

aaa, 

Ln

ni

o

0

W

d' 

M

N

r -
I

t

V'
j- 

An

An

CO

TVCQ) 

cr
W

U

OC) 
O

Ln

Ln

CN
p..

1

1o

a 

do

E

c

1O

o

a

3Z

oNLL

1OUU

rn

OOd > 

4: 

N=~ 

O 

U

n

6

O

U

U

YO

N  

iflU
O

m . 

co

bcd

U°

W) 

0

0

U — 

p

vi

ON

w

N

U

o

W

YO

m

ti ^

C } 

O

p
4 + 

M

4-, 

cd • 

N '

D

u° 

m. 

o

cd

w

U

o

cd

4" 

cd

10o
N

to

N

M

4,  

U

O , 

Q" 

y

sU, 

N

U

i

0,> 

V

O

O

O

U

O

U '""' 

O +' 

cd •-- 

0

aa

y • ., 

U "' . °-' .•

O

py

r. >, 

0N
N

bA 

N

CC

4-"' 

U

U

cd

U

5q

cd

y

U

U

y

U

U " 

U

id

U >, '

C

14

F, 

U

U

O

U

m

U

U -+ . 

d

U

O " 

R

v

Y

cd

O ' 

w

N

U

U

U

U

c .

L' , 

4, 

F, '

C ° 

m

ti

y' 

F, ; '

C

O

to

U

N

U

im, .

a

m

C

cd •

C•. " •

O

U

N , 

O

U

y

U , 

U

o

N

O

t," 

V

o

bA

F

cd

U

U

w

FU, 

o " 

N

In

O^.

03

O

M

o /

1

U

U

b^ 

p .

a

U '

C ° +°. 

y

W

V

0

y

Q

o

U

t•

y+•
1 

y '

Jl . 

r, 

O

tY ° 

N

Y '' 

CCi

Y 

I "'.

y .

y

0, ',

yy

cd

Y

y

O

b4

U -- 

Ir, .

moi

F, -

0 

y ° 

M

O

m

oU

co ~

U•

m>p 

0
l

UC3 •

Y~ U

UUl

C 

4UF,",, 

m

f 

m•°

Vp., 

0

CnIO-y

m ° 

w

N

ti .

o

I

C) 

0F'`

co

v,

w

i

u ° 

P! 

0 .. 

0

as

U

m

s, 

6

me .- 

Ucd
cd

U

U

U

d

O

cd

U '

o (

D

U

d

m

u

m = 

0y,. 

O

m

x

N

OOd

cd

cd

F, 

m

1.-, 

U '

U/°NUNd

mN
U

0

U

p

cd

O

m

U

4, 

O

C) ;

3

u

U

O

g

U

U . 

j ^

U

UmoCu
U

ce

U

0O '
t3

U

y.— 

j

N

pti
Cl

to

criF. 

y

m

U, 

n

cd

U , 

U

m

cd

4 

N '

C ° 

m

N' 

j

O

vi ¢ '

C

rA

Cd

N° 

mNCbA
O .: 

U

b ;

j

N

r

14 `" 

m

Fd,.

i'

O

cd "

o

PU

Cd

cl, 

O - 

NU

UN
0

c

N

o

N

U

oU0

s

0

UO

cd

U

O ° 

ISI

0

o

o

O

4

O

4

cd

F. 

U "

o

U =, 

I- 

U ; 

U

F, 

cd . 

N ° 

i-

1

ym. 

p 

m

to

w

U ++ 

N + 

t* 

i .- 

F, 

y

U

U

to '^

co

U .

o

U

oo

p

m

O -+ '

r

j

U

M

U

O

cd

cd -- 

U

U -- 

d , ^

C

m -- 

w
c . .

9- 

r , -- -

d

O

N

U

U

4, 

Y

N

U

N

O 

Oy. 

O

O

O

U

o

V

O

U

F," 

m '

C

O

U

4, 

o

U

o «

i

F, 

O

O

b

o

4, . 

o

o

O

P

o

69

m . 

F, ., 

Ri

r 

U

0 ' 

U

cd ', 

U ° ,

U

cd

F, 

cd '

C3

O '

Y

U " + , 

W

4, 

U

U

U

U

0

U

N

U

O 

C

N

c

U

p
p

U` 

O

u

N

i

N

u

N '

C

N

u

3

U

U

U

U

C/

1

V1

m

vo

C/] 

m .

U, 

U — 

U

U

cd

o

V] 

U

V] 

0

V] 

N

cd

U] 

U

cd

U

m

m

U}

y

F, -"

CEO

U

U

F, 

cd

F" 

OW

cd

cd

U

U

0

cd

Y

a) 

U

U

U

0

U

0

O

m

W

cd

0

cd

cd

U

ti

2

cd



00

O

W

N

O

It

O

N

O ' 

O

O

O

O ' 

O

O— 

N

O ' 

M ' 

O

O

M ' ' 

en ' 

O

O

O

O

O

00

O — 

O ,.

y

O

p

O

O

O

p

O

N

t` 

O

O

p

00

00

X

0

0

0

M

N 

O

NM
M

0\ 

Cl
r,,' 

O 

p

O

O ( 

O

O

N

O

D\ 

O

O

O

O

lD

110"

t

0

0

0

0\ 

N  

O

00

O0

v') 

tn -- -- 

O

O

N

0\ 

vi -+ 

O

W

M

N

01 .- 

O

N 

00  

O

O

O

O

O

N

O

N 

kn

bA ' 

W

M 

t

M - . 

N  

N

M

V) 

N - 

O '-+ 

O -. 

O

N

M

C
l

N "

It

N

p !

T

N

as

03N

ai

C) 

z  

A

o

u

oti

a

z

w

a

aA

3

b

00

9z

ct

0

3 

wa' 

a

v

W

a

v

a

cz

o

o ` , ° 

a

P. 

boa

g

F 

w ¢ ° 

W

U

W

A ¢ 

CIS

w

d

m

w

U

u

M

yC ¢ 

b

Z

W

o

o

a° 

O

O

w

wC5Fes- 

o4UU
v)¢

E 

C7

H¢

H

v

Uv ¢

F' 

xUc ¢

h

H¢

H

A

HU¢
F

O

u ¢

F

H



zwwCw,7

m

01

O

N '-

r  ••-+ 

O

O

O

M

M

tY

o0

lr 

O

m

C

M_ --

i

C 

C14

M

00

C   

M

O

N

V> 

E* 

UaFxHUwAoOA

00

0- 

crj

O

O

M

M

O

H

O
I'

D

OH

a

B

O

N

N

A

O

p

00

00

00

00

O

00

H

aW

N

t

O

M

A

co

O

y

N 

O "

O

00

t

kr) 

C1

M

O

M

N

v1

N

D

OO

O

O

N

M

N

M

ISI
4

N

4-

i

c) 

M

M

M .--

i

V') 

M

O
F 

OF

E 

o

U

GJ

o

zAw

N

0

a

PLO

N

Z

cz

E* 

UaFxHUwAoOA

a

a

F

H

a

A
w

H

aW

N

A

A

co

O

y

W

w

ISI4

cz

4-
i

c) 

F 

OF

E 

o

U

GJ

o

zAw

N

0

a

PLO

Z

cz

OH

U

H

C1

CJ

t1, 

U

V

Cd

C7

E 

W

a

W

U

F. 

U

E* 

UaFxHUwAoOA

a

a

F

H

Aw

aW

N

Aw

co

O

y

z
w

ISI4

cz

4-
i

c) 

F 
OF

E 

E* 

UaFxHUwAoOA

00en0 M

aHaW Wzw
E 

Ua

S

cz

OH

U

H

C1

U

00en
0 

M



y

vUi

UU

O

N

Q) 

03

o

b

o

0

CZ

ow

O

O

bA

U

Y

cd

V

i-

1

i-

1O

i

r•
1

ri-

I

O

O

44

U

O

U

cli

vi

N

OC> cz

o

O

Uy

C 

N

C .

y

G

y

M

ti

0

y. 

O

ti

U

U. 

i

O

b

O

U

Q, 

U

U

tU. 

N

ps

cd

4y  

n

O

u

bA

C

n

O1

4Y

c 

Y

U

O

O

N

O41

N

0

rAcn

Q• 

w

Q)

U

U

onC-,
3

Q

O> 

wU

U

U

t+ 

4• 

U
U

C:) 

iti

y

3•

r

bUA

O

it

O

i"-

igU

t" 

N

U

7O
4--

iU

O

YO '

C

C

YC

y

b
1p

UIn

N

0

C

U

U

CZ

GQ

uv

0

Y

O

p

ti

CZ

UU

C,

C- 

f -
Z, 

C/] 

O

C) 

W

00

U

t.'

iiW

O

14

Ly03
Y

V] 

Y

Y

o

Q. 

i

c.

i., 

i

Ste" 

c 

cC

vii

w
7-

r

4. 

M

0

N

b

U

O

O

Y
ct

U O

ON

Y  w  t

O

W

U

YU

Ycc

U

MNO

C77

N

O  N  
C") 

toU

50. 



Manual of Fees and Charges

FY2023-24

Adopted June 20, 2023



Department Page
General 1
Engineering 2
Inspections 3-7
Planning 8-9
Parks and Recreation 10
Goldsboro Events Center 11-12
Golf 13
Paramount Theater 14
Police 15
Fire 16
Public Works 17
Compost 18
Water Reclamation Facility 19

Index
Manual of Fees & Charges



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

Fee Title Current Rate Proposed Rate
Paper Copies $.25 per page No Change

Special Service Charge $33/per hr if >4 hrs No Change
Transfer Fee $10.00 No Change
Return Check Fee $20.00 No Change
Penalty $5.00 No Change
Service Penalty $15.00 No Change

HUB & FREEDOM FIELD RENTAL
Tier I $500 - 1 receptacle included No Change
Tier II $400 - 1 receptacle included No Change
Tier III $300 - 1 receptacle included No Change
Freedom Field Add-On $100.00 No Change
Additional $25 is charged for each additional receptacle No Change

($100 refundable damage deposit is due with application)

Miscellaneous Fees

If mailing is requested, the cost of postage will be charged. The City will require prepayment if the total fees are estimated 
to exceed $100.00.

Rates are subject to change as authorized by Council action.Adopted 6/20/2023 1



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

Fee Title Rate/Fee Proposed Rate

Stormwater Review Fee
$100+$25/AC (0-10AC)
$130+$20/AC (10+ AC) No change

SCM Fees $100/each $350 for first SCM on site and $50 each thereafter.
Maps:

Small $5.00 

Medium $10.00 

Large $20.00 

Custom/Data $40.00 per hour No Change

Engineering Department

Rates are subject to change as authorized by Council action. Adopted 6/20/2023 2



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

A $15 TECHNOLOGY FEE APPLIES TO ALL PERMITS 
Fee Title Current Rate Proposed Rate

RESIDENTIAL
Building $.12/sq ft $.14/sq ft
Electrical $.05/sq ft $.06/sq ft
Plumbing $.06/sq ft $.07/sq ft
Mechanical $.05/sq ft $06/sq ft
Gas $50 (run gas lines) $60.00
Insulation $50.00 $60.00
Water Line $50.00 $60.00
Sewer Line $50.00 $60.00
Handicap Ramps (Plan Rev. Req. - $50) $50.00 $60.00
New Residential (mandated by State of NC) $10.00

Accessory Buildings, Porches, Decks, Detached Garages & Carports – Plan Review 
Required

Building $.09/sq ft
Electrical $.06/sq ft
Plumbing $.06/sq ft
Mechanical $.06/sq ft

Repairs/Renovations – Plan Review Required
Up to $5000 $50.00 $60.00
$5001 up $4.00 per 1000
Mechanical (Change of equip only) $50 per unit $60 per unit 
If installing Duct work, fee will be 
     Figured by square footage $.05/sq ft ($50 min) $60 min
Plumbing $50.00 $60.00
Electrical $50.00 $60.00

RE-INSPECTION FEES
First Denial $75.00
Each Thereafter $125.00
*No re-inspections will be made until fee is paid.  All denials will now be charged
A fee, no courtesy re-inspections.

Mobile Homes
Single Wide Setup $150.00 $200.00
Double Wide Setup $200.00 $250.00
Electrical $50.00 $60.00
Plumbing (within curtain wall) $50.00 $60.00
Plumbing (outside curtain wall) $50.00 $60.00
Mechanical (change out of equip. only) $50.00 $60.00
If installing duct work, fee will be figured by sq.ft. $.05 ($50 min) $60 min

Modular Homes – Plan Review Required $.12/sq ft
Electrical $50.00 $60.00
Mechanical $50.00 $60.00
Plumbing $50.00 $60.00

Swimming Pool $100.00

Inspections Department

Rates are subject to change as authorized by Council action. Adopted 6/20/2023 3



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

A $15 TECHNOLOGY FEE APPLIES TO ALL PERMITS 
Fee Title Current Rate Proposed Rate

Inspections Department

House Moving $.08/sq ft - $75 min
House Demolition  (After Asbestos free report is received) $100.00
*Temporary Service Pole $50.00 $60.00

PLAN REVIEW FEES
New Commercial $150.00 $250.00
   *Addendums/Resubmittals   $50 ea. $60.00
Commercial up-fit/Remodeling $100.00 $150.00
New Residential $75.00 $125.00
   *Addendums/Resubmittals   $30.00 $50.00
Residential Additions of 600 sq. ft. or more (Includes storage, garages, etc.- under 600 sq. ft. 
No charge) $50.00 $60.00
Residential Up-fit/Renovations No charge
Temp Office Trailer $50.00
Cell Tower Upfit $100.00

EXPRESS PLAN REVIEW FEE
Residential $150.00 $200.00
Commercial $250.00 $275.00

COMMERCIAL  (Issue Fire Permit with Commercial permit)
New & Additions – Plan Review Required
Building -*For Large commercial structures, the fee will be: $.14/sq ft $.18/sq ft
   *50,001-75,000 sq ft $.14/sq ft $.16/sq ft
   *50,001-75,000 sq ft $.09/sq ft
   *75,000 and up $.06/sq ft
Insulation $75 per floor $80 per floor
Gas $50.00 $60.00
Fire Inspection $50.00 $60.00
Handicap Ramps  -  Plan Review Required $50.00 $60.00
Electrical
   * First 5,000 sq ft $.09/sq ft $.10/sq ft
   *5001-10,000 sq ft $.08/sq ft
   *10,001 and up $.04/sq ft
Plumbing
   * First 10,000 sq ft $.05/sq ft $.06/sq ft
   *10,001 and up $.04/sq ft
Mechanical
   * First 10,000 sq ft $.05/sq ft $.06/sq ft
   *10,001 and up $.04/sq ft

Commercial Accessory Buildings/Interior Upfits/Repairs & Renovations - Plan 
Review Req

Building $.09/sq ft ($50 min) $60 min
Plumbing $.04/sq ft
Electrical $.04/sq ft
Mechanical $.05/sq ft
Insulation $75 per floor $125 per floor
Fire Inspection $50.00 $60.00
Solar Panels (check for plan review) $.09/sq ft

Commercial - Change Out

Rates are subject to change as authorized by Council action. Adopted 6/20/2023 4



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

A $15 TECHNOLOGY FEE APPLIES TO ALL PERMITS 
Fee Title Current Rate Proposed Rate

Inspections Department

Mechanical  (Equipment Only) $60 per unit-change out
   *If installing duct work, fee will be figured by sq. ft. $.05 sq. ft. ($60 min)
Electrical wiring (1 unit) $50.00 $60.00
   *2-4 units $100.00
    *5-8 units $150.00
   *9-12 units $200.00
   *13-16 units $250.00
Commercial Modular $.14/sq ft $60 min
   *Electrical $60.00
   *Plumbing $60.00
   *Fire Inspection $60.00
Construction Site Prep work (GRADING)
   *Commercial $200.00
   *Residential $100.00

Conditional Temp Power
   *Residential (Bond) $500.00
   *Commercial (Bond) $2,500.00
   *Erosion Control & sedimentation $100.00
Temp Const. Site Office (TRAILER) – Plan Review Req. $65 per trailer

Commercial Demolition
$125 After Asbestos free 

report is received
Commercial Re-inspections:  First Denial $75.00
   -Each Thereafter $125.00
Commercial Equipment/HOOD $50 per hood $60 per hood
Commercial Mechanical REFRIGERATION $50 per unit $60 per unit
Grease trap Permits – Plan Review Req. -$150 $50.00 $60.00
Backflow Preventors $50 each $60 each

Commercial Roofing
   * Hot Roof $125.00
   *Rubber or Membrane $125.00
   *Shingle $60.00
   *Metal $60.00

SIGN Permits – Plan Review Required (No Fee)
   *Sign Value Up to $500 $50.00 $60 min
   *$501 - $1,000 $55.00
   *$1,001 - $5,000 $60.00
   *$5,001 - $10,000 $75.00
   *$Over $10,000 $75 plus $4 per $1000
Business Inspection -Any Building which is a change of use or has been vacant 6 months or 
longer.  Also, if any utility (to include water and/or electricity) has ceased to be in service for 
6 months or longer. $75.00 $100.00

Express Business Inspection -A business inspection that is required any time other than our 
regular scheduled days and times. (Regular schedule - Tues, Wed, Thurs at 9:30 am) $150.00
Tank Removal Or Installation $350 per tank
Plan Review Fees/Consulting Fees
 Fire Sprinkler Systems $250.00
Fire Sprinkler Renovations/up-fit $100.00
Fire Alarm Systems
   *Structures less than 1000 sq. ft. $50.00 $60.00

Rates are subject to change as authorized by Council action. Adopted 6/20/2023 5



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

A $15 TECHNOLOGY FEE APPLIES TO ALL PERMITS 
Fee Title Current Rate Proposed Rate

Inspections Department

    *Structure s 1001 sq. ft. or more $75.00
Grease Trap $150.00

Fire Sprinkler Systems PERMITS
New $250 plus $1 per head
Renovations/up-fit (up to 10 heads) $50.00 $60.00
Renovations/up-fit (11 or more heads) $250 plus $1 per head
Fire Alarm Systems PERMITS $50.00 $60.00
Fire Inspection – ABC LICENSE $50.00 $60.00

Illegal Burning Fee
First time $250.00
Second time and each thereafter $500.00

Fire Line (HYDRANTS) $50 Min – 6” line $60 min
Fire Line (HYDRANTS) $65 – 8” or Larger

Fire – Special Use
Assembly (Small or Large) $50.00 $60.00
Bowling Alley Resurfacing $50.00 $60.00
Combustible Fibers $50.00 $60.00
Compressed Gases $50.00 $60.00
Day Care Inspection $50.00 $60.00
Dry Cleaning Establishments $50.00 $60.00
Explosion & Blasting Agents $100.00
Fire Flow Test $150.00
Fire Works for Public Display $60.00
Tent (inspect fire extinguishers/flame ret. label)  & Itin. Merchant permit $35) $35.00
 Sell Inside store – fire permit only
Flammable & Combustible Liquids $100.00
Foster Home Inspections $50.00 $60.00
Group Homes/Residential Care Facility $50.00 $60.00
Hazardous Materials $100.00
High Piled Combustibles $50.00 $60.00
Institutional $50.00 $60.00
Lumber Storage $50.00 $60.00
Motion Picture Projection $50.00 $60.00
Other $50.00 $60.00
Public/Private School-Educational $50.00 $60.00
Repair Garages $50.00 $60.00
Special Assembly $50.00 $60.00
Tank Vehicles $50.00 $60.00
Tire – Rebuilding Plant $50.00 $60.00

Fire – Operational
Air Supported Structures $50.00 $60.00
Amusement Buildings $50.00 $60.00
Automatic Fire Extinguisher System $50.00 $60.00
Carnivals and Fairs $50.00 $60.00
Combustible Dust Producing Facilities $50.00 $60.00
Covered Mall Building $50.00 $60.00
Exhibit and Trade Shows $60.00
Explosives (Fireworks) $60.00
Fire Pumps and Related Equipment $50.00 $60.00

Rates are subject to change as authorized by Council action. Adopted 6/20/2023 6



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

A $15 TECHNOLOGY FEE APPLIES TO ALL PERMITS 
Fee Title Current Rate Proposed Rate

Inspections Department

Flammable & Combustible Liquid Tanks $50.00 $60.00
Flammable or Combustible (Tanks) $50.00 $60.00
Fumigation & Insecticidal Fogging $60.00
Gas or Fuel Vehicle Stored in Assembly $50.00 $60.00
Industrial Ovens $50.00 $60.00
Private Fire Hydrants $50.00 $60.00
Pyrotechnic Special Effect Material $50.00 $60.00
Spraying & Dipping Operations $50.00 $60.00
Stand Pipe System $50.00 $60.00
Temporary Membrane Structures-Tents $60.00
Temporary Membrane Structures-Canopies $60.00

Fire Code Violations
Fire Lane Violation $50.00 $60.00
Blocked/Locked Exit Doors-1st Offense $250.00
Blocked/Locked Exit Doors-Following Offenses $500.00
Immediate Hazard to Life & Property
   *Per day (first violation) $50.00 $60.00
   *Second violation (within 1 yr) $250.00
   *Subsequent violations (w/n 1 yr) $500.00
Overcrowding (unlawful Occupancy Capacity)
   *1st Offense $250.00
   *2nd Offense $500.00
Re-calculate Occupancy Load $60.00
Replacement of Occupancy Load Card $25.00 $60.00
SPECIAL AFTER HOURS INSPECTION REQUIREMENT FEES $100 per hr.

Special Inspection Request at least 24 hrs. in advance w/a minimum of 2-hr increments.
NOTE:  These inspections can be arranged seven days a week. 24 hours a day as long as we 
have advance. (Confirm with Inspector before scheduling)
Outside Site Lighting (Clarification)
If site lighting is being done by same electrical contractor as the building project, add $2.50 
per light to the electrical permit fee $1.50 per light

If the site lighting is being done by a separate contractor from the building  project lighting $250 plus $2.50 per light
If additional light is required at a later date or modifications from the building project 
lighting $100 plus $2.50 per light

UTILITIES (WATER/SEWER) $50 each $60 each

Business Registration Fee
Business Registration Fee $20/year

Rates are subject to change as authorized by Council action. Adopted 6/20/2023 7



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

Fees Fee Title Current Rate Proposed Rate

General Rezoning Public Hearing – City Council $500.00 $500.00 

Conditional Rezoning Public Hearing – City Council $550.00 $750.00

SPECIAL USE PERMIT Special Use Permit Public Hearing – City Council $400.00 $400.00 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Variance & Appeal Public Hearing – City Council $350.00 $400.00

TEXT AMENDMENT Text Amendment Public Hearing – City Council $300.00 $500.00

Non-Contiguous Public Hearing – City Council

Contiguous Public Hearing – City Council

Less than 1 acre disturbed area (no 
modifications) 

Administrative – In House $200.00 $200.00 

More than 1 acre up to 10 acres Administrative - In House $250.00 $250.00 

Greater than 10 acres Administrative - In House $300.00 $350.00

Exemption Administrative – In House $100.00 $100.00

Minor Administrative - In House $200.00 $200.00

Sketch Plan (formerly Preliminary) Administrative – In House $200.00 + $5.00/lot $300.00

Final Administrative – In House $150.00 + $5.00/lot $200.00

Goldsboro Planning Department

SITE PLAN REVIEW

SUBDIVISION REVIEW

REZONING

ANNEXATION $150.00 $300.00

Rates are subject to change as authorized by Council action. Adopted 6/20/2023 8



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

Fees Fee Title Current Rate Proposed Rate

Goldsboro Planning Department

PUD/CLUSTER SUBDIVISION Council  Approval $550.00 $850.00

STREET CLOSING Public Hearing – City Council
$200.00 + Actual cost 

to Advertise
$300.00

STREET NAME CHANGE Public Hearing – City Council
$200.00 + Actual cost 

to Advertise
$300.00

Minor Administrative – In House $50.00 $50.00 

Major 
Public Hearing – Historic District 
Commission

$150.00 $500.00

Vested Rights Add Site Plan Review Fee Public Hearing – City Council $100.00 Remove
Zoning Verification Letter Administrative – In House $25.00 $25.00 

Minor Administrative – In House $25.00 $100.00

Major Public Hearing - SUP BOA $150.00 $400.00

Development permit/septic Administrative – In House $25.00 $25.00 

Itinerant Merchant Administrative - In House
$35.00 $50.00

Home Occupation

CERTIFICATE OF 
APPROPRIATENESS

Rates are subject to change as authorized by Council action. Adopted 6/20/2023 9



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

Fee Title Rate/Fee
Resident Discounted 

Fee Proposed Change
ATHLETIC FIELD RESERVATION
1 field, 4 hours, no lights $90.00 $75.00 No Change
1 field, 4 hours w/ lights $200.00 $150.00 No Change
1 field, 1 day and 1 night $325.00 $275.00 No Change
2 fields, 2 days and 2 nights $650.00 $550.00 No Change
W.A. FOSTER CENTER
Gymnasium $250.00 $200.00 No Change
    Sports Camps $250.00 $200.00 No Change
    Commercial Events (AAU Tournaments, etc.) $400.00 $350.00 No Change
Multi-Purpose Room: $250.00 $200.00 No Change
   Half Room $125.00 $100.00 No Change
Kitchen $75.00 $60.00 No Change
HERMAN PARK CENTER
Auditorium: $175.00 $150.00 Delete
   All Commercial Events $400.00 $350.00 Delete
       (Events for which tickets are sold or admission is charged)     
Meeting Rooms 1 & 2 $60.00 $50.00 Delete
Kitchen or Patio (hourly) $50.00 $40.00 Delete

T.C. COLEY COMMUNITY CENTER
Recreation Room $160.00 $135.00 Proposed Change add non-resident fee
Meeting Room with Mirrors $40.00 $30.00 Proposed Change add non-resident fee
Meeting Room $40.00 $30.00 Proposed Change add non-resident fee

PARK HOUSE (all rentals are in blocks of 4 hours) $100.00 $80.00 No Change

GAZEBO (all rentals are in blocks of 4 hours) $60.00 $50.00 No Change

PICNIC SHELTERS (all rentals are in blocks of 4 hours) $50 per shelter $40 per shelter No Change

YOUTH SPORTS LEAGUES (per participant per sport)
Soccer, Basketball, Baseball/Softball, Flag Football, etc. $60.00 $45.00 No Change

SUMMER CAMPS (weekly fee)
Full Day Camp at WA Foster Center  $65.00 No Change
 Half Day Camp for 5-6 yr olds at WA Foster Center $40.00 No Change
Sports Camps - Freshwater Fishing, Volleyball, Basketball, Baseball/Softball, Golf & 
tennis, All Sports $45.00 No Change
Beach Fishing $55.00 No Change

No Change
FITNESS CENTER MEMBERSHIP (calendar year) $50.00 No Change
Daily Rate $5.00 No Change

POTTERY CLASS $60.00 Proposed - Increase to $70
POTTERY MEMBERSHIP $80.00 Proposed - Increase to $90
CLAY $20.00 Proposed - Increase to $25
SEWING CLASS $5.00 No Change
FITNESS CLASSES (Zumba, Aerobics, Line Dancing, etc.) $5.00 No Change
SPECIAL EVENTS $10-$100 No Change

SWIMMING POOLS
Admission for Youth up to age 18 $1.00 No Change
Admission for Adults 19 and over $3.00 No Change
Seasonal Swim Pass – Youth $60.00 No Change
Seasonal Swim Pass – Adult $125.00 No Change
Group Swim Lessons $50.00 No Change
Individual Swim Lessons $70.00 No Change
 Pool Parties $150.00 No Change

Parks & Recreation Department User Fees

Rates are subject to change as authorized by Council action. Adopted 6/20/2023 10



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

Room Guest
Current Rate         
Mon-Thurs

Entire Facility 1 600 $1,200.00
Ballroom 240-400 $800.00
½ Ballroom 144-250 $500.00
Bar Room 64-125 $400.00
Gallery, Patio, & Lawn 56-220 $400.00
Additional hours to block 2 $75.00
Photo Session (2 hour) 3 $75.00

GEC Full-Day Package (includes entire facility up to 12 consecutive hours) (linens included) $1,600.00

GEC Event Package (includes 2 days / up to 8 consecutive hours per day) (linens included) $2,000.00
$750.00

$1,400.00

Red indicates proposed change.

Table/Chairs Chairs Only
Entire Facility
Ballroom 240 300-400
½ Ballroom 144 180
Bar Room 70 120
Gallery, Patio & Lawn

 Gallery 56 N/A
 Patio 96 160-200
 Lawn N/A N/A

220
N/A

Rentals are based on 5-hour block, unless otherwise noted

Meeting Package (includes Bar Room up to 10 consecutive hours; includes sound/projector)

Seminar Package(includes Ballroom up to 10 consecutive hours; includes linens, projectors, sound, easels, 
whiteboard.)

600 cap.

Room

$650.00 $750.00
$500.00 $600.00
$500.00 $600.00

Current Rate Fri-
Sun

$1,400.00
$900.00
$600.00

Standing

$500.00
$500.00
$100.00
$100.00

$2,000.00

$2,250.00
N/A

N/A

Proposed Rate         
Mon-Thurs

Proposed Rate  
Fri-Sun

$1,500.00 $1,750.00
$900.00 $1,000.00

$75.00 $100.00
$75.00 $100.00

$2,000.00 $2,500.00

$2,500.00 $3,000.00
$900.00 N/A

$1,500.00 N/A

Accommodates
Measurements

80' x 53.5 ' (4,280 ft²)
 80 X 34 (2,720 ft)
53' X 18" (954 ft2)

47-64' x 19' (1,040 ft²)
46' x 29' (1,334  ft²)
0.3 acre (13,000 ft²)

500
200
150

170

Goldsboro Event Center

1-Includes Ballroom, Bar Room, Gallery, Patio & Lawn

2-Only 3 additional hours permitted before rolling into 5hr block

3-May be unavailable Friday – Sunday

A 25% discount will be applied to the base rental for clients who commit to a 
minimum of 6 rentals annually. (Fee subject to change)

Rates are subject to change as authorized in budget ordinance. Adopted 6/20/2023 11



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

Goldsboro Event Center

Service & Equipment Fees

Bar Set Up Fee (includes 1 Bartender(s)/setup) $150.00
Stage - 6' x 8' (includes riser, steps, & skirting) $150.00 + tax
LED Video Projector (3 in Ballroom or Portable) $25.00 + tax
Sound System (includes microphone/podium/mic stand) $25.00 + tax
Piano (includes tuning) $100.00 + tax

Table Linens (Black / White;  Round /Rectangle;  floor length) $9.00 each/ + tax
Chair Covers (Black / White) $1.00 each/ + tax
Chair Sashes (Black/White/Silver/Red/Gold/Royal Blue) $1.00 each/ + tax

Copy Services
    B&W $0.10 each
    Color $0.25 each

    Half Day (4 hours or less) $4.00 person
    Full Day (5 hours or more) $8.00 person

Health/Savory Snacks (Kind Bars/Trail Mix or Chips/Cookies) $5.00 person

$200.00

Proposed Price/Day

$150.00
$25.00
$25.00

$100.00

+ tax
+ tax
+ tax
+ tax

$0.10 each
$0.25 each

$9.00 each + tax
$1.00 each + tax
$1.00 each + tax

CATERING - All LICENSED caterers must submit a copy of their Food Establishment Inspection report and food liability insurance.  A list of preapproved caterers 
is available upon request. 

NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION - All Non-Profit Organizations must submit a copy of their “501c3” to be eligible for a 10% discount for any room rental at the 
Goldsboro Event Center (discount does not apply to amenities).
ANY CITY-SPONSORED EVENTS will be held at NO COST to organizations with the approval of the City Manager or designee.

Hours of Operation - Goldsboro Event Center is available for use from 7 a.m. - Midnight.  Events must conclude no later than midnight; failure to comply will 
result in an automatic forfeiture of refundable security deposit.

$5.00 person

Current Price/Day

Beverage Services (includes unlimited coffee, tea, can soda, & water)
$4.00 person
$8.00 person

Non-Refundable Deposit
A non-refundable deposit of 25% of the total estimated balance is required to reserve your event date. Deposit will 
be applied to your final balance.
Refundable Security Deposits Required
A refundable security deposit of $250.00 will be required to reserve a date at the Goldsboro Event Center. Security 
deposits are refunded when facility guidelines are met. They are not part of the rental fee and may not be applied 
toward your balance.
Please note BOTH of these deposits are required to reserve a date with the Goldsboro Event Center.
Final payment is due a minimum of 3 weeks prior to event date.

Available upon request – Easel (3), Whiteboard, Laptop stand, power strips, extension cords, and flags (US & NC)

All fees include setup.  Tables and chairs are available, but limited.  They will be available on a first come, first served basis.  
Renters may be required to rent additional equipment when necessary at their expense.

Rates are subject to change as authorized in budget ordinance. Adopted 6/20/2023 12



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

CURRENT GOLDSBORO GOLF COURSE  
2020 RATES

Monday —————— Friday Regular Senior Military
Junior 
(13-18)

City Employee

18 Holes w/Cart $28 $24 $24 $20 $24
9 Holes w/Cart $17 $17 $17 $12 $17

18 Holes Walking $17 $15 $15 $4 $15
9 Holes Walking $12 $12 $12 $4 $12

Weekends and Holidays Regular Senior Military Junior City Employee
18 Holes w/Cart $33 $30 $30 $22 $30
9 Holes w/Cart $22 $20 $20 $15 $20

18 Holes Walking $24 $20 $20 $6 $20
9 Holes Walking $15 $12 $12 $6 $12

PROPOSED GOLDSBORO GOLF COURSE  
2023 RATES: Effective (Summer)

Monday —————— Friday Regular Senior Military
Junior 
(13-18)

City Employee

18 Holes w/Cart $29 $25 $25 $21 $25
9 Holes w/Cart $18 $18 $18 $13 $18

18 Holes Walking $17 $15 $15 $4 $15
9 Holes Walking $12 $12 $12 $4 $12

Weekends and Holidays Regular Senior Military
Junior 
(13-18)

City Employee

18 Holes w/Cart $34 $31 $31 $23 $31
9 Holes w/Cart $23 $21 $21 $16 $21

18 Holes Walking $24 $20 $20 $6 $20
9 Holes Walking $15 $12 $12 $6 $12

Current Proposed
Yearly Cart Plan $750 $775

Additional Family Member $200 $225
Spectator Cart $13 $14

Passholder Cart 18 Holes $13 $14
Passholder Cart 9 Holes $7 $8

OTHER CART FEE SCHEDULE CHANGES

Goldsboro Golf Course 

ALL PRICES INCLUDE TAX

RATES AFTER CARTS FEES ARE INCREASED BY $1.00 SHOWN IN RED
↓↓

ALL PRICES INCLUDE TAX

Rates are subject to change as authorized by Council action. Adopted 6/20/2023 13



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

Events Local Fee Non-Local Fee Proposed Change
First Public Event in a Day- 5 hour block $500.00 $650.00 No Change

Additional Public Event in Same Day- 5 hour block $300.00 $375.00 No Change
First Educational Synopsis in a Day $250.00 $300.00 No Change
Additional Educational Synopsis in a Day $125.00 $150.00 No Change
Private Social Event (Mon-Thurs)- 5 hour block $300.00 $375.00 No Change
Private Social Event (Fri-Sun)- 5 hour block $500.00 $650.00 No Change
Workshop/Presentation- 5 hour block $300.00 $375.00 No Change
Rehearsal/Load In (Mon-Thurs)- 5 hour block $250.00 $300.00 No Change
Rehearsal/Load In (Fri-Sun)- 5 hour block $300.00 $350.00 No Change
Additional Hours (over the 5 hour block) $90.00 $90.00 No Change
Photography Session (per hour) $60.00 $60.00 No Change
Dark Day (Mon-Thurs) $100.00 $125.00 No Change

Dark Day (Fri-Sun) $200.00 $225.00 No Change
Wedding Package (wedding/rehearsal) -5 hour block $800.00 $950.00 No Change
Wedding Reception (Mon-Thurs)-up to 60 guests $300.00 $375.00 No Change
Wedding Reception (Fri-Sun)-up to 60 guests $500.00 $650.00 No Change
Kawai Grand Piano $165.00 No Change
Yamaha Clavinova $25.00 No Change
Digital Laser Projector $45.00 No Change
HD Livestreaming $45.00 No Change
Smoke/Snow Machine $25.00 No Change
Chandelier $25.00 No Change
China Silk (per drape) 6 available $15.00 No Change
Podium $15.00 No Change
Dance Floor $25.00 No Change
If Renter Sells Concessions (restock fee) $50.00 No Change
Renter Deposit (non refundable/transferable) $300.00 No Change
Recurring Renter Deposit (non refundable/transferable) $125.00 No Change
Ticket Sales (set up fee) $50.00 No Change
Box Office charge per performance (1.5 hours) $25.00 No Change
Box Office Additional Hours (per hour) $25.00 No Change
Tech Fee (per hour)-if not included $18.00 No Change
Building Attendant Fee (per hour)- if not included $14.00 No Change
Convenience Fee on Each Ticket $1.00 No Change
AudienceView Complimentary Ticket Fee $0.25 No Change
AudienceView Consignment Ticket Fee $0.25 No Change
AudienceView per Ticket Charge $1.62 No Change
AudienceView Credit Card Charge is 4% No Change
Showtix4U Set Up Fee $15.00 No Change
Showtix4U 10% Royalty Fees when applicable No Change
Taxes 6.75% of purchase No Change

Paramount Theatre

Rates are subject to change as authorized by Council action. Adopted 6/20/2023 14



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

Fee Title Current Rate/Fee Proposed Rate
Fingerprinting $10.00 No Change
Copy of Report $2.00 No Change
Special Events Permit $100.00 No Change
Special Events Permit - Parades $200.00 No Change
False Alarm(s) 1,2,3 in FY (each) $0.00 No Change
False Alarm(s) 4,5,6 in FY (each) $50.00 No Change
False Alarm(s) 7 and greater in FY (each) $100.00 No Change

Goldsboro Police Department

Rates are subject to change as authorized by Council action.Adopted 6/20/2023 15



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

Fee Title Rate/Fee Proposed Rate
Operational  Permits:

ALL FIRE OPERATIONAL PERMITS ARE COVERED UNDER INSPECTIONS FEES BUT PERFORMED BY THE FIRE MARSHAL'S OFFICE

Construction Permits:
ALL FIRE CONSTRUCTION PERMITS ARE COVERED UNDER INSPECTIONS FEES BUT PERFORMED BY THE FIRE MARSHAL'S OFFICE

Construction Plans Review:
ALL FIRE CONSTRUCTION PLANS REVIEW ARE COVERED UNDER INSPECTION FEES BUT PERFORMED BY THE FIRE MARSHAL'S OFFICE

Maintenance Inspections Fees:
Assembly up to 999 occupants $65.00
Assembly more than 1000 occupants $120.00
Hospital/detox up to 10,000 square feet $200.00
Hospital/detox over 10,000 square feet $400.00
High rise $90.00
Group U up to 2,500 square feet $65.00
Group U 2,500-10,000 square feet $90.00
Group U over 10,000 square feet $100.00
Flammable/combustible liquids $100.00
Apartments/hotels/dormitories 1-10 $65.00
Apartments/hotels/dormitories 11-20 $90.00
Apartments/hotels/dormitories 21-40 $100.00
Apartments/hotels/dormitories 41-100 $130.00
Apartments/hotels/dormitories over 100 $200.00
Business/mercantile/storage up to 9,999 square feet $65.00
Business/mercantile/storage 10,000-49,999 square feet $100.00
Business/mercantile/storage over 50,000 square feet $200.00
Church/Synagogue $65.00
Follow-up inspection – per visit after initial follow-up $65.00
Complaint investigation – Life Safety (founded) $250.00
Complaint investigation – All others (founded) $65.00
Work w/out a permit $250.00
Inspection history $30.00
Business requesting more frequent inspections than mandated schedule $65.00

False alarms - Charged per incident 0-3 No Charge
False alarms 4-6 $50.00
False alarms 7 or more $100.00

Goldsboro Fire Department

Rates are subject to change. Adopted 6/20/2023 16



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

Fee Title Current Rate Proposed Rate

Late Fee $5.00 $5.00

Service Fee $15.00 $15.00

Reconnection Fee            (Normal 
Hours) 

$10.00 $30.00

Reconnection Fee               (After 
Hours)  

New $80.00

3/4" Water Tap $500.00

1" Water Tap $525.00

1 1/2" Water Tap $1,350.00

2" Water Tap $1,999.00

Above 2" Water Tap Cost + 10% Cost + 10%

4" Sewer Tap $600.00 $1,200.00

Larger than 4" Cost + 10%  Contractor

Water Meter Reading 
Device (MXU)

MXU Replacement Fee $0.00 $175.00

Memorial Permit $50.00 $50.00
Cremation Burial $300.00 $300.00

Direct Burial - Adult $900.00 $1,100.00
Direct Burial - Youth $700.00 $700.00
Direct Burial - Infant $500.00 $500.00

Weekend/Holiday Fee $200.00 $200.00
Exhume $700.00 $1,400.00
Late Fee $50.00 $50.00

Solid Waste Fee $25.00 $25.00

Return Fee $6.00 $15.00

Push Back Fee $4.00 $10.00

2nd Container $4.00 $6.00

Premium Service $42.00 $45.00

Recycling Fee $1.00 $1.00

Dumpster Lease (4 Yd3) $30.00 $30.00
 4 Yd3 Dumpster Service $22.00 $22.00
Dumpster Lease (6 Yd3) $35.00 $35.00
 6 Yd3 Dumpster Service $33.00 $33.00
Dumpster Lease (8 Yd3) $40.00 $40.00
 8 Yd3 Dumpster Service $44.00 $44.00

Clean Out Dumpster $125.00 $125.00
Clean Out Dumpster Service $100.00 $100.00

Refuse Container (90 Gal) $45.00 $45.00
Extra Refuse Container $15.00 $15.00

Water Assessment/Frontage $9.00 $15.00
Sewer Assessment/Frontage $17.00 $23.00

Public Works Current Rates & Fees with Recommended 
Updates and Changes

Water Service Fees for 
Disconnection Due to 

Non-payment

Water Tap Fees 

$1,200.00

$2,200.00

Sewer Tap Fees

Cemetery Fees

Solid Waste Fees       
(Residential) 

Solid Waste Fees       
(Commercial) 

City Assessment/ 
Frontage Fees

Rates are subject to change as authorized by Council action. Adopted 6/20/2023 17



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

Fee Title Rate/Wholesale Rate/Retail
Proposed 
Change

Compost bulk per Yard $15.00 $21.00 No Change
Mulch per Yard $2.00 $2.00 No Change
Compost Bags $2.00 $4.00 No Change

Goldsboro Compost Facility

Rates are subject to change as authorized by Council action.Adopted 6/20/2023 18



Manual of Fees and Charges
FY2023-24

Fee Title Rate/Fee
Proposed 
Change

FEES No Change
Review Industry Application for Wastewater Discharge Permit and Issue Discharge Permit $500.00 No Change
Review Compliance Reports Submitted by Industries $30.00 No Change
Review Self-Monitoring Reports Submitted by Industries $30.00 No Change
Yearly Maintenance Fee $100.00 No Change
Annual Pretreatment Inspection $75.00 No Change
Grease Trap Re-Inspection Fee #1-$60.00, #2-$100 No Change
CHARGES No Change
Flow Proportional Sampling $52.50 No Change
Composite Sampling $45.00 No Change
Grab Sampling $18.00 No Change
Sample Analysis (CBOD5) $27.00 No Change
Sample Analysis (COD) $24.00 No Change
Sample Analysis (TSS) Total Suspended Solids $15.00 No Change
Sample Analysis (NH3-N) Ammonia, Nitrogen $24.00 No Change
Sample Analysis (Total Phosphorus) $24.00 No Change
Sample Analysis (pH & Temp) $10.00 No Change

Analysis of toxic pollutants and other parameters not performed on site by the City's laboratory that must be  performed
by a certified commercial laboratory shall be billed by the City to the industrial user at the actual cost charged by the
laboratory, times a factor of 1.5.  These analysis are, including but not limited to: Oil and Grease, (TN) Total Nitrogen,
(TKN) Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen, (N03-N) Nitrate, (NO2-N) Nitrite, Chloride, Aluminum, Arsenic, Cadmium, Chromium,
Copper, Cyanide, Lead, Mercury. Molybdenum, Nickel, Phenol (4 APP), Selenium, Silver, and Zinc.

SURCHARGES:
For CBOD5 over 250 mg/l $0.2500 per pound No Change
For TSS over 250 mg/l $0.2000 per pound No Change
For Ammonia (NH3-N) over 15 mg/l $1.2100 per pound No Change
For Total Phosphorus over 4 mg/l $3.6700 per pound No Change

Goldsboro Wastewater Treatment Facility

Rates are subject to change as authorized by Council action. Adopted 6/20/2023 19



V



RESOLUTION NO. 2023 — 5C) 

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE WATER RATES AND

SANITARY SEWER RATES FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO

WHEREAS, the present rate structures administered by the City of Goldsboro for water and sanitary sewer service
became effective on July 2022, July 2020, July 2019, July 2005 and January 1987 respectfully; and

WHEREAS, the City engaged Stantec, a utility rate consultant, in September, 2019 to assist the City with assessing
the rate structure for managing the City' s water and sanitary sewer systems; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the utility rate study it is necessary to increase the water and sewer rates four percent
4%) to provide for the cost of service and crucial capital improvements to the system; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 

1. Customers inside the City, the monthly water rate shall be four dollars and twenty-one cents ($ 4. 21) per

one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons and eight dollars and forty- four cents ($ 8. 44) per one thousand gallons ( 1, 000) 

for outside City customers. The industrial bulk monthly water rate for customers using twelve million five
hundred thousand ( 12,500, 000) gallons ormore permonth inside the City, shall be three dollars and forty- three cents

3. 43) per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons and six dollars and twenty- three cents ($ 6. 23) per one thousand

1, 000) gallons for outside City customers. All customers shall be billed in ten ( 10) gallon increments. 

2. Each water customer outside the City shall pay a monthly minimum charge based upon meter size, provided
that this charge shall not provide for any water consumption. 

Meter Size FY 2022- 23 Minimum Charge
3/ 4" 24. 61

1" 25. 90

1 1/ 2" 28. 07

2" 30. 74

3" 39. 04

4" 50. 21

6" 76. 19

8" 120. 66

10" 198. 49

3. Each water customer inside the City shall pay a monthly minimum charge based upon
meter size, provided that this charge shall not provide for any water consumption. 

Meter Size FY 2022- 23 Minimum Charge

3/ 4" 17. 80

1" 18. 45

1 1/ 2" 19. 53

2" 20. 87

3" 25. 02

4" 30. 60

6" 43. 59

8" 65. 83

10" 103. 96

4. Any person discharging waste water into the sanitary sewer of the City shall pay a sewer service charge of
nine dollars and t w e 1 v e cents ($ 9. 12) per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons for in -City service, and eighteen



dollars and twenty- three cents ($ 18. 23) per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons for outside -City service. Industrial
bulk rate for customers using twelve million five hundred thousand ( 12,500,000) gallons ormoreper month inside the City
the monthly rate shall be eight dollars and s i x t e e n cents ($ 8. 16) per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons and
sixteen dollars and thirty- five cents ($ 16. 35) per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons for outside City customers. The
charges shall be based upon the actual metered water consumption in ten ( 10) gallon increments. 

The capitalized sanitary sewer rate for FY 2022- 23 shall be four dollars and three cents ($ 4. 03) per one thousand

1, 000) gallons of metered water usage for in -City service, and eight dollars and seven cents ($ 8. 07) per one

thousand ( 1, 000) gallons of metered water usage for outside City service. The capitalized sanitary sewer
monthly rate for industrial bulk customers using twelve million five hundred thousand ( 12,500,000) gallons or more
per month inside the City shall be three dollars and sixty- seven cents ($ 3. 67) per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons

and seven dollars and thirty- four cents ($ 7. 34) per one thousand ( 1, 000) gallons foroutside City customers. 

6. The Late Fee of $5. 00 for utility bills past due and the Service Penalty of $15. 00 assessed on utility bills after
the expiration of the extended payment period will both remain in effect. The reconnection fee shall be $ 30. 00

for customers disconnected due to nonpayment and will be charged before water service is restored. Same day
service reconnection fee of $80 will apply for same day service paid after 3: 00 pm. 

7. The water tap fees for new and replacement taps shall be charged as follows: 
i. 1" Water Tap $ 1, 200. 00

ii. 2" Water Tap $ 2, 200. 00

iii. Above 2" Water Tap Cost + 10% 

8. The sewer tap fees for new and replacement taps shall be charged as follows: 
i. 4" Sewer Tap $ 1, 200. 00

ii. Larger than 4" Contractor

9. When a customer is found to be responsible for damaging an MXU, a fee of $175. 00 will be assessed. 

10. The deposit of an advance payment for all new single- family residential domestic utility customers shall be
100 inside the City limits and $ 125 for those customers located beyond the corporate boundaries of the City. 

11. The deposit of advance payment for new non- residential users of City of Goldsboro utility service shall be equal
to the projected bi- monthly utility bill of each metered account, but not less than $ 100 nor greater than $ 5, 000
for each metered account. 

12. The new rates shall become effective with the August 1, 2023 billing. Fees for late payment, service penalty, 
reconnection, tap fees, other utility fees, and deposits are effective July 1, 2023. 

13. All other rates and fees are hereby levied as previously established and authorized. 

14. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the 1" day of July, 2023 as adopted by the City
Council on this 20`" day of June, 2023. 

SiVA
Attested hv- 



City of Goldsboro, NC Utility Rate Sheet
Rates Effective August 1, 2023

Inside Citv Outside C

Water Volumetric Charges

Rate per 1, 000 gallons 4. 21 8.44

Industrial Bulk Rate per 1, 000 gallons 3. 43 6.23

Water Minimum Charges

Meter Size

3/ 4" 17. 80 24. 61

1" 18. 45 25.90

11/ 2" 19. 53 28. 07

2" 20. 87 30. 74

3" 25. 02 39.04

4" 30. 60 50. 21

6" 43. 59 76. 19

8" 65. 83 120. 66

10" 103. 96 198. 49

Wastewater Volumetric Charges

Rate per 1, 000 gallons $ 9. 12 $ 18. 23

Industrial Bulk Rate per 1, 000 gallons $ 8. 16 $ 16. 35

Capitalized Sewer Volumetric Charges

Rate per 1, 000 gallons $ 4. 03 $ 8. 07

Industrial Bulk Rate per 1, 000 gallons $ 3. 67 $ 7. 34



Item AA


	Agenda 06-20-23
	ws item b - Social District Memo
	ws item b2 - Social District List as of 6.13.23
	ws item b3 - Social District Pwrpt
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17

	ws item c - Repair Paramount Facade
	Item A - Minutes 6-5-23
	Item B - USD Fees
	Item C1 - Z-6-23
	Item C2 - Z-6-23 Ordinance to Approve or Deny
	Item D1 - Z-7-23
	Item D2 - Z-7-23 Ordinance to Approve or Deny
	Item E1 - Z-8-23
	Item E2 - Z-8-23 Ordinance to Approve or Deny
	Item F1 - Z-9-23
	Item F2 - Z-9-23 Ordinance to Approve or Deny
	Item G - SU-7-23
	Item H - SU-9-23
	Item I - Request F-250
	Item J - Request Hopper
	Item K - Sale of Radios
	Item L - Agenda 2023-06-20 G1108 Comm Rel SRF Amend
	Agenda Item G1108 Comm Relations SRF 2023-06-20_0
	ORDIN G1108 Comm Relations SRF 2023-06-20_0

	Item M - Agenda 2023-06-20 P3104 Police Other Restricted amendment
	Agenda Memo Police Other Restricted P3104 2023-06-20_0
	ORDINANCE P3104 Police Other Restricted 2023-06-20_0

	Item N - Agenda 2023-06-06 G1107 Parks Rec SRF amendment
	Agenda G1107 Amend 2023-06-20_0
	ORDINANCE G1107 Parks Rec SRF 2023-06-20_0

	Item O - Agenda 2023-06-20 F3110 Fire Other Restricted SRF amend
	Agenda Memo F3110 Fire Other Restricted Funds 06-20-23_0
	ORDINANCE F3110 Fire Other Restricted Funds 06-20-23_0

	Item P - Agenda 2023-06-20 W111 WIF-1938 Water Lines closeout_1
	Agenda W1111 SRF Water Lines  2023-06-20_1
	ORDIN W1111 Water Lines 2023-06-20_1

	Item Q - Agenda 2023-06-20 P3101 Federal & State Forfeiture amend
	Agenda Memo Fed State Forfeiture P3101 2023-06-20_0
	ORDIN P3101 Fed & St Forfeit 2023-06-20_0

	Item R - Agenda 2023-06-20 C2101-C3102 CDBG HOME amendmt
	Agenda Memo C2101-C3102 CDBG HOME 2023-06-20_0
	ORDIN C2101-C3102 CDBG 2023-06-20_0

	Item S - Ballistic Vests
	Item T - Global Gear
	Item U - Agenda 2023-06-20 FY23 Operating Amendment
	Agenda Memo Op Funds 2023-06-20_0
	ORDINANCE Op Amend 2023-06-20_0

	Item V - 23-24 Utility Fees & Charges
	Item W - FY23-24 Budget Ordinance  Manual of Fees
	Agenda Item FY23-24 Budget Ordinance (Rev_1)
	ORDINANCE FY23-24 Budget (Rev_1)
	Manual of Fees and Charges COG FY24_9
	Cover
	General
	Engineering
	Inspections
	Planning
	P & R
	GEC
	Golf
	Paramount
	Police
	Fire
	PW
	Compost
	WRF
	junk index.pdf
	Index



	Item X - PO Phone Replace
	Item Y - May Monthly Reports
	Monthly Departmental Reports - Cover Page
	Community Relations and Development - May 2023 Monthly Report
	Community Relations and Development - May 2023 Monthly Report - Addendum
	ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT - MAY 2023
	Finance 2023-05
	Fin 1 - Budget Transfers Summary FY23_6 2023-11 MAY
	Transfer Summary May

	Fin 2 - Cash & Investment FY2023-11-May
	5-31-23

	Fin 3 - Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2023-05 May_1
	Grants 2023-05 May

	Fire Monthly Report
	IT Monthly Report May 2023
	Inspections  MoRepMay2023
	Paramount Monthly Report-May 2023
	Parks May Monthly Report 2023 FLB
	Police Monthly Report May 2023
	Public Utilities Department Monthly Report - May 2023
	TT May 2023 Directors Report 2

	Item Z1 - 117 Memo
	Item Z2 - Code Update Chapter 117-updated 6-15-23
	Item zAA -PTSD Proclamation 2023
	Hawthorne Trail  - Cuyler Best Road 6-20-23.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14




